
 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for June 15, 2022 - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday June 15, 2022, 7:00 P.M. 

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

 
In response to the current proclaimed State of Emergency, indoor masking requirements, and recommended 
measures to promote social distancing imposed by State and local officials, the Town of Discovery Bay 
Community Services District Board of Directors will take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose 
of AB 361, including, ensuring that the Directors and meeting attendees may continue to have the option to 
access and participate in this public meeting by teleconference to avoid imminent risks to the health or safety of 
the Directors and meeting attendees. 
 
To accommodate the public during this period of time, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 
District Board of Directors has arranged for members of the public to observe and address the meeting 
telephonically or in person. 
 
TO ATTEND IN PERSON: The meeting will be held at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay 
Boulevard. 
 
TO ATTEND BY WEBINAR:  
Please register for the Regular Meeting of the Boar d of Directors by: (Copy and paste into your browser 
the registration URL. You will then be directed to download the webinar to your device and register with 
LogMeln, Inc.) 
 
Registration URL : https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/531605118 2380627981 
Webinar ID# 491-693-867 
 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar by 
computer or by phone. 
 
For listen only mode dial:   +1 (562) 247-8422 ID#   476-904-810 

 
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/   
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.  
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
3. Roll Call. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will  be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is 
before the Board for consideration. Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their comment. 
There will be no dialog between the Board and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability of Board 
members to discuss matters not on the agenda. We ask that you refrain from personal attacks during 
comment, and that you address all comments to the Board only. Any clarifying questions from the Board 
must go through the President. Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the viewpoint of the 
Directors. 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

President – Kevin Graves • Vice-President – Ashley Porter • Director – Bryon Gutow • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 
 

 

SDLF Platinum -Level  of Governance  



 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for June 15, 2022 - Pg.2 

 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
 
1. Approve Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes from June 1, 2022. 
2. Approve Special Board of Directors Town Hall Event Meeting Minutes from June 4, 2022 
3. Approve Register of District Invoices.   
4. Approve Resolution 2022-19 Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Legislative Body 

of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Pursuant to the Brown Act Provisions. 
5. Approve the Extension of Luhdorff and Scalmanini Contract Engineers for Services into FY 2022-23. 
6. Approve Contracting with Croce, Sanguinetti & Vander Veen to Perform the Town of Discovery Bay’s 

Independent Audit for Fiscal Year 2021-22. 
 

D. AREA AGENCIES AND LIAISON REPORTS / PRESENTATION S 
 1. None. 
 
E. PRESENTATIONS 
 1. Veolia Presentation.  
 
F. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

1. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Annual Assessment for the Ravenswood Improvement 
District – DB Lighting and Landscape Zone 9 for the Fiscal Year 2022-2023, Accept Engineer’s Report, 
and Adopt Resolution No. 2022-22. 

2. Public Hearing. Discussion and Possible Action to Adopt Resolution 2022-20 Adopting the Operating,  
  Capital Improvement, and Revenue Budgets for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

3. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adopting Resolution No. 2022-21 Updating the Injury and  
Illness Prevention Program Policy 021. 

 4.  Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adopting Resolution No. 2022-23 In Support of Ensuring the 
  Health and Sustainability of the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. 
 5. Discussion and Possible Action to Award and Authorize the General Manager to Execute any and all  
  Contracts for the Construction of the Diffuser Project. 

 
G. MANAGER’S REPORT 
  
H. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 1. Municipal Advisory Committee (MAC) Listed on Agenda Beginning July 2022 
  
I. DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 1.  None. 
  
J. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS 
 None.  
 
K. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
 1. Email from Dawn Morrow RE: Delayed Construction on Bixler Road Due to Bird Nest 

  
L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
M.  OPEN SESSION DISCLOSURE OF CLOSED SESSION AGEND A 

(Government Code Section 54957.7) 
 
N. CLOSED SESSION: 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: one case 

 
O. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

(Government Code Section 54957.1) 
   

P.  ADJOURNMENT     
1. Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors on July 6, 2022, beginning at 7:00 p.m. at 

the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  



 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for June 15, 2022 - Pg.3 

 

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 



 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for June 1, 2022 - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday June 1, 2022 
 
 
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.  
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance led by General Manager, Dina Breitstein. 
3. Roll Call – all members were present. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will  be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
• One resident comment regarding Country Club HOA concerns. 

 
C. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
 
1. Approve Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes from May 18, 2022. 
2. Approve Special Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes from May 19, 2022. 
3. Approve Register of District Invoices.   
4. Approve Resolution 2022-17 Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Legislative Body 

of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Pursuant to the Brown Act Provisions. 
5. Authorize Board Member Attendance and Activity Participation at the 2022 CSDA Conference in Palm 

Desert, August 22 through August 25, 2022. 
6. Approve Herwit Wastewater Engineering Contract for FY22/23 
7. Ratify and Renumber Resolution No. 2022-07 Passed by the Board on March 16, 2022 to Resolution 

No. 2022-07a. 
 
Director Gutow made a Motion to Approve the Consent Calendar as presented. 
Vice-President Porter second. 
Vote:  Motion Carried – AYES:  5, NOES:  0, ABSTAINED:  0, ABSENT:  0  

 
 No public comment. 

 
D. AREA AGENCIES AND LIAISON REPORTS / PRESENTATION S 
 1. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report.   

Presented by Communications Director, Teresa Gerringer. 
 

• Supervisor Burgis attended the ribbon cutting ceremony of Station 55 (also known as Station 
95) and was part of the collaboration of ECCFPD annexation into CONFIRE that will occur 
July 1st. 

• Due to COVID increases health officials are strongly recommending wearing masks indoors 
as sub variants are more contagious than the original variant. 

• Public works will be closing a portion of Bixler Rd. on June 15th – August 2nd between the 
hours of 7 am – 5pm on maintenance of an existing PG&E natural line system. 

 
Vice-President Porter encouraged improving open communication between the Board of Directors and the 
County moving forward. 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

President – Kevin Graves • Vice-President – Ashley Porter • Director – Bryon Gutow • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 
 

 

SDLF Platinum -Level  of Governance  



 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for June 1, 2022 - Pg.2 

 

 
 2. Sheriff’s Office Report. 
  Presented by Lieutenant, Mark Johnson. 

• Open spots available for the Citizen’s Academy. 
• No major crime trends for the month. 
• One Grand Theft report, individuals were arrested. 
• One missing person report, person was found safe. 
• More Deputies will be in the area for 4th of July weekend. 

 
4. CHP Report. 

Presented by Officer, Donnie Thomas. 
• Five DUI arrests. 
• Four registration violations. 
• Nine warnings issued. 
• Thirty-two citations issued in two days near the elementary school zones. 
• More enforcement will be in place for the 4th of July. 

 
5. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Report. 

Presented by Chief, Ross Macumber. 
• Seventy-one calls for service including structure fire causing moderate damage, no one was 

injured. 
• Vegetation fires have started in the area, weeds are highly encouraged to be cut down. 
• Station 95 opened in the area. 
• New Battalion Chief will be assigned to Discovery Bay. 
• Board of Directors is invited to attend the Change of Command Ceremony on July 1st at 10 

am - City Park, Brentwood. 
 
E. PRESENTATIONS 
 1. None. 
 
F. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

1.  Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Proposed Draft Operating, Capital 
and Revenue Budgets. 

 Presented by Finance Manager, Julie Carter. 
• Workmen’s Compensation Insurance increased by $20,000. 
• Litigation expense - total of $20,000. 
• Gas increased in both water and landscaping accounts. 
• Overtime line item will be separated so that it can be tracked going forward and the 

adjustment will be made year to date for this current year. 
• Public Hearing will be held during the June 15th Board of Directors meeting.  

 
 Director Gutow made a Motion to Approve the Draft Budget. 
 Director Graham second. 
 Vote:  Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES:  0, ABSTAINED:  0, ABSENT:  0   
  
 No public comment. 

 
2. Discussion and Possible Action to Adopt Resolution No. 2022-18 – Approving Annual Discovery Bay 

Lighting and Landscape Zone #8 Appropriations Limit for FY 2022/23. 
 Presented by Finance Manager, Julie Carter. 
 

• Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Zone #8 Appropriation Limit $792,250.87. 
 

 Vice-President Porter made a Motion to Approve Resolution No. 2022-18. 
 Director Gutow second. 

Vote:  Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES:  0, ABSTAINED:  0, ABSENT:  0   
 
No public comment. 
 
 



 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for June 1, 2022 - Pg.3 

 

 
 
3. Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize the Board President Send a Letter to the County 

Supervisors Urging a No Vote on a General Plan Amendment Feasibility Study to Change the Land Use 
Designation for the Property at the Corner of Discovery Bay Blvd. and Sandpoint Road from 
“Commercial” to “Mixed Use.” 

  
 Presented by Interim Assistant General Manager, Mike Davies. 

• Staff is requesting the Board to approve a Letter to the County Supervisors Urging a NO 
Vote with modification in the last paragraph to express our concern on the General plan 
Amendment Feasibility Study. 

• It was discussed adding to the website a section for County correspondence.    
• President Graves and Staff plan on attending the Board of Supervisors meeting on June 

7th to read the Letter during public comment. 
 
Director Callahan made a Motion to Approve the Letter from the Board to the County with the modification from 
Interim Assistant General Manager. 
Vice-President Porter second. 
Vote:  Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES:  0, ABSTAINED:  0, ABSENT:  0 
 
No public comment. 
 
G. MANAGER’S REPORT 
  
H. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 Presented by General Manager, Dina Breitstein. 
 

• Town Hall Meeting – Saturday, June 4th 11 am – 1pm. 
• First Summer Jam Concert Series – Saturday June 4th Gates open at 5 pm. 

  
I. DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 1.  Standing Committee Reports. 

a. Internal Operations Committee Meeting (Committee Members Michael Callahan and Carolyn 
Graham).  June 1, 2022. 

• IIPP has been updated and will be brought to the Board at a future meeting. 
 

b. Finance Committee Meeting (Committee Members Kevin Graves and Bryon Gutow).  June 1, 
2022. 

• Zone #8 Appropriation Limit reviewed. 
 

c. Water and Wastewater Committee Meeting (Committee Members Kevin Graves and Ashley 
Porter).  June 1, 2022. 

• Capacity and filters - Engineering issues with Willow Lake pumps.  Presentation by 
Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers, Jason Coleman discussed options to 
replace filters to get maximum capacity.  Committee is reviewing current budget and 
CIP.  This will be a phased project with some immediate needs that need to be met.  
Committee will be bringing to the Board soon. 
 

 2. Other Reportable Items. 
  None. 
 
J. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS 
 Tri Delta Transit Meeting – May 25, 2022 (Director Graham). 

• 2023 Budget was discussed. 
• Youth Pass Program – much excitement.  
• Exploring possible ferry service mid 2023 from Antioch, Pittsburg, Martinez, and 

Hercules for commuters.  
 
K. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 

  
L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

   
M.  OPEN SESSION DISCLOSURE OF CLOSED SESSION AGEND A 



 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for June 1, 2022 - Pg.4 

 

None. 
 

N. CLOSED SESSION: 
None. 
 

O. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION, REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 None. 
 
P.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Meeting adjourned at 8:13 p.m. to the next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors on June 15, 2022, 
beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 



 
 

Discovery Bay Special Town Hall Event  
Meeting Agenda for June 4, 2022 - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
 
NOTICE CALL, AND AGENDA 
MEETING MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL TOWN HALL EVENT 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Saturday, June 4, 2022 
SPECIAL TOWN HALL EVENT 11:00 A.M.  
 
 
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at www.todb.ca.gov 
 
SPECIAL MEETING 11:00 A.M.  
A. ROLL CALL  

1. Call business meeting to order 11:00 a.m. 
2. Roll Call – all members were present. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
None. 
 

C. OPEN FORUM  
1. Town Hall Event  

a. Board President Address 
b. Government Representatives Address 
c. Tabletop Presentations with Town Staff and Consultants 

  
 D.     ADJOURNMENT     

1. Meeting adjourned at 1 PM to the next Regular Board of Director’s Meeting, June 15, 2022 beginning 
at 7 PM at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard. 

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.”  
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the agenda 
packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during normal 
business hours." 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

President – Kevin Graves • Vice President – Ashley Porter • Director – Bryon Gutow • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

June 15, 2022 

 
Prepared By:   Julie Carter, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Accountant 
Submitted By:    Dina Breitstein, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Approve Register of District Invoices. 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
District invoices are paid on a regular basis, and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff recommends  
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $ 179,800.67 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements        
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
  
Attachments 
 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2021/2022 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: C3 



          Request for Authorization to Pay Invoices

Badger Meter $77,631.43

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. $34,205.24

Caselle, Inc. $16,348.00

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment $11,480.79

Herwit Engineering $4,800.00

Robert Half $4,201.26

BrightView Landscape Services, Inc. $3,350.00

Univar Solutions USA Inc. $2,747.52

American Water Works Association $2,443.00

Trugreen $2,360.00

City Of Brentwood $1,848.96

Luhdorff & Scalmanini $1,796.00

Urban Futures, Inc. $1,550.00

Lincoln Aquatics $1,425.72

Karina Dugand $1,395.00

National Aquatic Services, Inc. $1,130.00

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. $995.78

Verizon Wireless $886.64

Mt Diablo Resource Recovery $825.49

Brentwood Ace Hardware $752.65

Bill Brandt Ford $731.78

Bryon Gutow $690.00

Kevin Graves $690.00

Bob Harkrader & Sons Trucking, Inc. $676.13

Ashley Porter $575.00

Upper Case Printing, Inc. $492.00

Streamline $480.00

Michelle Dominge $465.00

Carolyn Graham $345.00

Michael Callahan $345.00

Quadient Leasing USA, Inc. $302.26

Daniel Elliott $280.03

UniFirst Corporation $213.32

Core & Main LP $208.02

Geotab USA, Inc. $197.50

Medstop $180.00

Utility Refund Customer $166.95

ODP Office Solutions, LLC $143.71

Denalect Alarm Company $111.00

Discovery Pest Control $99.00

Bob Murray & Associates $94.83

Cintas $81.41

County Of Contra Costa, Dept of Info Tec $59.25

$179,800.67

                               For The Meeting On June 15, 2022
                             Town of Discovery Bay CSD

                             Fiscal Year 7/21 - 6/22



 

1564211-1 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN DISCOVERY BAY COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE 

LEGISLATIVE BODY OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (the “Town”) is committed to 
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and  
 
WHEREAS, all meetings of the Town’s legislative body are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. 
Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the public may attend, participate, 
and watch the District’s legislative body conduct their business; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance with the 
requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of certain conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town’s Board of Directors previously adopted a Resolution, Number 2021-16 on October 
20, 2021, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the legislative body of the Town to conduct remote 
teleconference meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953; and  
 
WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 54953(e), the Board of 
Directors must make findings that the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of 
emergency that exist in the Town, and that either the state of emergency continues to directly impact the 
ability of the members to meet safely in person, or State or local officials continue to impose or 
recommend measures to promote social distancing; and   
 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor proclaimed a State of Emergency continues to exist 
throughout California as a result of the threat of COVID-19; and   
 
WHEREAS, currently the dominant strain of COVID-19 in the country continues to be more transmissible 
than prior variants of the virus, may cause more severe illness, and that even fully vaccinated individuals 
can spread the virus to others resulting in rapid and alarming rates of COVID-19 cases and 
hospitalizations, therefore, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees and members; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Cal-OSHA adopted emergency regulations (Section 3205) imposing requirements on 
California employers, including measures to promote social distancing remain in effect; and 
 
WHEREAS, the health orders issued by the Contra Costa County Health Officer to preserve the public 
health, including requiring all people in Contra Costa County who aren’t fully vaccinated, to adhere to 
indoor masking requirements, recommending measures for social distancing from non-household 
members for vaccinated individuals that have been exposed to COVID-19, and measures acknowledging 
that close contact to other persons increases the risk of transmission, remain in effect.   
 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION 2022-19 



 

1564211-1 

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into this 
Resolution by this reference. 
 
Section 2. AB 361 Compliance. The Board of Directors began using teleconferencing in accordance with 
subdivision (e) of Section 54953 of the Government Code, as amended by AB 361, on October 20, 2021, 
and have made the requisite findings by majority vote not later than 30 days after October 20, 2021, and 
every 30 days thereafter.   
 
Section 3. State of Emergency. The Board of Directors hereby reconsiders the circumstances of the 
current State of Emergency proclaimed by the Governor on March 4, 2020, and find that the ongoing 
conditions of the State of Emergency directly impact the ability of members to meet safely in person. 
 
Section 4. Measures to Promote Social Distancing. The Board of Directors hereby finds that Cal-OSHA 
and the County Health Official continue to recommend measures to promote physical distancing. 
 
Section 5. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager of the Town of Discovery Bay 
Community Services District is hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out 
the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open and public meetings in accordance 
with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Kevin Graves 
Board President 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District at a meeting, held on June 15, 2022, by the following vote of 
the Board: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dina Breitstein 
Board Secretary 



 
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

June 15, 2022 

 

Prepared By:   Dina Breitstein, Assistant General Manager 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, Assistant General Manager 
  
Agenda Title:  
 
Approve the Extension of Luhdorff and Scalmanini Contract Engineers for Services into FY 2022-2023. 
  
Recommended Action:  
 
Approve the Scope of Services contained in the Luhdorff and Scalmanini Contract Engineers (LSCE) Scope of Work and 
Budget, which provides contract engineering services for the Water Division of the Town of Discovery Bay for the fiscal 
year 2022-2023, and authorize the General Manager to execute the Town’s standard form of Consulting Agreement with 
LSCE to perform the scope of work attached. 
  
Executive Summary:   
 
Luhdorff and Scalmanini Contract Engineers provide the District with the needed engineering work for the Water Services 
Division of the Town of Discovery Bay. In the coming fiscal year, the water division needs general engineering and capital 
improvement services from LSCE to perform and support a number of projects.   
 
Enclosed is LSCE’s proposed Scope of Work, Budget, and Fee Schedule to continue General Engineering Services for 
FY 22/23. A primary component of work under the General Engineering Services has been to assist the District with the 
management, design, and construction oversight of the following: 
 

• Contract Management 
• Meeting Attendance 
• Regulatory Assistance 
• Capital Improvement Program Engineering 

 
 
The enclosed scope of work and the proposed budget extend the assistance provided under General Engineering Services 
and continued improvements and maintenance services for FY 22/23. 
 
The attached documents provide the basis for the budget estimate. The proposed budget of $132,796 includes LSCE’s 
labor rates and miscellaneous expenses. LSCE will continue to bill monthly for labor and materials, only as incurred, in 
accordance with LSCE’s fee schedule. 
  
Fiscal Impact: $132,796  
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item:   
 
  
Attachments:  
 
Exhibit A Scope of Work, Fee Schedule, and Budget. 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: C5 
 



 

500 First Street, Woodland, CA 95695  •  Tel. 530.661.0109  •  Fax. 530.661.6806  •  lsce.com 

 

May 27, 2022 
File No. 22‐5‐077 
 
 
 
Ms. Dina Breitstein 
General Manager 
Town of Discovery Bay  

Community Services District 

1800 Willow Lake Road 

Discovery Bay, CA 94514 

 
 

SUBJECT:  Scope and Budget for General Engineering Services – Fiscal Year 2022/2023 

Dear Ms. Breitstein: 

Per your request, Luhdorff & Scalmanini, Consulting Engineers (LSCE) is pleased to provide this proposed 

scope and budget for general engineering services in Fiscal Year 2022/2023 (FY 22/23) for the Town of 

Discovery Bay Community Services District (TODB). 

Scope of Work 

The scope of work outlined in this letter describes the ongoing and as‐needed engineering support 

related to the TODB public water system. The tasks are separated into categories based on current and 

ongoing activities. Some activities are recurring tasks that are well‐defined, such as participation in 

recurring meetings and regulatory compliance items.  

There is also contingency provided for any as‐needed services related to capital projects, engineering, 

and planning. This includes working with TODB staff on infrastructure planning, assessment, design, 

permitting, or construction. Budgets are proposed for these tasks based on the level of involvement 

from previous Fiscal Year general service contracts and anticipated items in FY 22/23. 

Task 1 – Contract Management 

This task is for overall management of invoices, scoping, contracting, and budget analysis.  

Task 1: Contract Management 

Task  Description  Details 

1.a  Contract Management 

 Review and approval of monthly invoices (12 total) 

 Scoping and contracting  

 Budget analysis memorandums (4 total) 

 



Ms. Breitstein 
May 27, 2022 
Page 2 
 

 

Task 2 – Meetings 

This task is for participation in monthly Water/Wastewater Committee meetings, TODB Board meetings 

and bi‐weekly water meetings. LSCE’s participation for meetings ranges from preparing project updates 

for staff prior to Committee or Board meetings, to LSCE’s attendance and providing presentations for 

the Committee and Board meetings. For the bi‐weekly meetings, LSCE will prepare and distribute 

agendas for each meeting. This task also includes meeting preparation and presentation development. 

For budgeting purposes, it is assumed that LSCE will attend up to six (6) water/wastewater committee 

meetings in person, eighteen (18) water/wastewater committee meetings remotely, six (6) general 

board meetings in person, eighteen (18) general board meetings remotely, and twenty‐six (26) bi‐weekly 

meetings. Other meetings may be included in separate contracts or task orders.  

Task 2: Monthly Committee Meetings 

Task  Description  Details 

2.a 
Monthly 
Water/Wastewater 
Committee Meetings 

 Attendance at Water/Wastewater Committee meetings, and 
pre‐meetings with TODB staff (24 meetings total). 

 Prepare materials, agenda, reports and figures to discuss water 
system related items with the Water/Wastewater Committee.  

2.b  Board Meetings 

 Attendance and support at Board of Directors Public Meetings 
(24 meetings total). 

 Regular Water system update at Board Meetings. 

 Preparation and delivery of public presentations, including any 
supporting material such as technical exhibits and figures.   

 Preparation of Staff Reports for the Board agenda.  

2.c 
Bi‐Weekly Team 
Meetings 

 Discuss ongoing projects and items with TODB staff and Veolia 
in bi‐weekly virtual meetings (26 meetings total). Maintain 
agenda and notes of ongoing discussions. 

 

Task 3 – Regulatory Assistance 

This task is for assistance with regulatory deliverables that are anticipated for FY 22/23. Some of the 

regulatory deliverables are recurring items, as listed in the table below. LSCE will provide guidance to 

the TODB on new and emerging regulations, as outlined in the table below.  

Task 3: Regulatory Assistance 

Task  Description  Details 

3.a 
Guidance on New 
Regulations 

 Report to the General Manager. 

 Prepare one (1) memorandum to update the TODB on emerging 
State and Federal regulations. 

 Provide engineering support/assistance to ensure TODB 
Staff/Veolia compliance. 



Ms. Breitstein 
May 27, 2022 
Page 3 
 

 

 

Task 4 – Contingency for Capital Projects and Planning Assistance  

This task provides contingency budget for LSCE to assist with any activities, as needed, related to capital 
improvement projects or system planning. Specific activities would be developed on an as‐needed basis 
at the request of the TODB. Assignments for LSCE may include evaluating project alternatives, 
conducting hydraulic model simulations, developing preliminary design basis, assessing feasibility, cost 
estimates, preliminary designs, condition assessments on facilities, or evaluating site‐specific issues to 
address issues of water supply, production, quality, safety, etc. LSCE provides a proposed level of hours 
of assistance in terms of capital projects and general planning assistance.  

Task 3: Regulatory Assistance 

Task  Description  Details 

3.b 
CASGEM Well 
Monitoring and State 
Reporting 

 Twice per year (fall/spring), LSCE conducts field services for 
water level monitoring and reporting for Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) compliance. 

 Two trips are required per event, due to the coordination of 
water treatment plant shutdown requirements with Veolia. 

 LSCE maintains transducers, downloads data, updates 
groundwater level database, and reports to DWR. 

 The cost of two (2) transducer replacements are assumed and 
included in the budget ($675 per transducer). 

3.c 
SB555 Water Audit and 
State Reporting 

 Prepare the Annual Water Loss Audit. 

 Meeting with certified water audit validator. 

 Validate water audit and submit to DWR by January 1, 2023. 

3.d 
SB 606/AB 1668 Water 
Use Objectives 

 Assist with establishing the water use objectives under new 
legislature. Discuss with TODB and Veolia. Review water use 
data, per prior scopes of work, and relate this with new 
regulations. Provide engineering support/assistance for TODB 
compliance with legislation. 

3.e 
Cross‐Connection 
Control Program 
(CCCP) Development 

 Continue developing CCCP once new regs are available (Spring 
2023). Update current policies. Update residential backflow 
proposal. Present memo to Board. Obtain direction and 
proceed to prepare draft ordinance. 

 (Additional CCCP assistance such as public workshops and 
implementation may require an additional Task Order.) 

3.f 

Preliminary and Final 
Annual Water Supply 
and Demand 
Assessment report 

 Collect water service connection and water production data 
from TODB. 

 Prepare Preliminary Annual Assessment and submit to DWR by 
June 1st 2023 

 Prepare Final Annual Assessment and submit to DWR by July 1st 
2023 



Ms. Breitstein 
May 27, 2022 
Page 4 
 

 

Task 4: Capital Improvement Program Engineering Services 

Task  Description  Details 

4.a 
As‐needed Capital 
Project Assistance 

 120 hours included for project tasks such as, permitting, cost 
estimating, alternatives analysis, modeling, drafting, bidding, 
construction inspections, etc. 

4.b 
As‐needed Planning 
Assistance 

 120 hours for planning tasks such as, troubleshooting, 
consultation, condition assessments, water quality evaluation, 
policy development, standards development, system modeling. 

 

Proposed Budget 

LSCE’s proposed budget for General Engineering Services for FY 22/23 is $132,796 based on the 

anticipated activities this fiscal year and providing contingency to allow the TODB to utilize LSCE on an 

as‐needed basis. A detailed budget estimate worksheet (attached) provides the estimated labor under 

each task for the activities outlined in the Scope of Work. 

LSCE will bill monthly for labor and materials, only as incurred, in accordance with LSCE’s current 

Schedule of Fees for Engineering and Field services (attached). In the event that LSCE is required to be 

involved in activities that deviate from the scope, LSCE will provide notification of any potential changes 

in the estimated budget for general engineering services.  

We appreciate the opportunity to continue providing professional engineering support services to the 

TODB. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 

Sincerely, 

LUHDORFF & SCALMANINI 

CONSULTING ENGINEERS 

 

 

 

 

Jason Coleman, P.E. 

Supervising Engineer 

Enclosures 

 Budget Estimate Worksheet FY22/23 

 2022 Schedule of Fees for Engineering and Field Services 



 

500 FIRST STREET • WOODLAND, CA 95695 

 

 

Professional* 

Senior Principal ............................................................................................ $235/hr. 
Principal Professional ................................................................................... $225 to 230/hr. 
Supervising Professional .............................................................................. $210 to 220/hr. 
Senior Professional ...................................................................................... $175 to 210/hr. 
Project Professional ..................................................................................... $155 to 175/hr. 
Staff Professional ......................................................................................... $135 to 155/hr. 

Technical 

Engineering Inspector .................................................................................. $140/hr. 
ACAD Drafting/GIS ....................................................................................... $142/hr. 
Engineering Assistant ................................................................................... $115 to 140/hr. 
Scientist ........................................................................................................ $115 to 140/hr. 
Technician ......................................................................................................... $115 to 140/hr. 

Clerical Support 

Word Processing, Clerical ............................................................................. $90/hr. 
Digital Communications Specialist ............................................................... $90 to 100/hr. 
Project Admin/Accounting Assistant ........................................................... $90 to 110/hr. 

 
Vehicle Use $0.58/mi. 
Subsistence Cost Plus 15% 
Groundwater Sampling Equipment (Includes Operator) $170.00/hr 
Copies $0.20 ea. 

 
Professional or Technical Testimony 200% of Regular Rates 
Technical Overtime (if required) 150% of Regular Rates 
Outside Services/Rentals Cost Plus 15% 
Services by Associate Firms Cost Plus 15% 

 
 

* Engineer, Geologist, Hydrogeologist, and Hydrologist 

2022 SCHEDULE OF FEES 
ENGINEERING AND RELATED FIELD SERVICES 



Client: Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Project: General Engineering Services FY22/23
Estimated By: OS, JC
Date:

Billing Supervising Senior Project Staff Copies/
Level Engineer Engineer Engineer Engineer Travel Equipment

Billing Rate ($/Hr) $220 $200 $175 $145 Lump Sum Lump Sum
1.a Contract Management 18 0 0 0 $3,960 $0 $0 $0 $3,960

18 0 0 0 18
$3,960 $0 $0 $0 $3,960 $0 $0 $0 $3,960

2.a Committee Meetings (attend 6 per year in person, 18 remotely) 42 0 0 0 $9,240 $750 $100 $850 $10,090
2.b Board Meetings (attend 6 per year in person, 18 remotely) 42 0 0 0 $9,240 $0 $0 $0 $9,240
2.c Bi-Weekly Meetings and agendas (attend 26 per year) 52 26 0 26 $20,410 $0 $0 $0 $20,410

136 26 0 26 188
$29,920 $5,200 $0 $3,770 $38,890 $750 $100 $850 $39,740

3.a Assistance on New Regulations 16 12 0 8 $7,080 $0 $0 $0 $7,080
3.b CASGEM Well Monitoring and State Reporting 4 0 20 36 $9,600 $186 $1,350 $1,536 $11,136
3.c SB555 Water Audit and State Reporting 8 0 24 0 $5,960 $0 $0 $0 $5,960
3.d SB 606/AB 1668 Water Use Objective 16 0 24 16 $10,040 $0 $50 $50 $10,090
3.e Cross-Connection Control Program Development 16 0 16 16 $8,640 $0 $50 $50 $8,690
3.f Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment 4 8 0 8 $3,640 $0 $0 $0 $3,640

64 20 84 84 252 $0
$14,080 $4,000 $14,700 $12,180 $44,960 $186 $1,450 $1,636 $46,596

4.a As-needed Capital Project Assistance 20 20 40 40 $21,200 $0 $50 $50 $21,250
4.b As-needed Planning Assisstance 20 20 40 40 $21,200 $0 $50 $50 $21,250

$0 $0
40 40 80 80 240

$8,800 $8,000 $14,000 $11,600 $42,400 $0 $100 $100 $42,500
258 86 164 190 698

$56,760 $17,200 $28,700 $27,550 $130,210 $936 $1,650 $2,586 $132,796

DIRECT EXPENSES
Direct 

Expenses 
Subtotal

Contract Budget 
Estimate 

Budget Estimate Worksheet
5/25/2022

Labor Subtotal

Total Hours
Subtotal (cost)

Task 1: Contract Management

Total Hours
Subtotal (cost)

Task 3: Regulatory Assistance

Total (cost)Totals

Task 2: Meetings

Total Hours
Subtotal (cost)

Task 4: Contingency for Capital 
Projects and Planning Assistance 

Total Hours

Total Hours
Subtotal (cost)



 
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

June 15, 2022 

 

Prepared By:     Julie Carter, Finance Manager 
Submitted By:   Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
Agenda Title       
Approve Contracting with Croce, Sanguinetti & Vander Veen to Perform the Town of Discovery Bay’s Independent Audit 
for Fiscal Year 2021-22. 
 
Recommended Action 
  
Staff recommends that the Board approve engagement with Croce, Sanguinetti & Vander Veen to perform the annual 
independent financial audit and submission of financial reports to the California State Controller’s Office for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2022.  
 
Executive Summary  
 
Government Code 53891. (a) States that the officer of each local agency who has charge of the financial records shall 
furnish to the Controller a report of all the financial transactions of the local agency during the preceding fiscal year. The 
report shall contain underlying data from audited financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles if this data is available. The report shall be furnished within seven months after the close of each 
fiscal year and shall be in the form required by the Controller.  
 
A local agency shall submit to the Controller information on annual compensation, as described in subdivision (l) of 
Section 53892, for the previous calendar year no later than April 30th.  The Town of Discovery Bay CSD, and the 
Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority complies with this requirement on an annual basis and hires an independent 
auditing firm to perform the annual financial audit.   
 
Staff recommends Croce, Sanguinetti & Vander Veen perform the audit for The Town of Discovery Bay CSD  and the 
Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority, and provide under the direction of Pauline Sanguinetti, the following for Fiscal 
Year Ending June 30, 2022: 
 

• Annual Audit for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD, including bond accounting for new bond issuance 
• Preparation and submission of the Town of Discovery Bay CSD Financial Transaction Reports  
• Preparation and submission of the Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority Financial Transaction Reports  

  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested $39,525 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes 

 Prog/Fund #   Category:     

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
Attachments: 
Engagement Letters for: 

1. Annual Audit for the Town of Discovery Bay, Community Services District 
2. Preparation and submission of the Town of Discovery Bay CSD Financial Transaction Reports  
3. Preparation and submission of the Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority Financial Transaction Reports  

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: C6 



 

 

 

 

 

 

June 6, 2022 

 

Board of Directors and Julie Carter, Finance Manager 

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 

1800 Willow Lake Road 

Discovery Bay, California 94505 
 

 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the Town of 

Discovery Bay Community Services District for the year ending June 30, 2022.   
 

Audit Scope and Objectives 
 

We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 

the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 

fund information, and the disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements 

of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District as of and for the year ending June 

30, 2022. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) 

provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion 

and analysis (MD&A), to supplement Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District’s 

basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 

is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 

part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 

economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited 

procedures to Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District’s RSI in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). These limited 

procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 

information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 

inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 

basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 

information because the limited procedures do not provide us the sufficient evidence to express an 

opinion or provide any assurance.  The following RSI is required by GAAP and will be subjected 

to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 
 

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 
 

2. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -  

Major Special Revenue Fund. 
 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly 

presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP. Reasonable assurance is a high level 

of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 

in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
 



 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, 

they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements.  

 

The objectives also include reporting on internal control over financial reporting and compliance 

with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which 

could have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and the standards for financial audits 

contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 

States, and will include tests of your accounting records of the Town of Discovery Bay 

Community Services District and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express 

such opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, 

we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall 

presentation of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent 

financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 

regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting 

on behalf of the government. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government 

Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in 

financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste and 

abuse. 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal 

control, and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an 

unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the 

audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing 

Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements, or violations 

of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial 

statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, 

fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will 

also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental 

regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential.  Our responsibility as 

auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for 

which we are not engaged as auditors. 

 

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or 

events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to 

continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.  



 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded 

in the accounts, and may include direct confirmation of cash and certain other assets and liabilities 

by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and financial institutions. We may request 

written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for 

responding to this inquiry.  

 

Audit Procedures - Internal Control  

 

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control 

relevant to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinions. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls 

that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the 

financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and 

other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our 

tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal 

control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued 

pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. An audit is 

not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify deficiencies or material 

weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will 

communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters 

that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government 

Auditing Standards. 

 

Audit Procedures - Compliance 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 

material misstatement, we will perform tests of Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 

District’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, 

and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall 

compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant 

to Government Auditing Standards. 

 

Other Services 

 

We will also prepare standard, adjusting, or correcting journal entries and assist in preparing the 

financial statements of Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District in conformity with 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. We will also 

prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report of Town of Discovery Bay 

Community Services District. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under 

Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with applicable 

professional standards. The other services are limited to the services previously defined. We, in 

our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any 

action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 



You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related 

notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the 

management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related 

notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their 

issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services 

by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or 

experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 
 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility 

for designing, implementing and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that 

appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and ensuring that 

management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also 

responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, 

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and 

application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements and all accompanying information in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations 

and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 
 

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records and 

related information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You 

are also responsible for providing us with access to all information of which you are aware that is 

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, 

documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and 

transactions, and other matters; additional information that we may request for the purpose of the 

audit; and unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it 

necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written 

representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with 

laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by GAAS 

and Government Auditing Standards. 
 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements 

and confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected 

misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period 

presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each 

opinion unit taken as a whole. 
 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and 

detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government 

involving management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, and others where 

the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include 

informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the 

government received in communications from employees, former employees, regulators, or others. 

In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with 

applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and 

appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, or 

contracts or grant agreements that we report.



 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of 

audit findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and 

providing report copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits 

or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of 

this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant 

findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance 

audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current 

findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the 

report, and for the timing and format for providing that information.  

 

With regard to using the auditor’s report, you understand that you must obtain our prior written 

consent to reproduce or use our report in bond offering official statements or other documents. 

 

With regard to publishing the financial statements on your website, you understand that websites 

are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information 

contained in those sites or to consider the consistency of other information on the website with the 

original document. 

 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

 

Pauline Sanguinetti is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement 

and signing the report or authorizing another individual to sign it.  Our audit engagement ends on 

delivery of our audit report.  Any follow-up services that might be required will be a separate, new 

engagement.  The terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new, specific 

engagement letter for that service. 

 

It is our policy to keep records related to this engagement for seven years. However, Croce, 

Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. does not keep any original client records, so we will return those 

to you at the completion of the services rendered under this engagement. When records are returned 

to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect your records for possible future use, including 

potential examination by government or regulatory agencies. By your signature below, you 

acknowledge and agree that upon the expiration of the seven-year period, Croce, Sanguinetti, & 

Vander Veen, Inc. shall be free to destroy our records related to this engagement. 

 

We expect our fees for the audit services set forth in this letter for the fiscal year ending June 30, 

2022 not to exceed $35,000. We estimate an additional fee of $2,100 for time required due to the 

District’s acquisition of additional bond proceeds during the year ended June 30, 2022. Our 

invoices for the services outlined in this letter are payable on presentation.  The fee estimate is 

based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected 

circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, 

we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

 

You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter. If 

this occurs, we will communicate with you regarding the scope of the additional services and the 

estimated fees. We also may issue a separate engagement letter covering the additional services. 

In the absence of any other written communication from us documenting such additional services, 

our services will continue to be governed by the terms of this engagement letter. 



 

In the event that the District requires a single audit due to the expenditure of federal funds, we will 

perform such an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller  

General of the United States, the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, and the provisions of the 

Uniform Guidance.  Services rendered in order to meet the aforementioned requirements will be 

billed to you separately. 

 

Should any litigation or adverse action (such as audits by outside organizations and/or threatened 

litigation, etc.) by third parties arise against Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 

District or its officers subsequent to this engagement, which results in the subpoena of documents 

from Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. and/or requires additional assistance from us to 

provide information, depositions, or testimony, Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 

District hereby agrees to compensate Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. (at our standard 

hourly rates then in effect) for additional time charges and other costs (copies, travel, etc.) and to 

indemnify us for any attorney’s fees to represent Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. 

 

If any dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree to first try in good faith to settle 

the dispute by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association or other 

organization under its applicable rules for resolving professional accounting and related services 

disputes before resorting to litigation. The costs of any mediation proceeding shall be shared 

equally by all parties. 

 

Reporting 

 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit Town of Discovery Bay Community 

Services District’s financial statements. Our report will be addressed to those charged with 

governance of Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District. Circumstances may arise 

in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. 

Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, 

add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s 

report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, 

we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the 

audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or 

withdraw from this engagement.  

 

If circumstances occur related to the condition of your records, the availability of sufficient, 

appropriate audit evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the 

financial statements caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, 

which in our professional judgment prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion 

on the financial statements, we retain the right to take any course of action permitted by 

professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue a report, or withdrawing 

from the engagement.  

 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the 

financial statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 

agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as 

required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance 

and other matters will state (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of  
 



 

testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report 

is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 

considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The report will also state that the report 

is not suitable for any other purpose. If, during our audit, we become aware that Town of 

Discovery Bay Community Services District is subject to an audit requirement that is not 

encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those 

charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing 

standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may 

not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.  

 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 

District and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If 

you have any questions, please let us know.  If you agree with the terms of our engagement as 

described in this letter, please sign where indicated and return it to us. A copy of this engagement 

letter is enclosed for your files. 

 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

 

 

CROCE, SANGUINETTI, & VANDER VEEN, INC. 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

RESPONSE: 

 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 

District. 

 

 

Trustee signature:    

 

Title:    

 

Date:    



 

 

 

 

June 6, 2022 
 

 

Board of Directors and Julie Carter, Finance Manager 

Town of Discovery Bay  

   Community Services District 

1800 Willow Lake Road 

Discovery Bay, California 94505 
 

 

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and understanding of the services we are to provide 

for Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District for the year ending June 30, 2022. 
 

You have requested that we prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report of Town 

of Discovery Bay Community Services District for the year ending June 30, 2022.   
 

Our Responsibilities 
 

The objective of our engagement is to prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions 

Report in accordance with the requirements of the Controller of the State of California by 

January 31, 2023, which differ from accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America. We will conduct our engagement in accordance with Statement on Standards 

for Accounting and Review Services (SSARS) promulgated by the Accounting and Review 

Services Committee of the AICPA and comply with the AICPA’s Code of Professional Conduct, 

including the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence, and due care. 
 

We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you 

will provide to us for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion or a conclusion.  Accordingly, we will not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor 

provide any assurance on the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report. 
 

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any misstatements, including those 

caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within the entity or 

noncompliance with laws and regulations.  
 

Management Responsibilities 
 

The engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and 

understands that our role is to prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report in 

accordance with the requirements of the Controller of the State of California by January 31, 

2023. Management has the following overall responsibilities that are fundamental to our 

undertaking the engagement to prepare your Special Districts Financial Transactions Report in 

accordance with SSARS: 
 

a. The prevention and detection of fraud. 
 

b. To ensure that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its 

activities. 



 

 

c. The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other 

information, including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to 

prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report. 

 

d. To provide us with: 

 

i. Documentation, and other related information that is relevant to the preparation 

and presentation of the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report, 

 

ii. Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the preparation 

of the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report; and 

 

iii. Unrestricted access to persons within Town of Discovery Bay Community 

Services District of whom we determine necessary to communicate. 

 

As part of our engagement, we will issue a disclaimer that will state that the Special Districts 

Financial Transactions Report was not subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 

engagement by us and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, conclusion, nor provide any 

assurance on them. 

 

Other Relevant Information 

 

Pauline Sanguinetti is responsible for supervising the engagement. 

 

We expect our fees for the services set forth in this letter for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 

not to exceed $1,425. Our invoices for the services outlined in this letter are payable on 

presentation.  The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the 

assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement.  If 

significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee 

estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

 

It is our policy to keep records related to this engagement for seven years. However, Croce, 

Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. does not keep any original client records, so we will return 

those to you at the completion of the services rendered under this engagement. When records are 

returned to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect your records for possible future use, 

including potential examination by government or regulatory agencies. By your signature below, 

you acknowledge and agree that upon the expiration of the seven-year period, Croce, 

Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. shall be free to destroy our records related to this engagement. 

 

Should any litigation or adverse action (such as audits by outside organizations and/or threatened 

litigation, etc.) by third parties arise against Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 

District or its officers subsequent to this engagement, which results in the subpoena of 

documents from Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. and/or requires additional assistance 

from us to provide information, depositions, or testimony, Town of Discovery Bay Community 

Services District hereby agrees to compensate Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. (at our 

standard hourly rates ranging from $200/hour to $325/hour) for additional time charges and other 

costs (copies, travel, etc.). 



 

 

If any dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree to first try in good faith to settle 

the dispute by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association or other 

organization under its applicable rules for professional accounting and related services disputes 

before resorting to litigation.  The costs of any mediation proceeding shall be shared equally by 

all parties. 

 

You agree to hold us harmless and to release, indemnify, and defend us from any liability or 

costs, including attorney’s fees, resulting from management’s knowing misrepresentations to us. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 

District and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement.  

If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as 

described in this letter, please sign where indicated and return it to us. A copy of this engagement 

letter is enclosed for your files.  

 

Very truly yours, 

 

 

 

CROCE, SANGUINETTI, & VANDER VEEN, INC. 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

RESPONSE: 

 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Town of Discovery Bay Community 

Services District. 

 

 

Finance Manager signature:    

 

Title:    

 

Date:    

 

 

Director signature:    

 

Title:    

 

Date:    

 



 

 

 

 

 

June 6, 2022 
 

 

Board of Directors and Julie Carter, Finance Manager 

Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority 

1800 Willow Lake Road 

Discovery Bay, California 94505 
 

 

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and understanding of the services we are to provide 

for Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority for the year ending June 30, 2022. 
 

You have requested that we prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report of 

Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority for the year ending June 30, 2022.   
 

Our Responsibilities 
 

The objective of our engagement is to prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions 

Report in accordance with the requirements of the Controller of the State of California by 

January 31, 2023, which differ from accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America.  We will conduct our engagement in accordance with Statement on Standards 

for Accounting and Review Services (SSARS) promulgated by the Accounting and Review 

Services Committee of the AICPA and comply with the AICPA’s Code of Professional Conduct, 

including the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence, and due care. 
 

We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you 

will provide to us for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion or a conclusion. Accordingly, we will not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor 

provide any assurance on the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report. 
 

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any misstatements, including those 

caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within the entity or 

noncompliance with laws and regulations.  
 

Management Responsibilities 
 

The engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and 

understands that our role is to prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report in 

accordance with the requirements of the Controller of the State of California by January 31, 

2023. Management has the following overall responsibilities that are fundamental to our 

undertaking the engagement to prepare your Special Districts Financial Transactions Report in 

accordance with SSARS: 
 

a. The prevention and detection of fraud. 
 

b. To ensure that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its 

activities. 



 

 

c. The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other 

information, including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to 

prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report. 

 

d. To provide us with: 

 

i. Documentation, and other related information that is relevant to the preparation 

and presentation of the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report, 

 

ii. Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the preparation 

of the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report; and 

 

iii. Unrestricted access to persons within Discovery Bay Public Financing 

Authority of whom we determine necessary to communicate. 

 

As part of our engagement, we will issue a disclaimer that will state that the Special Districts 

Financial Transactions Report was not subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 

engagement by us and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, conclusion, nor provide any 

assurance on them. 

 

Other Relevant Information 

 

Pauline Sanguinetti is responsible for supervising the engagement. 

 

We expect our fees for the services set forth in this letter for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 

not to exceed $1,000. Our invoices for the services outlined in this letter are payable on 

presentation. The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the 

assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. If 

significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee 

estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

 

It is our policy to keep records related to this engagement for seven years. However, Croce, 

Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. does not keep any original client records, so we will return 

those to you at the completion of the services rendered under this engagement. When records are 

returned to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect your records for possible future use, 

including potential examination by government or regulatory agencies. By your signature below, 

you acknowledge and agree that upon the expiration of the seven-year period, Croce, 

Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. shall be free to destroy our records related to this engagement. 

 

Should any litigation or adverse action (such as audits by outside organizations and/or threatened 

litigation, etc.) by third parties arise against Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority or its 

officers subsequent to this engagement, which results in the subpoena of documents from Croce, 

Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. and/or requires additional assistance from us to provide 

information, depositions, or testimony, Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority hereby 

agrees to compensate Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. (at our standard hourly rates 

ranging from $200/hour to $325/hour) for additional time charges and other costs (copies, travel, 

etc.). 



 

 

If any dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree to first try in good faith to settle 

the dispute by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association or other 

organization under its applicable rules for professional accounting and related services disputes 

before resorting to litigation. The costs of any mediation proceeding shall be shared equally by 

all parties. 

 

You agree to hold us harmless and to release, indemnify, and defend us from any liability or 

costs, including attorney’s fees, resulting from management’s knowing misrepresentations to us. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority 

and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you 

have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as 

described in this letter, please sign where indicated and return it to us. A copy of this engagement 

letter is enclosed for your files.  

 

Very truly yours, 

 

 

 

CROCE, SANGUINETTI, & VANDER VEEN, INC. 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

RESPONSE: 

 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority. 

 

 

Finance Manager signature:    

 

Title:    

 

Date:    

 

 

Director signature:    

 

Title:    

 

Date:    



Presented in June 2022

Water and Waste Water Monthly Report 
Town of Discovery Bay



Weekly Safety Topics:

5/4 – Generator Training (Hands-on) 

5/11 – Insect Safety & Awareness

5/18 – Preventing Shoulder Injuries

5/25 – Heat Stress: Signs, Symptoms & First Aid 

VNA University:

Scaffolding Safety 

Excavation Safety

Safe Work Days: 4,659

Safety & 
Training



Active

01
Active

02
Active

06

Active

04
Active 
(Emergency)

05
Active

07

Water Well
Status

Willow WTP

Newport WTP



47.10

Production (MG)

2,010

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

Water Production 
& Chemicals 

Willow WTP

Newport WTP 55.00

Production (MG)

2,184

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

TOTAL 102.10

Production (MG)

4,194

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)



Water Production - Willow
Total Monthly Production



Water Production - Newport
Total Monthly Production



Coliform Samples Collected: 25

Water 
Compliance

Coliform Positive Results: 0

Water Quality Complaints: 0

Hydrant Flushing: 0

Valve Exercising: 0



Active

C
Active

D
Active

E

Lift Station
Status

Active

A
Active

F

Active

H
Active

J
Active

R
Active

G
Active

S

Active

Lakeshore

Active

Lakes

Active

Lakes 4

Active

Newport

Active

Bixler



0

Total Flow (MG)

0

Polymer (gal)

Wastewater Flow 
& Chemicals 

WW Plant 1

WW Plant 2

0

Influent Flow avg. (MG)

0

Discharge Flow avg. (MG)

34.05

Total Flow (MG)

1.21 1.10

0

Alum (gal)

Influent Flow avg. (MG) Discharge Flow avg. (MG)

34.21

Last Year Flow (MG)



WWTP 2 
Total Monthly Flow



WWTP 2 
Average Discharge Flow



WWTP 2 
Monthly Conductivity 



Effluent BOD5, mg/L < 10: 0.9

Wastewater
Compliance

Effluent TSS, mg/L < 10: 0.9

Total Coliform 7 day median < 23: ND

Total Coliform daily max < 240: ND

Eff NTU daily avg < 2: 1

Eff Ammonia (N), mg/L < 8.4: ND

Removal BOD5, monthly > 85%: 99.7%

Removal TTS, monthly > 85%: 99.7%

Conductivity annual avg < 2,400: 2,434



SSOs: 0

Maintenance
& Improvements 

Customer Inquires: 0



 

 
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

June 15, 2022 

 

Prepared By: Julie Carter, Finance Manager 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
  
Agenda Title 
 

Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Annual Assessment for the Ravenswood Improvement District – DB 
Lighting and Landscape Zone 9 for the Fiscal Year 2022-2023, Accept Engineer’s Report and Adopt Resolution No. 2022-
22. 
  
Recommended Action 
 

Accept Engineer’s Report and Adopt Resolution No. 2022-22 authorizing the Intent to Levy and Collection of Annual 
Assessments for the Ravenswood Improvement District – DB Lighting and Landscape Zone 9 for the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 and set the Public Hearing for July 6, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard. 
  
Executive Summary 
 

As part of the annual assessment process for the Ravenswood Improvement District – DB Lighting and Landscape Zone 
9, the Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors adopted Resolution 2022-14, which directed HERWIT Engineering to 
prepare the assessment report.  HERWIT provided the Draft Assessment Engineer’s Report to District Staff on June 7, 
2022.  In that report, HERWIT determined that based on operating costs (as shown on the Adopted Operating and Capital 
Budget for Discovery Bay Lighting and Landscape Zone 9) the per parcel assessment should be set at $779.12 which is 
the allowable maximum assessment for Zone 9.   
 

Factors leading to the assessment of $779.12 are: maintaining our emergency reserves, adequate funds for operations, 
and to replenish the reserves to fund future capital projects.  The reserves protect DB Lighting and Landscape Zone 9 
from any expensive repairs and maintenance in regards to the assets of the zone such as the landscaping, park structures 
and the splash pad.  The recommended assessment upholds the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 budget and prudently maintains 
the reserve balance.   
 

Staff requests direction from the Board of Directors regarding the increase of the DB Lighting and Landscape Zone 9 
Assessment.  If no change to the report is required; then staff requests that the attached Resolution, which approves 
HERWIT’s report and proposed assessments, be approved and adopted.  The Public Hearing approving the levy of the 
annual assessment will be held on the July 6, 2022 at the regular scheduled Board meeting.  
 
 

  
Fiscal Impact:  
Amount Requested  - None 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:    N/A 
   

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
Approval and Adoption of Resolution 2022-14 Directing HERWIT Engineering to prepare annual assessment report for 
the Ravenswood Improvement District (DB L&L #9) – 2022-2023. 
 
  
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 2022-22. 
2. Draft Assessment Engineer’s Report by HERWIT Engineering. 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: F1 



 

  1

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, 
A CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

INTENT TO LEVY AND COLLECT AN ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 
FOR THE RAVENSWOOD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT – DB L&L ZO NE #9 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (CSD), 

pursuant to a development agreement with the developer of that subdivision known as Ravenswood formed a 
landscaping, park, lighting, and open space district, for the purpose of providing for the operation and maintenance 
of landscaping, park, lighting, and open space installed in said subdivision by developer; and  

 
WHEREAS, said subdivision is generally located along Blake Court, Coleridge Way, Wilde Drive, 

Shakespeare Court, Slifer Court and Seuss Court, and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors now desires to declare its intention to levy an annual assessment within 
such district. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Town of Discovery Bay CSD as 

follows: 
 

SECTION 1. The Board of Directors of the Town of Discovery Bay CSD, in an effort to deter crime, provide Traffic 
safety, aid law enforcement, and provide a better neighborhood environment has formed an assessment district 
pursuant to California Streets & Highway Code, Division 15, Part 2, sections 22500 and following, and to levy and 
collect assessments there under, pursuant to Resolution 2005-03. 

SECTION 2. The improvements, the operation and maintenance of which are intended to be funded by the 
assessments levied by the proposed assessment district, include all expenses associated with the maintenance and 
operation of non-privately owned landscaping, park, lighting, and open space in the subdivision known as 
Ravenswood. 

SECTION 3. The assessment district consists of that property generally described as Subdivision 8710-
Ravenswood being a subdivision of a portion of the Northwest quarter of Section 26, Township 1 North, Range 3 
East, Mount Diablo Meridian as recorded in Book 458 of Maps, Pages 1-15, Contra Costa County Records. 

SECTION 4. The designation for the assessment district is “Ravenswood Improvement District” –DB L&L Zone 
#9. 

SECTION 5.  HERWIT Engineering has prepared and filed with the Secretary of the Board of Directors a report 
detailing the full and detailed designation of the improvements, and the boundaries of, and the proposed assessments 
upon assessable lots and parcels of land within, the Ravenswood Improvement District, and the Board of Directors 
hereby adopts and approves said report. 

SECTION 6. A hearing by the Board of Directors on the question of levy of annual assessments of the 
Ravenswood Improvement District –DB L&L Zone #9 for the fiscal year 2022-2023 year will be held at 7:00 p.m., on 
July 6, 2022, at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, CA 94505. 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-22 



 

  2

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY OF JUNE 2022. 

 

_________________________ 

Kevin Graves 
Board President 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution 2022-22 was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District at a regular meeting, held on June 15, 2022, by the following vote of the 
Board: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Dina Breitstein 
Board Secretary 
 
 



 

F1-2 2022_2023_Engineers_Rpt_for_L_L__9-DRAFT Page 1 of 4 

 
DRAFT ASSESSMENT ENGINEER’S REPORT 

 
Prepared for the 

 
TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY COMMUNITY 

SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

Landscaping, Park, Lighting and Open-Space 
Improvements District DB L&L #9 

 
For Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

 
Prepared by 

HERWIT Engineering 
 

6200 Center Street, Suite 310 
Clayton, California 94517 

(925) 672-6599 
 

JULY 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

F1-2 2022_2023_Engineers_Rpt_for_L_L__9-DRAFT Page 2 of 4 

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 
 

Director and President 
Kevin Graves 

 
Director and Vice President 

Ashley Porter 
 

Director 
Bryon Gutow 

 
Director 

Michael Callahan 
 

Director 
Carolyn Graham 

 
General Manager 

Dina Breitstein 
 

Interim Assistant General Manager 
Mike Davies 

 
Finance Manager 

Julie Carter 
 

Parks & Landscape Manager 
Bill Engelman 

 
District’s Attorney 

Neumiller & Beardslee 
 
 

Assessment Engineer 
HERWIT Engineering 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

F1-2 2022_2023_Engineers_Rpt_for_L_L__9-DRAFT Page 3 of 4 

Date: June 2022 
 

Assessment Engineers Report 
For 

Landscape, Park, Lighting and Open-Space District DB L&L #9, Zone #1 
 

Subdivision 8710 (Ravenswood) 
 
 
Pursuant to Governmental Code 61710 and procedures of the Landscaping and Lighting District Act of 1972, the 
Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (CSD) is responsible for the Landscape, Park, Lighting and 
Open-Space District DB L&L #9 submits this “Assessment Engineers Report” for the 2022-2023 year, which 
consists of five (5) parts as follows.  
 
PART A.  Plans and Specifications 
This part describes the improvements in this District. The plans, drawings and specifications are on file in the 
Town of Discovery Bay CSD District Office. A listing of these documents and drawings are outlined in the 
original Assessment Engineers Report approved in 2006.  
 
PART B.  Estimate of Cost 
This part contains an estimate of the cost of proposed improvements, including incidental costs and expenses in 
connection therewith, is as forth on the lists, which are on file in the Town of Discovery Bay CSD District office. 
 
PART C.  Method of Apportionment of Assessment 
This part contains the method by which the undersigned engineering firm has determined the amount proposed to 
be assigned against each parcel, based upon parcel classification of land within this District, in proportion to the 
estimated benefits to be received. This listing is also on file in the Town of Discovery Bay CSD District office. 
 
PART D.  District Diagram of Assessment 

 This part by reference of a diagram shows the parcel lot numbers that are within this District.  
 
PART E.  Property Owner List & Assessment Roll 
The listing of Assessed parcels and their owners are on file in the Town of Discovery Bay CSD District office. 
 
Engineers Assessment Report for 2021-2022 year 
 
During this time period the DB L&L #9, Zone #1 District financial report shows estimated end of year totals as 
follows: 
 
$  167,634 Annual assessments & investment revenue was received 
 
$  136,470 Annual expenses grounds maintenance, capital improvements, and administrative expenses. 
 
$  273,524     Fund total after 2021-2022 annual expenses.   
 
 
Current Assessment 
 
The 2021-2022 fiscal year assessment per parcel based on the engineer’s formula defined in the Assessment 
Engineers Report adopted in 2006 is $742.04 per parcel.  This is greater than the initial year assessment as 
defined in the Assessment Engineers Report due to increases in maintenance and utility costs, and to maintain 
the reserve account balance.   
 



 

F1-2 2022_2023_Engineers_Rpt_for_L_L__9-DRAFT Page 4 of 4 

Inflation Adjustment to Maximum Assessment 
 
The maximum assessment defined in the Assessment Engineers Report adopted in 2006 is $501 per parcel based 
upon build out of the facilities and maintenance of the storm water basins.  As specified in the Assessment 
Engineers Report, the maximum assessment is escalated annually by the consumer price index for San 
Francisco-Oakland-San Jose.   At the time of preparation and adoption of the Assessment Engineers Report, the 
CPI index as published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) for the Consolidated Metropolitan Statistical 
Area (CMSA) covering San Francisco – Oakland – San Jose reported for April 2006 was 208.9.  The base year 
for the index is an average of 1982, 1983, and 1984 (hence 1982-1984=100). On April 2022, the same CPI index 
is reported as 324.87.  Based upon the change in the CPI, the new maximum assessment allowed for the 2022-
2023 fiscal year is $ 779.12.   
 
Calculation of Maximum Reserve Account Balance 
 
As stated in the adopted Assessment Engineers Report, the total funds in the reserve account are limited to 
200% of the total funds collected by the District’s not to exceed annual assessment.  The new maximum not to 
exceed annual assessment allowable for the 2022-2023 fiscal year is $ 779.12.  This assessment is equally 
assessed to 203 parcels for an annual total of $ 158,161.36.  Therefore, the maximum Reserve Account Balance 
is $ 316,322.72.  After the reserve account has accrued to the maximum amount, any money received by the 
District in excess of annual maintenance and administrative costs will be returned to the property owner in the 
form of a reduced assessment in the following fiscal year.  
 
New Assessment for 2022-2023 Fiscal Year 
 
The District will incur normal expenses for the maintenance of the landscape District this year.  The District 
anticipates minimal charges for capital improvements to rehabilitate existing streetscapes and parks this fiscal 
year.  The estimated budget for 2022-2023 is $ 158.800.  This equates to $ 782.27 per parcel for all 203 parcels, 
which is greater than the maximum allowable assessment of $ 779.12 per parcel, or $ 158,161.36 maximum 
assessment. 
 
Based on this report, the assessment for 2022-2023 tax year should be $ 779.12 to minimize the decrease in the 
reserve fund balance.  The assessment for the 2022-2023 fiscal year is then $ 779.12 per parcel applied equally to 
all 203 parcels as defined in the adopted Assessment Engineers Report.  



 

 
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

June 15, 2022 

 

Prepared By: Julie Carter, Finance Manager 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
  
Agenda Title 
 

Public Hearing. Discussion and Possible Action to Adopt Resolution 2022-20 Adopting the Operating, Capital 
Improvement, and Revenue Budgets for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
  
Recommended Action 
 

Open the public hearing on Resolution 2022-20 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating, Capital and Revenue Budgets, accept 
any public comments, close the public hearing, and adopt Resolution 2022-20. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
At the Board Meeting on May 19, 2022, the Board of Directors were presented with the fiscal year 2022-23 preliminary 
budget to review and provide input to staff regarding the Town of Discovery Bay’s revenue and spending plans for the 
coming Fiscal Year. The presentation detailed the various components of the budget, including the programs, goals, and 
milestones.  
 
The budget document continues to reflect the same two-year forecast as has been the case for the past budget cycles. 
Staff has found the two-year budget process to be extremely beneficial for longer term planning purposes. While the Board 
is presented with a two-year budget, only the upcoming fiscal year budget will be adopted. Each successive year’s budget 
will result in the adoption of that year’s budget prior to the next fiscal year. 
 
Administration, Water & Wastewater Division  
The FY 2022-23 projected Operations and Maintenance (O&M) expenditures are $10,187,450 and the projected Capital 
Improvement Projects (CIP) total $14,078,300.  
 
Lighting & Landscaping Divisions 
The FY 2022-23 projected Zone #8 O&M budget is $926,077 with a CIP budget of $510,000.  
 
The FY 2022-23 projected Zone #9 O&M budget is $134,299 with a CIP budget of $25,000.  
 
Staff Recommends: 
1. Open the public hearing for public comment.  
2. Close the public hearing.   
3. Adopt Resolution 2022-20.  
 
 
 
 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item  
Presentation of the Preliminary Budget May 19, 2022  
Presentation of the Proposed Budget June 1, 2022 
  
Attachments 
 

1. Resolution 2022-20 
2. FY 2022-23 Operating, Capital Improvement Program, and Revenue Budgets. 
3. Notice of Public Hearing re Budget FY 2022-23.  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: F2 



 
 

1 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, 
A CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, 

ADOPTING THE OPERATING, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
AND REVENUE BUDGETS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

 
WHEREAS, The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District is required pursuant to California 

Government Code Section 61110 to annually adopt a budget that identifies certain types of expenditures for the fiscal 
year that begins July 1st of each year; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Finance Manager has prepared and submitted to the Board of Directors a Proposed Operating, 
Capital Improvement and Revenue Budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022 and ending on June 30, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors has considered the budget and the comments thereon and has determined 
that it is necessary for the efficient management of the District to appropriate revenues to the expenditure categories 
necessary to carry out the activities of the District as provided in the FY 2022-23 draft budget, and as may be amended. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The annual Operating, Capital and Revenue budgets for all operational functions of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District for FY 2022-23 is hereby adopted. 
 
SECTION 2. The Budget Document for FY 2022-23 is incorporated herein and is made a part of this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 3. The Board Secretary shall certify the adoption of this Resolution. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY OF JUNE 2022. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Kevin Graves 
Board President 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town of Discovery Bay 
Community Services District at a regularly scheduled meeting, held on June 15, 2022, by the following vote of the Board: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Dina Breitstein 
Board Secretary 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION 2022-20 

 



 
 

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District  

Contra Costa County, California 

 

 

 
 

June 15, 2022 

 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Proposed Budget 



ii | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Table of Contents 

Discovery Bay at a Glance ............................................................................................................................. 1 

Board of Directors ......................................................................................................................................... 4 

Message from the General Manager ............................................................................................................ 5 

Finance Services Department ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Water & Wastewater Services Department ................................................................................................. 7 

Lighting and Landscaping Services Department ........................................................................................... 8 

Recreation Services Department .................................................................................................................. 9 

District Consultants ..................................................................................................................................... 10 

District Mission, Vision, Goals & Values...................................................................................................... 11 

Budget Message .......................................................................................................................................... 12 

Strategic Goals ............................................................................................................................................ 13 

Goals, Objectives, and Action ..................................................................................................................... 14 

Authorized Positions ................................................................................................................................... 15 

Organizational Chart by Department .......................................................................................................... 16 

Salary & Wages ........................................................................................................................................... 17 

Minimum Wage Adjustment January 2022 ................................................................................................ 18 

The Budget Process ..................................................................................................................................... 19 

Budget Overview ......................................................................................................................................... 20 

Special District Administration Services Revenue, Operations & Maintenance, and Capital Improvements

 .................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

Water Services Revenue, Operations & Maintenance, and Capital Improvements ................................... 23 

Water Utility Rates ...................................................................................................................................... 28 

Wastewater Services Revenue, Operations & Maintenance, and Capital Improvements ......................... 29 

Wastewater Utility Rates ............................................................................................................................ 34 

Lighting & Landscaping, Community Center Zone #8 Services Revenue, Operations & Maintenance, and 

Capital Improvements ................................................................................................................................. 35 

Lighting & Landscaping Zone #8 Appropriations ........................................................................................ 40 

Lighting & Landscaping Zone #9 Services Revenue, Operations & Maintenance, and Capital 

Improvements ............................................................................................................................................. 41 

Lighting & Landscaping Zone #9 Engineer’s Report .................................................................................... 44 

Capital Projects ........................................................................................................................................... 45 



iii | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Public Financing Authority .......................................................................................................................... 48 

Debt Service ................................................................................................................................................ 49 

District Awards ............................................................................................................................................ 52 

Supplemental Information .......................................................................................................................... 53 



 

1 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Discovery Bay at a Glance 

The Town of Discovery Bay Community Service District: At a Glance 

Discovery Bay was established in the early 1970’s as a weekend and summer resort community.  Today, 

Discovery Bay has evolved into a thriving year-round home for more than 15,000 residents who enjoy 

small-town living against the backdrop of over 1,200 miles of Delta waterways.  Discovery Bay boasts a 

full-service marina, three (3) public schools, one (1) private school, as well as two (2) shopping centers. 

However, this small town is no longer limited to Delta waterfront homes; it has developed into a 

community that provides something for everyone.  Discovery Bay offers gated waterfront homes as well 

as Country Club homes located on an 18-hole championship golf course.  There are four (4) gated 

communities, Clipper Estates, The Country Club, Lakeshore and The Lakes.   

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District “District” is approximately 9 square miles and was 

formed in 1998 following a vote of the people to form an Independent Special District with the purpose 

of providing essential public services to its residents.  The Contra Costa County Local Agency Formation 

Commission (LAFCO) has authorized the District the responsibility of providing the following special 

services to the residents of Discovery Bay:  

• Water supply collection, treatment, and distribution 

• Wastewater collection, treatment, and distribution 

• Parks and Landscape Maintenance 

• Recreational Activities  

District Form of Government 

California’s Independent Special Districts are legislatively authorized under California Government Code 

Sections 61000-61850.  The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District is governed by an elected 

five (5) member Board serving staggered four (4) year terms.  The Board employs a General Manager to 

administer the day-to-day operations of the District.  

Population 

The census report states the total population in Discovery Bay to be 15,358 people.  

Water Services 

The Town of Discovery Bay CSD owns and maintains over fifty (50) miles of water mains in seven (7) 

residential developments: Discovery Bay West (Village 1, 2, 3 and 4, and Ravenswood); and two (2) of the 

older developments (Discovery Bay Proper and Centex).  Currently, the District owns and operates six (6) 

water production wells that are located throughout the District and are capable of producing seven million 

gallons of domestic water per day.   The raw water is then treated in two (2) water treatment facilities 

with water storage capacity of 2.5 million gallons of treated water for customer distribution.  The total 



 

2 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

water requirements of Discovery Bay are currently about 900 million gallons per year, which equates to 

an average daily demand of 2.5 million gallons per day. 

Wastewater Services 

The District provides wastewater collection, treatment, and distribution services to approximately 6,000 

homes and businesses located in the town. The wastewater treatment process goes through two (2) 

separate conveyance systems; Plant 1 and Plant 2.  Wastewater Treatment Plant 1 is located just north of 

Highway 4, within the Discovery Bay Development area.  Wastewater Treatment Plant 2 is located south 

of Highway 4 at the Town’s eastern boundary.  The two (2) plants are interconnected and are dependent 

upon each other for various functions.  

To facilitate and transport the raw wastewater to the main wastewater treatment, the District utilizes 15 

wastewater lift stations to move the waste through 50 miles of sewer mains.  The plants are capable of 

producing an average of 1.2 million gallons of wastewater per day.  The wastewater treatment plants 

currently include an influent pump station, influent screening, and secondary treatment facilities using 

oxidation ditches, sand filters, and ultraviolet (UV) disinfection before discharging the treated water into 

Old River.   

The water and wastewater facilities are operated and maintained by Veolia North America.  Under a multi-

year agreement with the District.  

Parks and Landscaping Services 

The District maintains all the public parks and landscaped areas in Discovery Bay.  Every budget year, the 

Board of Directors establishes priorities to improve the landscape areas of Discovery Bay.  The landscape 

areas in Discovery Bay are broken down into five (5) landscape zones.  Two (2) of those zones are owned 

by the District, with the remaining three (3) owned by Contra Costa County and maintained under contract 

by the District.  The five Landscaping & Lighting zones are:  

Discovery Bay Landscape & Lighting Zone #8 

Zone 8 is owned and maintained by the Town of Discovery Bay CSD.  This zone includes the Discovery Bay 

entrance from Highway 4, Clipper Drive, Discovery Bay Boulevard, Willow Lake Road, and a variety of 

smaller landscaped areas.   Cornell Park & Roberta Fuss Tot Lot are also included in this zone.  

 

Discovery Bay Landscape & Lighting Zone #9 (Ravenswood) 

Zone 9 is owned and maintained by the Town of Discovery Bay CSD. This zone includes the landscape 

streetscape frontages along Wilde Drive and Poe Drive.  Ravenswood Park is also included in this zone.  

 

Contra Costa County Landscape & Lighting Zone #35 

Zone 35 is owned by Contra Costa County but is maintained by the Town of Discovery Bay CSD.  The zone 

includes the landscaped median islands on Bixler Road at the intersection of Highway 4 and a pedestrian 



 

3 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

pathway from the Sandy Cove Shopping Center to Newport Drive.  There are also included two pedestrian 

bridges along the path. 

 

Contra Costa County Landscape & Lighting Zone #57 

Zone 57 is owned by Contra Costa County but is maintained by Town of Discovery Bay CSD.  This zone 

includes all landscaped streetscape frontages in and outside of the Centex Development, along Highway 

4, a portion of Bixler Road, and two (2) small parking areas.  Regatta Park is also included in this zone. 

 

Contra Costa County Landscape & Lighting Zone #61 

Zone 61 is owned by Contra Costa County but is maintained by Town of Discovery Bay CSD.  This zone 

includes landscaped streetscape frontages along a significant portion of Bixler Road, Point of Timber Road, 

the Park & Ride lot, a part of Newport Drive, Preston Drive, and Slifer Drive.  Slifer Park is also included in 

this zone.   

Recreation Services 

The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District is also responsible for providing recreational 

activities to the residents of the District.  The Community Center opened its doors to the public on 

January 2, 2014.  The Community Center offers a wide variety of programs for all ages and will continue 

to develop programming that will stimulate, educate and enrich the lives of people within Discovery 

Bay, and that is complemented by a system of parks, recreation areas and other facilities aimed to 

encourage recreational and leisure time activities. 

 



 

4 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Board of Directors 

The Town of Discovery Bay is a California independent Community Services District (CSD) and is 

governed by a five-member Board of Directors. Directors are publicly elected and serve four-year 

staggered terms. 

The Town of Discovery Bay is responsible for water, sewer, landscaping, parks and recreation. While the 

District does not have the jurisdiction or authority over land use, zoning, law enforcement or fire 

protection services, the District does advise the County on decisions that affect Discovery Bay. The 

District’s General Manager is tasked to carry out the policy decisions of the Board and oversee the day-

to-day operations of the Town of Discovery Bay. 

  

Kevin Graves, Ashley Porter, Bryon Gutow, Carolyn Graham, Michael Callahan 

Board Position and Term 

President Kevin Graves      12/2018 to 12/2022 

Vice-President Ashley Porter      10/2020 to 12/2022 

Director Bryon Gutow                           12/2018 to 12/2022 

Director Carolyn Graham              12/2020 to 12/2024 

Director Michael Callahan     12/2020 to 12/2024 



 

5 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Message from the General Manager 

The Town of Discovery Bay is not a city; rather we are a type of local government known as a 

Community Services District, or “CSD.”   In unincorporated areas such as Discovery Bay, basic services 

like water, sewer, law enforcement and fire protection are usually provided by the County. Because 

counties often consist of large and diverse geographical areas, providing a consistent and adequate 

service level across all areas can be difficult. Consequently, the Community Services District Law 

(Government Code §61000-61850) was created to provide an alternate method of providing services in 

unincorporated areas. In most cases, and due to the scope of their requirements, counties cannot 

provide tailored services to any one community. This leaves residents with little if any local control over 

services and no easy way to address problems or complaints. A CSD provides a method of offering local 

control on essential local services. 

The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District provides domestic water supply, treatment, and 

delivery, as well as wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal to the approximately 15,000 

residents and businesses that call Discovery Bay home. We are also responsible for park maintenance 

and landscaping on many of our boulevards, streets, and roads.  

The COVID-19 pandemic created the suspension of many Town activities during 2020 and through 2021; 

however, we are optimistic that during this FY22/23 budget year we will again see our Community 

Center and parks become a recreational hub with pickleball, tennis, swimming, dog park, Zumba, soccer, 

and many other year-round activities for all ages.  Besides a lazy afternoon fishing off your dock, taking a 

turn at the end of the tow rope, or hitting the links, there’s a lot to do in Discovery Bay!  

Discovery Bay is a great place to not only “Live Where You Play,” but it is also a great place to do 

business. The Discovery Bay Chamber of Commerce hosts monthly business “mixers” at different 

locations around town to show off the local business community. Check the Chamber’s website at 

www.discoverybaychamber.org  for additional information on their many community activities. 

From the standpoint of your local government, the CSD operates the water and wastewater utilities on a 

combined operating and capital budget of $27.7 million for the Fiscal Year 2022-23. The Capital 

Improvement Program are projects that continue to address the long-term capital needs of the District. 

A robust capital replacement fund represents an ongoing structural element of long-term financial 

sustainability. 

As Discovery Bay continues to mature, I can assure you that the Board of Directors and the entire staff 

are working diligently to provide a comfortable place where residents can live, work and play and where 

we can enjoy the many qualities of life we all like in a small town. Please join us at one of our Board of 

Directors’ meetings that are held the first and third Wednesday of the month at 7:00 p.m.  Each meeting 

agenda is posted on the Town’s website:  www.todb.ca.gov.  The District Office can be reached during 

normal business hours at (925) 634-1131 or visit the main office at 1800 Willow Lake Road, Discovery 

Bay CA 94505.  Remember to Like us on Facebook and Instagram! 

Sincerely, 

Dina Breitstein, General Manager 



 

6 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Finance Services Department 

The Town of Discovery Bay CSD Finance Services Department operates under the Board of Directors who 

are the policy-making body of the District.  The General Manager serves as the Administrative head and 

Treasurer of the District. The Finance program operates a governmental accounting, reporting, and 

records maintenance system that provides financial information to management.  This program controls 

and monitors the receipt and disbursement of public funds in compliance with statutory requirements 

and professional accounting standards. The Finance Services Department also has the responsibility for 

coordinating all external auditing functions. 

 The finance function is responsible for the continuing development of financial accounting software and 

implementation of new technology to increase efficiency in accounting processes and to improve both 

internal and external reporting. This program also oversees the implementation of any new accounting 

pronouncements by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  

The payroll function of this program processes payroll for all District employees including interfacing 

with the District’s payroll service provider to assure compliance with all regulatory requirements, laws 

and District policies pertaining to payroll. 

 

Key Achievements 

 Timely completion of annual audits with unqualified (clean) audit findings 

 Structurally balanced budget  

 Sufficient Reserves 

 Successful Bond Financing for Denitrification and Well 8 projects. 

 Moved Town Treasury services away from Contra Costa County Treasury 

Goals  

 Ensure expenditures are consistent with adopted policies 

 Move towards paperless documentation. Continue implementation and updating technologies to 

increase efficiencies to ensure accurate reporting 

 

 

Accounting 
& Financial 

Services

Utility 
Billing & 

Collection



 

7 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Water & Wastewater Services Department 

WATER 

This Program provides water production, treatment and distribution to over 6,000 homes and 

businesses.  Specifically, the Water Program includes information necessary for the Board of Directors to 

establish priorities and make well-informed decisions concerning the Town’s water systems.  The Water 

Quality program is responsible for the enforcement of regional water quality regulations. Response 

procedures have been developed to react to citizen water quality complaints and to pursue water 

misuse observed in the field. The program also assists with the development of water quality 

educational materials and outreach. 

The Water Utility function maintains and operates automated water meters for the District’s 6,000+ 

water accounts.  The technology transmits hourly water consumption data to our billing system by a 

wireless network.  This reliable and frequent water usage information allows customers to monitor use 

and detect leaks.  The Eye on Water portal https://eyeonwater.com/signup is a tool for account holders 

to monitor daily water usage data and learn ways to conserve. 

WASTEWATER 

The Town of Discovery Bay Wastewater Program provides for the collection, conveyance, treatment, 

and discharge of treated effluent.  Specifically, the Wastewater Program includes information necessary 

for the Board of Directors to establish priorities and make well-informed decisions regarding the Town’s 

wastewater matters.  In general, the wastewater program supports and directs the wastewater 

contractor, enabling them to carry out day-to-day operations, services and planning efforts.  This 

program negotiates, administers, implements, and approves contracts for the provision of municipal 

services. 

Key Achievements  

 Finishing Edgeview Pipeline Project.  

 Started Denitrification project. 

 Completed Willow Lake and Newport water treatment Filters B. 

 Ordered Vac-Truck. 

Goals 

 Continue construction of the Denitrification project. 

 Start Outfall Diffuser Project. 

 Water Treatment Filters A rehab at Newport and Willow. 

 Receive delivery of Vac-Truck. 

 

Water 
Infrastructure

Water Quality 
Controls

Water Utility
Wastewater 

Infrastructure 
Wastewater 

Controls



 

8 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Lighting and Landscaping Services Department 

The Parks and Landscaping Program provides for the planning, maintenance and capital needs of the 

parks and landscaping network in Discovery Bay.  Specifically, the Parks and Landscaping Program 

includes information necessary for the Board of Directors to establish priorities and make well-informed 

decisions concerning Town parks and landscaping matters.  This program offers a comprehensive 

maintenance and rehabilitation program for five (5) parks and the streetscapes inside Discovery Bay.  

The maintenance and rehabilitation program includes repair and maintenance of the parks within Zones 

8, 9, 35, 57, 61 and the Park and Ride. This program conducts preventative maintenance on 

streetscapes, which includes design and planting and ensuring proper drainage. This program maintains 

and replaces plants and trees to provide health, vitality and visual appeal as well as manage annual 

inventory lists to project funding and scheduling of future repairs, projects, and replacement. 

 

Key Achievements  

 Dryscaping Discovery Bay Blvd medians 

 Dryscaping Zone 57 parking area landscapes 

 Per Capita “Grant” - Prop 68 awarded 

 

Goals 

 Clipper Drive enhancements 

 Willow Lake Island enhancements 

 Complete Prop 68 ‘Per Capita” Grant Projects 

 Slifer Park basketball court resurfacing 

 Zone 35 (Bixler Road Median) enhancements 

 

 

 

Park 
Maintenance

Streetscapes Landscape



 

9 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Recreation Services Department 

Recreation Services provides community-based and age-appropriate recreational programming.  The 

Discovery Bay Community Center acts as the hub for these activities and is complimented by a network 

of parks, fields and other recreational and educational venues. 

 

Key Achievements  

 Community Pool and adjacent structure rehabilitation completed 

 Pool furniture and umbrellas purchased 

 Synthetic turf installed 

 Purchased and installed new windscreens on all tennis and pickleball courts at Community Center    

 Dog park drainage repairs 

 Activity Guide distributed digitally resulting in annual savings 

 Advertising on Facebook and Instagram 

 Tennis courts 1, 2, 3 to be resurfaced this fiscal year 

 Installed security cameras and lighting at Community Center for safety 

 Golf cart parking in progress 

 Summer Jam Concerts restarted 

 

Goals 

 Rebuilding community recreational programming stalled by COVID-19 shutdowns; update safety 

protocols as required 

 Hiring lifeguards for a successful aquatics season 

 Examine current special interest recreational opportunities offered and look for new and creative 

ways to expand current offerings   

 Continue the development and expansion of community relationships with local groups  

 Examine current special interest recreational opportunities offered and look for new and creative 

ways to expand current offerings   

 

 

Community 
Center

Recreation 
Services

Town 
Events



 

10 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

District Consultants 

General Counsel 

Law Office of Neumiller & Beardslee 

The District’s General Counsel provides legal advice and training to the Board of Directors, General 

Manager and Department Heads.  The General Counsel investigates and defends claims against the 

District and resolves them as directed by the Board of Directors.  At the direction of the Board of 

Director’s General Counsel may initiate litigation to enforce the District’s rights or to protect the public 

health, safety or welfare.  The General Counsel also drafts and approves the form of contracts and other 

legal documents, including ordinances, resolutions and legal notices.  

 http://neumiller.com/ 

 

Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers (Water) 

Luhdorff & Scalmanini, Consulting Engineers (LSCE) is a recognized leader in groundwater resources 

investigation, planning, development, use, protection, and management.  LSCE’s multi-disciplinary staff 

of engineers, geologists, hydrologists, and hydrogeologists apply scientific methods and develop 

forward-thinking engineering solutions to today’s complex water resource problems. 

http://lsce.com/ 

 

Herwit Engineering (Wastewater) 

HERWIT ENGINEERING plans and designs water and wastewater treatment plants and pump stations of 

all sizes with a specialty in mechanically intensive systems. HERWIT provides services for all elements 

necessary to develop projects from ground zero through operations and completion of construction. 

These services include: overall project management, initial site assessment and selection, management 

of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) permitting, negotiation and preparation of National 

Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) discharge permits, preparing Army Corps of Engineers 

permits, Department of Fish and Game stream bed alteration permits, development of pre-design 

reports and preliminary cost estimates, final design of all mechanical, electrical and civil facilities, 

bidding support services, construction management, engineering support services during construction, 

and startup and operations assistance. 

http://herwit.com 

 

 

 



 

11 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

District Mission, Vision, Goals & Values 

The Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors has adopted its Mission, Vision, Goals, and Values. 

These ideals serve as an important guide as the Town of Discovery Bay conducts its day-to-day business 

and interacts with the public. 

MISSION 

Provide effective and fiscally responsible municipal services in a manner which promotes a high 

standard of community life with a focus on the environment and the Delta in partnership with the 

community. 

VISION 

Maintain a full service and sustainable community 

Grow in harmony with the environment and the Delta 

Ensure assets and facilities are maintained, serviceable, and in compliance with all regulatory laws, 

regulations, and rules 

Promote practices that provide enhanced and sustainable life now and for future generations 

GOALS 

Responsible management of public funds 

Preservation of our neighborhoods and natural resources 

Provide timely, effective and transparent communications between government and our citizens 

Continually improve the quality of our services 

Promote and protect the environment 

Take pride in community assets 

Champion diversity and inclusion 

Provide leadership while considering all points of view, to ultimately set policy and make decisions 

based on what is in the best interest of the entire community 

Recognize pioneers of the community 

 

VALUES 

Innovation * Accountability * Respect * Integrity * Professionalism 



 

12 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Budget Message 

Dear Board of Directors, 

I am honored to submit to the Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors the District’s financial plan for the 

fiscal period July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023.  The annual Revenue, Operating, and Capital Improvement 

Program budgets are the planning tools utilized by staff and the Board to track revenues and expenditures 

over the respective forecast period. 

This budget states program goals for each department, considering the desires of the Board, the expectations 

of the public, the needs of the department, and available resources. Each manager was given the opportunity 

to directly participate in the budget process, allowing them to share their expertise and to offer options and 

solutions.  Adoption of a budget that includes specified program goals ensures a unified effort and sets forth 

a work plan for the year. 

Several major projects are expected to continue or commence this year, including a water well, the state-

mandated denitrification project, mainline pipe replacements, lift station upgrades, and the purchase of a 

new Vac Truck.  The District formed an ad hoc committee to access the relocation of the office building which 

is currently located on Willow Lake Road.  The Lighting and Landscaping department will be working on the 

upgrade of Cornell Park under the Prop 68 ‘Per Capita’ Grant along with the renovation of Clipper Drive.  

District security continues to be an ongoing project to ensure our cybersecurity and assets are protected.     

The District obtained bond financing of $16.86 million to fund the planning and construction of Well 8 and 

partially fund the denitrification project.  Bi-annual debt service payments will begin December 1, 2022.  Out 

credit rating remained at a “AA” rating help keep our interest rate low. 

From an operational standpoint, the District continues to operate efficiently and in a manner that is 

financially prudent.  The water and wastewater departments continue to refine their perspective capital 

plans into the future to enable timely replacement and funding of aging infrastructure.  The Community 

Center has restarted its programing that was shut-down for almost 2 years due to the COVID-19 pandemic.   

I am pleased to present a budget where the District’s operating and infrastructure necessities are met while 

offering a strategic look at the overall assets of the District.  Staffing levels meet projected needs; ongoing 

training continues to improve service levels and financial management policies continue to guide the District 

in decision-making that is grounded and consistent over time.  

I would like to thank the District staff for their contributions toward producing the budget. I am delighted to 

work with employees that care deeply about the Town of Discovery Bay.  I, along with staff, look forward to 

serving the community, executing the District’s capital projects, and working together to build and maintain 

long-term fiscal sustainability. 

I would also like to thank the entire Board of Directors for their support over the past fiscal year.  In preparing 

for the next fiscal year and continuing into the future, I expect that the District will continue to remain 

resourceful, innovative, and successful.   

Respectfully submitted, 

Julie Carter, Finance Manager 



 

13 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Strategic Goals 

 

Town Of 
Discovery Bay 

CSD

Fiscal 
Sustainability

Quality of Life

Organizational 
Transparency

Organizational 
Development

Capital 
Investments



 

14 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Goals, Objectives, and Action 

Goal Objective Performance Outlook 
Fiscal Sustainability • Balance Revenues and 

expenditures to ensure 

fiscal stability 

• Monitor trends in key 

revenue sources 

• Provide core services in an 

efficient and effective 

manner 

• Review expenditure vs. 

budget reports for each 

department on a monthly 

basis 

• Conduct a quarterly 

review and make 

adjustments as needed 

 

Quality of Life • Focus on key services, 

programs, and activities 

for seniors and youth. 

• Partner with service clubs 

to promote community-

wide events 

• Maintain and expand 

parks throughout the 

community 

• Provide quarterly reports 

on activities for youth, 

seniors, and park & 

recreation programs 

Organizational Transparency • Post key information on 

the District’s website 

• Use media to inform and 

engage the public 

• Prepare the budget in a 

user-friendly, informative 

& transparent format 

• Post all agendas, reports, 

and contracts on the 

District’s website 

• Post all policy documents 

and resolutions on the 

website 

• Prepare the budget in a 

user-friendly, informative 

& transparent format 

Organizational Development • Evaluate staffing levels to 

ensure adequate delivery 

of core services 

• Provide training and 

resources to sustain a 

talented workforce 

• Maintain accountability 

and recognition of 

employees 

• Prepare a long-term 

staffing plan 

• Develop training of key 

management and 

supervisorial staff 

• Uphold and maintain 

safety training 

Capital Investments • Prioritize and evaluate 

needed capital 

investments 

• Deliver capital projects on 

time and within budget 

• Seek funding 

opportunities to fund 

infrastructure projects 

• Continuous updates to 

District master plans 

 



 

15 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Authorized Positions 

Current and Future Positions 

Position Title FY 2019-2020 FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 

Office Assistant 2 2 2 2 

Administrative 

Assistant 

2 2 2 2 

Executive Assistant 1 1 1 1 

Accounting/Project 

Analyst 

0 0 0  1 

Accountant 1 1 1 1 

Water Services 

Technician I 

2 2 2 2 

Water Services 

Technician II 

1 1 1 1 

Parks & Maintenance 

Worker I 

1 1 1 1 

Parks & Maintenance 

Worker II 

2 2 2 2 

Parks & Maintenance 

Worker III 

1 1 1 1 

Recreation Programs 

Supervisor 

1 1 1 1 

Parks & Landscape 

Manager 

1 1 1 1 

Water & Wastewater 

Manager 

1 1 1 1 

Finance Manager 1 1 1 1 

Projects Manager 1 1 1 1 

Assistant General 

Manager 

1 1 1 1 

General Manager 1 1 1 1 

Total  20 20 20 21 



 

16 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Organizational Chart by Department 

 

File: S:/TODB 

Wastewater 
Maintenance 

 

Water Utility & 
Maintenance 

Herwit 
Engineering 

Veolia 
Wastewater 

Veolia       
Water 

Luhdorff & 
Scalmanini  

Park 
Maintenance 

Streetscape 
Maintenance 

Accounting 

Customer 
Billing 

Finance Water Wastewater 
Lighting & 

Landscaping 
Recreation 

Community 
Center 

Parks & 
Recreation 

General 
Manager 

Projects 
Manager Executive 

Assistant 

Board of 
Directors 

Legal     
Counsel 

Board 
Clerk 

Projects 
Analyst 

Assistant 
General 
Manager 



 

17 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Salary & Wages 

  Range # Bottom Step 

Hourly 

Biweekly· Monthly● Top Step 

Hourly* 

Biweekly● Monthly● 

100 Series – Temporary/Intermittent 

Staff 

              

Recreation Leader I  100 $15.00  $1,200  $2,600  $15.20  $1,216  $2,635  

Recreation Leader II  105 $15.25  $1,220  $2,643  $15.45  $1,236  $2,678  

Lifeguard 110 $15.50  $1,240  $2,687  $15.90  $1,272  $2,756  

Lifeguard/Swim Instructor and 

Recreation Leader III 

115 $16.00  $1,280  $2,773  $16.40  $1,312  $2,843  

Pool Supervisor 125 $17.50  $1,400  $3,033  $18.30  $1,464  $3,172  

200 Series – Non-Management Staff   Range # Bottom Step 

Hourly  

Monthly● Annual● Top Step 

Hourly 

Monthly● Annual● 

Park/Landscaper/Maintenance I  220 $22.71  $3,936  $47,237  $25.70  $4,455  $53,456  

Park/Landscaper/Maintenance II  235 $27.02  $4,683  $56,202  $30.57  $5,299  $63,586  

Park/Landscaper/Maintenance III 250 $29.81  $5,167  $62,005  $33.73  $5,846  $70,158  

Office Assistant/Customer Service 

Representative A 

225 $23.28  $4,035  $48,422  $26.34  $4,566  $54,787  

Office Assistant/Customer Service 

Representative B 

230 $25.69  $4,453  $53,435  $29.06  $5,037  $60,445  

Account Clerk  240 $27.68  $4,798  $57,574  $31.32  $5,429  $65,146  

Administrative Assistant/Parks-

Recreation Assistant A 

245 $28.36  $4,916  $58,989  $32.09  $5,562  $66,747  

Administrative Assistant/Parks-

Recreation Assistant B 

260 $31.31  $5,427  $65,125  $35.42  $6,139  $73,674  

Sr. Account Clerk 255 $30.57  $5,299  $63,586  $34.59  $5,995  $71,947  

Accountant I 275 $32.28  $5,595  $67,142  $42.36  $7,342  $88,109  

Executive Assistant A 270 $35.44  $6,143  $73,715  $40.10  $6,951  $83,408  

Executive Assistant B  280 $39.13  $6,782  $81,390  $44.27  $7,673  $92,082  

Project Analyst 265 $38.47  $6,666  $80,000  $50.48  $8,750 $105,000  

Water Tech I  210 $24.47  $4,241  $50,898  $27.68  $4,798  $57,574  

Water Tech II 270 $35.44  $6,143  $73,715  $40.10  $6,951  $83,408  

Water Tech III 280 $39.68  $6,878  $82,534  $43.79  $7,590  $91,083  

Series 300:  Management Staff Range # Bottom Step 

Hourly 

Monthly● Annual● Top Step 

Hourly 

Monthly● Annual● 

Recreation Programs Supervisor 300 $34.58  $5,994  $71,926  $44.26  $7,672  $92,061  

Manager: Parks/Landscape 345 $43.60  $7,557  $90,688  $54.45  $9,438  $113,256  

Managers: Finance; Water/Wastewater 350 $44.44  $7,703  $92,435  $55.50  $9,620  $115,440  

Series 400:  Senior Management Staff Range # Bottom Step 

Hourly 

Monthly● Annual● Top Step 

Hourly 

Monthly● Annual● 

Assistant General Manager 400 $53.34  $9,245  $110,947  $66.62  $11,547  $138,570  

General Manager         $120.19  $20,833  $249,995  

Projects Manager 425 $79.88            



 

18 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Minimum Wage Adjustment January 2022 

The State of California minimum wage will increase year over year.  The below table represents how the 

minimum wage increase affects the District Temporary & Intermittent Staff Salary Range Table.   

 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5  

Recreation Leader I $15.00 $15.05 $15.10 $15.15 $15.20 

Recreation Leader II $15.25 $15.30 $15.35 $15.40 $15.45 

Lifeguard $15.50 $15.60 $15.70 $15.80 $15.90 

Lifeguard/Swim Instructor & Rec 

Leader III 

$16.00 $16.10 $16.20 $16.30 $16.40 

Assist. Pool Supervisor $16.50 $16.70 $16.90 $17.10 $17.30 

Pool Supervisor $17.50 $17.70 $17.90 $18.10 $18.30 

 

◦ The number in blue represents the immediate effect. 

◦ The numbers in red are the new pay scale rates. 

 

 

 

 
 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5  

Recreation Leader I $15.50 $15.75 $16.00 $16.25 $16.50 

Recreation Leader II $16.75 $17.00 $17.25 $17.50 $17.75 

Lifeguard $18.00 $18.25 $18.50 $18.75 $19.00 

Lifeguard/Swim Instructor & Rec 

Leader III 

$19.25 $19.50 $19.75 $20.00 $20.25 

Assist. Pool Supervisor $20.50 $20.75 $21.00 $21.25 $21.50 

Pool Supervisor $21.75 $22.00 $22.25 $22.50 $22.75 

 

Proposed Minimum Wage Increase January 2023 



 

19 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

The Budget Process 

 

 

 

January: Operating budget preparations begin with the analysis of the current year’s budget, which helps to 

determine the base budget for the following year, including capital projects.   

February: Budget guidelines and instructions are distributed to each Department Manager.  Department 

Managers meet with Finance Manager to discuss their budget requests. 

March:  Department Managers meet with the Finance Manager to review the preliminary budget, the budget 

is prioritized, refined, and compiled into the preliminary budget to present to the Finance Committee.  

April: Preliminary Budget is presented to Finance Committee for input and guidance. 

May: The preliminary budget is presented to the Board of Directors at the Budget Workshop; Finance 

Manager completes final budget. 

June:  The final budget is presented and adopted by the Board of Directors. 

Annual 
Budget 
Cycle

January

Analysis of 
Budget to date 
and Planning 

Process

February 

Input requests 
are received 

from 
Departments

March

Preliminary 
Budget is 

prioritized and 
reviewed by staff

April 

Preliminary 
Budget presented 

to Finance 
Committee 

May 

Preliminary 
budget presented 

to the Board of 
Directors

June

Budget 
Adoptions

Fiscal Years 2023 & 2024 

The Budget is a 

spending management 

plan for the District’s 

financial resources.  

Through the use of 

these resources, 

services are provided to 

meet the needs of the 

Town of Discovery Bay’s 

residents.  

 

The District’s annual 

budget process begins 

in January and 

concludes in June where 

the final budget is 

adopted. 

2 Year Budget Build 



 

20 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Budget Overview 

The Town of Discovery Bay supports the Water Department, Wastewater Department, two Lighting and 

Landscaping Department Zones 8 & 9 and Special District Administration (Zone 35, 57, 61).  Data is for 

budget year 2022-2023. 

District Revenue 

 

 

District Expenditures 

 

1%

40%

51%

7%
1%

District Revenues

Special District Admin

Water Services

Wastewater Services

Lighting & Landscape Zone 8

Services

Lighting & Landscape Zone 9

Services

1%

39%

51%

8%
1%

District Expenditures

Special District Admin

Water Services

Wastewater Services

Lighting & Landscape Zone

8 Services

Lighting & Landscape Zone

9 Services



 

21 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Special District Administration Services Revenue, Operations & 

Maintenance, and Capital Improvements 

The Special District Administration Fund revenue and expenditures cover all the Contra County Special 

District transactions for Contra Costa Lighting and Landscaping Zones 35, 57, & 61 which are maintained 

by the Town of Discovery Bay and reimbursed back to the District from Contra Costa County.  These 

Zones included the following: 

• Zone 35 includes the landscaped median islands on Bixler Road at the intersection of Highway 4, 

and a pedestrian pathway from the Sandy Cove Shopping Center to Newport Drive and two 

pedestrian bridges along the path. 

 

• Zone 57 includes all landscaped streetscape frontages in and outside of the Centex Development 

along Highway 4, a portion of Bixler Road, and two (2) small parking areas.  Regatta Park is also 

included in this zone. 

 

• Zone 61 includes landscaped streetscape frontages along a major portion of Bixler Road, Point of 

Timber Road, the Park & Ride lot, a portion of Newport Drive, Preston Drive, and Slifer Drive.  Slifer 

Park is also included in this zone.   

Revenue 

Account 

Code 

Revenue Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date FY 

2021-2022 thru 

4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

10-31-5226 Landscape Reimbursable 93,701  35,000  26,754  35,000  35,000  
 

Total $93,701  $35,000  $26,754  $35,000  $35,000  

 

Expenditures 

Account 

Code 

Expenditures Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date FY 

2021-2022 thru 

4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

10-41-7529 Landscape Related Reimbursable 95,349  35,000  44,072  35,000  35,000  

10-41-8000 Operating Transfers Out 65,743  0  0  0  0  

  Total $161,092  $35,000  $44,072  $35,000  $35,000  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

22 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Capital Improvements 

Capital Improvements are planned by Contra Costa County Public Works Department.  For Fiscal year 

2022-2023 the following projects are planned 

• Zone 35 - add ballast lighting to the walking path. 

• Zone 61 - refurbish the basketball court at Slifer park. 

Special District Administration Services Notations 

Contra Costa County increased the budgets for the Landscaping & Maintenance Zones 35, 57 and 61 by 

an aggregate of $18,900 from the 2021/2022 budget.  The District is continuing with its review of these 

zones and the sustainability to financially maintain them.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

Separate payroll and vehicle budgets are no longer included the wastewater department.  The expenses 

are paid out and reimbursed to wastewater monthly. Any amounts due from the county at 6/30/2022 

will be recorded in Accounts Receivable for the wastewater department.  

  2021-2022 

Budget 

2022-2023 

Budget 

YoY 

Variance 

% Variance 

Zone 35            21,700       25,100          3,400  16% 

Zone 57            61,700       61,200           (500) -1% 

Zone 61          200,000     216,000       16,000  8% 



 

23 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Water Services Revenue, Operations & Maintenance, and Capital 

Improvements 

The revenue table below identifies the various sources of revenue that are anticipated during the next 

fiscal year.  The primary source of the water revenue is derived from monthly volume water usage.  

Revenue Details 

Account 

Code 

Revenue Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

20-31-5102 SEC Collections Account Charge 1,548,751  1,569,961  1,537,908  1,598,310  1,627,047  

20-31-5145 Meter Installation Fee 333,823  335,218  279,645  335,218  335,218  

20-31-5179 Misc.-Water Service Fees 3,956  10,000  14,171  10,000  10,000  

20-31-5151 Grant 67,530  0  38,934  0  0  

20-31-5226 Water Meter Rental 500  500  325  500  500  

20-31-5243 Other (Misc./Developer Fees) 32,438  2,000  44,918  10,000  10,000  

20-31-6000 Water Charges 2,960,014  2,816,625  2,182,435  2,901,000  2,959,020  

20-31-6030 Connection Fees CIP 400  6,000  100  6,000  6,000  

20-31-6045 Capacity Fee CIP 19,400  15,000  4,850  15,000  15,000  

20-31-6046 Permit Fee 200  5,000  0  5,000  5,000  

20-31-6047 Inspection Fee 640  5,000  160  5,000  5,000  

20-31-6086 Meter Charge-Commercial 87,416  80,000  73,733  85,000  90,000  

  Total Revenue 5,055,067  4,845,304  4,177,179  4,971,028  5,062,785  

 

Expenditure Details 

Account 

Code 

Expenditures Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

20-41-7000 Salary & Wages 509,863  608,549  464,936  592,103  621,708  

20-41-7001 Overtime 0  2,000  0  2,000  2,000  

20-41-7003 ER Taxes 37,913  60,855  20,977  59,210  62,171  

20-41-7030 Group Insurance 92,362  121,000  80,122  110,000  120,000  

20-41-7045 Workers Comp 5,105  14,720  8,244  19,200  20,160  

20-41-7060 457 B/401a Plans 22,419  44,800  25,865  30,000  30,900  

20-41-7105 Reimbursement of Insurance (41,259) (40,000) (8,865) (40,000) (40,000) 

20-41-7150 Temporary Employees 0  3,000  20,868  3,000  3,000  

20-41-7165 Board of Directors Compensation 10,772  22,500  9,476  22,500  22,950  

 



 

24 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Account 

Code 

Expenditures Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

20-41-7180 Training Conferences Travel 1,854  31,000  3,686  31,000  31,620  

20-41-7210 Dues & Subscriptions 0  500  0  0  0  

20-41-7225 Memberships 8,198  8,000  8,927  9,000  9,000  

20-41-7255 TODB Sponsored Events 50  4,000  0  10,000  10,000  

20-41-7271 Consulting Services 338,195  306,300  197,446  285,700  305,300  

20-41-7272 Water Service Contract 686,458  700,000  582,022  720,000  741,600  

20-41-7276 Contract Mailing 35,510  41,000  32,104  47,000  49,350  

20-41-7280 Veolia Pass-Thru Expenses 170,729  132,500  83,780  132,500  132,500  

20-41-7286 Legal - General 33,653  59,455  17,078  70,000  70,000  

20-41-7288 Legal - Litigation 215  18,800  0  10,000  10,000  

20-41-7301 Annual Audit Services 11,589  27,500  132  15,000  15,450  

20-41-7316 Election Expense 5,132  0  0  6,000  0  

20-41-7317 Advertising 960  2,000  85  2,000  2,000  

20-41-7318 Public Relations 0  6,000  0  1,000  1,000  

20-41-7319 Internet Website 1,200  4,800  1,536  4,800  4,800  

20-41-7345 Public Communications and Notice 186  2,400  0  2,400  2,400  

20-41-7361 Telephone - general 5,201  5,500  3,357  5,750  5,923  

20-41-7362 Telecom - networking 6,564  5,600  5,756  5,600  5,600  

20-41-7363 Telephone - cellular 3,245  6,000  3,189  6,000  6,000  

20-41-7376 Construction Material Repair 132,703  125,000  47,150  137,500  137,500  

20-41-7392 Vehicle & Equipment - Fuel 8,672  10,000  8,525  15,000  15,450  

20-41-7393 Vehicle & Equipment Sup & Rep 7,705  4,400  5,213  6,000  6,000  

20-41-7404 Water Meter and Registers 73,903  70,000  237,857  70,000  70,000  

20-41-7406 General Repairs 429,538  450,000  271,830  450,000  475,000  

20-41-7409 Info System - Maintenance 23,316  22,000  17,696  23,000  23,000  

20-41-7410 Equipment Maintenance  2,388  3,600  1,675  3,600  3,600  

20-41-7411 Software Hosting 26,659  35,845  25,817  40,000  42,000  

20-41-7412 Computer Equipment & Supplies 776  3,500  1,278  3,500  3,500  

20-41-7413 Miscellaneous Small Tools 4,577  4,000  3,124  4,000  4,000  

20-41-7414 Equipment Repair  378  400  653  400  400  

20-41-7415 Computer Software 1,314  4,000  570  4,000  4,000  

20-41-7422 Minor Equipment/Furniture 0  2,000  0  2,000  2,000  

20-41-7423 Office Furniture 3,600  5,000  0  3,000  3,000  

20-41-7424 Postage 818  1,000  2,160  1,000  1,000  

20-41-7425 Office Supplies 9,619  10,000  8,382  10,000  10,000  

20-41-7437 Rent Public Meetings 0  200  0  200  200  

20-41-7438 Building Rent 13,200  13,200  13,200  13,200  13,200  

20-41-7439 Equipment Rental/Leasing 1,089  3,000  892  3,000  3,000  



 

25 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Account 

Code 

Expenditures Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

20-41-7440 Facility Maintenance - Landscape 5,840  5,000  4,250  5,000  5,000  

20-41-7441 Building Maintenance 9,685  12,000  5,439  12,000  12,000  

20-41-7451 Insurance Liability & Property 67,856  94,365  94,865  128,068  160,085  

20-41-7466 Permits & Fees 39,645  45,000  45,260  45,000  45,000  

20-41-7469 Personal Protective Equipment 1,578  3,000  1,430  3,000  3,000  

20-41-7470 Safety Equipment & Supplies (344) 1,400  114  1,400  1,400  

20-41-7481 Utilities/Electrical Cost 508,843  567,069  377,899  575,424  604,196  

20-41-7483 Utilities/Waste Cost 16,247  12,000  6,077  12,000  12,000  

20-41-7495 Chemicals 5,938  0  30,207  50,000  52,500  

20-41-7510 Freight 0  800  0  800  800  

20-41-7511 UPS/Courier 0  320  0  320  320  

20-41-7526 Miscellaneous Bank Charges 23,170  25,000  20,268  25,000  25,625  

20-41-7527 Miscellaneous Services & Suppl 920  1,500  1,152  1,500  1,538  

20-41-7532 Miscellaneous 23,077  2,000  (23,077) 2,000  2,000  

20-41-7533 Bad Debt 217  5,000  0  5,000  5,000  

20-41-7536 Debt Service/Operating Transfer Out 143,608  455,844  144,224  548,940  548,596  

20-41-7545 Revenue Collection 1,787  2,400  2,099  2,400  2,460  

20-41-7547 Payroll Wire Transfer Fee 251  1,040  212  500  500  

20-41-7549 Public Works - Permits 0  20,000  4,531  20,000  20,000  

20-41-7550 Property Taxes 643  1,200  157  1,200  1,200  

20-41-7587 Developer Deposit Reimbursement 20,377  3,000  36,322  10,000  10,000  

  Total  3,594,336  4,223,863  2,960,609  4,400,715  4,575,500  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Improvement Details 



 

26 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Capital Improvements Actual  Budgeted  Actual YTD Budgeted  Budgeted  

FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024 

CIP for Water Supply 

Capacity (Source, 

Treatment and Storage) 

  1,248,000 
 

1,200,000 2,400,000 

Upgrades and 

Maintenance for 

Existing Water Supply 

Facilities 

  755,500   1,448,000 2,513,000 

Water Distribution 

System/Pipeline 

Replacements 

  750,000   2,250,000 1,500,000 

Additional Capital 

Improvements - Water 

Distribution System & 

Maintenance 

      250,000   

Master Plans   50,000   50,000  

Relocation of District 

Office Building 

 

 160,000  300,000 500,000 

Water/WW Combined 

Project Total (trucks, 

repairs, equipment) 

  224,000                             24,000 300,000 

Total  $1,104,775  $3,187,500  $83,560  $5,522,000  $7,213,000  

 

In fiscal year 2022/2023, the District will begin the Capital Improvement Projects which include: 

• the design and site acquisition for Well #8 

• begin long-term mainline pipeline replacement program 

• Filter repair at Newport & Willow Treatment Plants 

• cathodic protection 

• relocation of District office building 

 For a complete listing of capital projects and associated costs please see page 46.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

27 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

 

Budgeted Fund Summary 

 

The water revenue is distributed to the O&M Funds, the Capital Improvements Funds, the Revolving 

Funds and the Reserve Funds per the annual budget.   

O&M Funds are District revenues and expenses needed to operate the Water Services Department.  This 

fund maintains a balance of 20-22% of the O&M expenses for operational cash flow.   

Capital Improvement Funds are District revenues and expenses needed for capital improvements of the 

water distribution systems.  These funds are generally budgeted revenues comprised of water volume 

use and capacity and connection fees.    

Revolving Funds are for the future maintenance or improvements of the water infrastructure system, 

pumps, generator facilities, and vehicles replacements.   

Reserve Funds have been established for emergency use for the water utility system.  This reserve is 

30% of the water operating budget.   

In May 2022, the District completed bond financing of $5 million to pay for the design and construction 

of Well 8.  Well 8 is estimated to be completed in fiscal year 2024/2025. 

 

 

 

 

Water Fund 

Summary 

Year End 

Fund 

Balance  

FY 20/21 

Budgeted  

Revenues              

FY 21/22 

Budgeted  

Expenses                      

FY 21/22 

Budgeted 

Fund 

Balance  

FY 21/22 

Estimated 

Revenues              

FY 22/23 

Estimate 

Expenses                

FY 22/23 

Estimate 

Fund 

Balance  FY 

22/23 

Estimated 

Revenues              

FY 23/24 

Estimate 

Expenses                

FY 23/24 

Estimate 

Fund 

Balance              

FY 23/24 

Beginning Fund 

Balance(Carryover) 
4,403,477 8,515,084     5,949,025     2,197,338     

O&M Funds 718,246 4,223,863 4,223,863 718,246 4,400,715 4,400,715 718,246 4,575,500 4,575,500 718,246 

Bond Financing       0 1,200,000   1,200,000 2,400,000   3,600,000 

Capital 

Improvement 

Funds 

5,009,684 371,441 3,187,500 2,193,625 320,313 5,522,000 
     

(3,008,062) 
237,285 7,213,000 

     

(9,983,777) 

Revolving Funds 1,262,154 250,000 0 1,512,154 250,000   1,762,154 250,000 0 2,012,154 

Reserve Funds 1,525,000 0 0 1,525,000 0 0 1,525,000 0 0 1,525,000 

YE Fund Balance $8,515,084  $13,360,388  $7,411,363  $5,949,025  $12,120,053  $9,922,715  $2,197,338  $9,660,123  $11,788,500  ($2,128,377) 



 

28 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Water Utility Rates 

 



 

29 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Wastewater Services Revenue, Operations & Maintenance, and Capital 

Improvements 

The revenue table below identifies the various sources of revenue that can be anticipated during the 

next fiscal year.  The primary source of the Wastewater revenue is derived from Property Tax charges 

for the collection, conveyance, treatment, and discharge of treated effluent.   

Revenue 

Account Code Revenue Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

21-31-5101 SEC Collections Wastewater 5,991,418  6,037,153  5,949,471  6,134,148  6,228,622  

21-31-5177 Reimbursements 0  6,300  0  0  0  

21-31-5179 Misc. 2,233  0  0  0  0  

21-31-5243 Other (Misc./Developer Fees) 56,793  10,000  8,043  10,000  10,000  

21-31-6015 Sewer Charges-Commercial 110,517  157,000  94,566  157,000  157,000  

21-31-6030 Connection Fees CIP 400  0  200  10,000  10,000  

21-31-6045 Capacity Fee CIP 48,120  65,000  12,030  65,000  65,000  

21-31-6046 Permit Fee 0  5,000  0  5,000  5,000  

21-31-6047 Inspection Fee 640  5,000  160  5,000  5,000  

21-31-6086 CO ZONES VEHICLE REIMBURSABLE 0  0  0  0  0  

21-31-6087 CO ZONES PAYROLL 

REIMBURSABLE 

0  0  12,722  0  0  

  Total  6,210,120  6,285,453  6,077,193  6,386,148  6,480,622  

 

 

Expenditures 

Account Code Expenditures Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

21-41-7000 Salary & Wages 506,704  677,607  545,755  718,553  754,480  

21-41-7001 Overtime 0  2,000  0  2,000  2,000  

21-41-7003 ER Taxes 63,362  67,761  66,770  71,855  75,448  

21-41-7030 Group Insurance 140,952  180,000  119,028  180,000  185,400  

21-41-7045 Workers Comp 7,658  22,080  12,366  28,800  33,120  

21-41-7060 457 B/401a Plans 33,490  67,200  33,235  45,000  46,350  

21-41-7105 Reimbursement of Insurance (61,888) (50,000) (81,788) (50,000) (50,000) 

21-41-7150 Temporary Employees 0  5,000  24,753  5,000  5,000  

21-41-7165 Board of Directors Compensation 16,138  22,500  14,214  22,500  22,950  

21-41-7180 Training Conferences Travel 1,013  30,000  12,890  30,000  30,000  



 

30 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Account Code Expenditures Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

21-41-7210 Dues & Subscriptions 0  2,600  0  2,600  2,600  

21-41-7225 Memberships 8,874  12,000  5,055  12,000  12,000  

21-41-7255 TODB Sponsored Events 75  6,000  0  10,000  10,000  

21-41-7270 Environmental Studies 4,791  0  0  0  0  

21-41-7271 Consulting Services 141,934  234,000  75,010  156,300  162,660  

21-41-7272 Wastewater Service Contract 1,029,687  1,044,000  873,032  1,079,000  1,111,370  

21-41-7280 Veolia Pass-Thru Expenses 217,611  340,000  245,689  240,000  240,000  

21-41-7286 Legal - General 51,430  121,900  18,845  100,000  100,000  

21-41-7288 Legal - Litigation 323  25,000  0  10,000  10,000  

21-41-7301 Annual Audit Services 17,341  36,300  198  22,000  22,660  

21-41-7316 Election Expense 7,697  0  0  10,000  0  

21-41-7317 Advertising 1,262  3,000  417  3,000  3,000  

21-41-7345 Public Communications and Notice 0  3,600  0  3,600  3,600  

21-41-7361 Telephone - general 10,480  15,000  7,802  15,000  15,000  

21-41-7362 Telecom - networking 10,855  15,000  10,729  15,000  15,000  

21-41-7363 Telephone - cellular 3,208  6,000  3,537  6,000  6,000  

21-41-7376 Road/Construction Materials 0  3,000  0  3,000  3,000  

21-41-7392 Vehicle & Equipment - Fuel 1,760  6,000  3,644  7,500  7,500  

21-41-7393 Vehicle & Equipment Sup & Rep 9,779  30,000  2,037  30,000  30,000  

21-41-7406 General Repairs (4,714) 150,000  74,594  75,000  75,000  

21-41-7409 Info System - Maintenance 35,732  33,000  31,332  40,000  40,000  

21-41-7410 Equipment Maintenance 2,407  5,400  2,647  5,400  5,400  

21-41-7411 Software Hosting 9,337  17,400  9,337  17,400  17,400  

21-41-7412 Computer Equipment & Supplies 639  6,000  1,071  6,000  6,000  

21-41-7413 Miscellaneous Small Tools 482  3,000  449  3,000  3,000  

21-41-7414 Equipment Repair 0  600  976  600  600  

21-41-7415 Computer Software 1,368  1,500  760  1,500  1,500  

21-41-7424 Postage 1,141  1,500  3,013  1,500  1,500  

21-41-7425 Office Supplies 7,279  10,000  5,600  10,000  10,000  

21-41-7438 Building Rent 19,800  19,800  19,800  19,800  19,800  

21-41-7439 Equipment Rental/Leasing 805  4,000  821  4,000  4,000  

21-41-7440 Facility Maintenance - Landscape 275  2,400  6,788  2,400  2,400  

21-41-7441 Building Maintenance 6,786  12,000  8,445  12,000  12,000  

21-41-7451 Insurance Liability & Property 101,647  141,547  141,547  184,012  230,014  

21-41-7466 Permits & Fees 49,524  55,000  41,164  55,000  55,000  

21-41-7468 NPDES Permits & Fines 6,000  70,000  0  70,000  70,000  

21-41-7469 Personal Protective Equipment 0  1,000  1,518  1,000  1,000  

21-41-7470 Safety Equipment & Supplies (339) 3,000  (44) 3,000  3,000  



 

31 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Account Code Expenditures Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

21-41-7481 Utilities/Electrical Cost 500,572  557,007  406,761  550,424  577,946  

21-41-7483 Utilities/Waste Cost 4,986  2,000  8,888  2,000  2,000  

21-41-7495 Chemicals-Veolia 17,743  0  0  12,000  12,000  

21-41-7510 Freight 0  1,000  0  1,000  1,000  

21-41-7526 Miscellaneous Bank Charges 88  1,000  996  1,000  1,000  

21-41-7527 Miscellaneous Services & Suppl 1,454  4,500  1,669  4,500  4,500  

21-41-7533 Bad Debt 719  5,000  0  1,000  1,000  

21-41-7534 Special Expense 3,055  2,000  3,932  2,000  2,000  

21-41-7536 Debt Service/Operating Transfer 

Out 

1,206,089  1,342,687  849,539  1,848,491  1,843,647  

21-41-7545 Revenue Collection 3,627  7,000  3,399  7,000  7,000  

21-41-7547 Payroll Wire Transfer Fee 376  1,500  319  1,500  1,500  

21-41-7549 Public Works - Permits 0  3,500  0  3,500  3,500  

21-41-7550 Property Taxes 11,501  18,000  11,758  2,000  2,000  

21-41-7587 Developer Deposit Reimbursement 3,960  10,000  0  10,000  10,000  

  Total  3,649,079  5,419,889  3,631,414  5,736,735  5,885,846  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

32 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Capital Improvements 

Capital Improvements Actual  Budgeted  Actual YTD Budgeted  Budgeted  

FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024 

Annual Wastewater Lift 

Station Improvements 

                           

200,000  

  550,000 500,000 

Additional Capital 

Improvements - Wastewater 

System & Maintenance 

  80,000    

Denitrification Project                            

10,000,000  

 5,924,300 2,500,000 

Wastewater Equipment and 

vehicle replacements (Vac 

Truck/V Truck 

Pumpstations/Solar Dryer 

Panels) 

                                           

930,000   

 847,000 817,000 

Wastewater Infrastructure 

Repair (Outfall Diffuser) 

 800,000    649,000 - 

Master Plans                                            

100,000   

 100,000 100,000 

Relocation of District Office 

Building 

 

 240,000  450,000 750,000 

Water/WW Combined 

Project Total (trucks, repairs, 

equipment) 

                          

576,000  

 36,000 37,000 

Total $979,616  $12,686,000  $6,272,691  $8,556,300 $5,045,000 

 

In fiscal year 2022/2023, the District will begin the Capital Improvement Projects which include multiple 

wastewater treatment plant modifications such as: 

• Denitrification  

• Lift Station upgrades   

• New Vac Truck (ordered waiting on delivery) 

• Solar dryer panel replacements at Plant 2 

• Outfall Diffuser Repair 

• relocation of District office building 

For a complete listing of capital projects and associated costs please see page 46.    

 

 

 

 

 



 

33 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

 

Budgeted Fund Summary 

 

 

The wastewater revenue is distributed to the O&M Funds, the Capital Improvements Funds, the 

Revolving Funds and the Reserve Funds per the annual budget.   

O&M Funds are District revenues and expenses needed to operate the Wastewater Services 

Department.  This fund maintains a balance of 20-22% of the O&M expenses for operational cash flow.   

Capital Improvement Funds are District revenues and expenses needed for capital improvements of the 

water distribution systems.  These funds are generally budgeted revenues comprised of rate payers and 

capacity and connection fees.    

Revolving Funds are for the future maintenance or improvements of the wastewater infrastructure 

system, pumps, generators facilities, and vehicles replacements.   

Reserve Funds have been established for emergency use for the wastewater system.  This reserve is 30% 

of the water operating budget.   

In May 2022, the district completed $13 million of bond financing, and will spend $ 7 million of District 

reserves to fund the $20 million Denitrification project. 

In fiscal year 19/20, the District completed a rate study to properly plan for the costs of these future 

projects.  

 

Wastewater Fund 

Summary 

Year End 

Fund 

Balance  FY 

20/21 

Budgeted  

Revenues              

FY 21/22 

Budgeted  

Expenses                      

FY 21/22 

Budgeted 

Fund 

Balance  FY 

21/22 

Estimated 

Revenues              

FY 22/23 

Estimate 

Expenses                

FY 22/23 

Estimate 

Fund 

Balance  FY 

22/23 

Estimated 

Revenues              

FY 23/24 

Estimate 

Expenses                

FY 23/24 

Estimate 

Fund 

Balance              

FY 23/24 

Beginning Fund 

Balance(Carryover) 
4,403,477 16,227,107      4,416,671      9,509,784      

O&M Funds 3,630,796 4,759,280  5,419,889  2,970,187  5,736,735  5,736,735  2,970,187  5,885,846  5,885,846  2,970,187  

Bond Financing       0  13,000,000    13,000,000      13,000,000  

Capital 

Improvement 

Funds 

8,133,285 1,261,173  12,686,000  (3,291,542) 374,413  8,556,300  (11,473,429) 319,776  5,045,000  (16,198,653) 

Revolving Funds 2,632,426 275,000  0  2,907,426  275,000    3,182,426  275,000  0  3,457,426  

Reserve Funds 1,830,600 0  0  1,830,600  0  0  1,830,600  0  0  1,830,600  

YE Fund Balance $16,227,107  $22,522,560  $18,105,889  $4,416,671  $23,802,819  $14,293,035  $9,509,784  $15,990,406  $10,930,846  $5,059,560  



 

34 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Wastewater Utility Rates 

 

  



 

35 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Lighting & Landscaping, Community Center Zone #8 Services Revenue, 

Operations & Maintenance, and Capital Improvements 

The Lighting and Landscaping Zone #8 (Zone 8) receives its revenues from property taxes 

(appropriations limit set by the California Department of Finance); and from cost recovery fees and 

charges derived from the recreational classes, facility rentals, donations, and community center events. 

Revenue 

Account Code Revenue Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to 

Date FY 2020-

2021 thru 

4/30/2022 

Budgeted 

FY 2022-

2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

40-31-5106 Current Secured Property Tax 727,328  690,840  719,766  704,657  718,750  

40-31-5148 Advertising Revenue 2,850  500  700  500  510  

40-31-5149 Community Center Program Fees 1,825  30,000  17,824  40,000  40,800  

40-31-5150 Community Center Events 0  1,500  0  1,000  1,020  

40-31-5195 Interest Income 26,849  0  0  0  0  

40-31-5226 CCC Vehicle Reimbursement 74,393  75,000  54,423  75,000  76,500  

40-31-5243 Other 0  6,000  0  6,000  6,000  

40-31-6000 Recreation Revenue 0  2,500  (1,065) 0  0  

40-31-6050 Gifts & Contributions 42,145  4,000  10,000  4,000  4,080  

40-31-6695 Rentals 34,257  38,000  38,427  39,000  39,780  

40-31-6999 Community Center Pool Fee 0  6,000  0  7,500  7,650  

  Total 909,647  854,540  840,075  877,657  895,090  

 

Expenditures 

 

Account Code Expenditures Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted 

FY 2022-

2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

40-41-7000 Salary & Wages 146,905  130,000  120,965  170,000  178,500  

40-41-7001 Overtime 0  0  0  1,000  1,020  

40-41-7003 ER Taxes 0  13,009  0  0  0  

40-41-7105 Reimbursement of Insurance 33,090  13,009  0  0  0  

40-41-7150 Temporary Employees 7,588  0  2,588  0  0  

40-41-7180 Training Conferences Travel 912  2,000  533  2,000  2,040  

40-41-7225 Memberships 208  600  175  600  612  

40-41-7286 Legal - General 918  1,000  643  1,000  1,020  

40-41-7301 Annual Audit Services 2,200  2,200  0  2,200  2,244  



 

36 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Account Code Expenditures Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted 

FY 2022-

2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

40-41-7317 Advertising 814  50  0  50  51  

40-41-7361 Telephone - general 0  600  0  600  612  

40-41-7362 Telecom - networking 924  0  0  0  0  

40-41-7363 Telephone - cellular 1,507  2,000  1,031  2,000  2,040  

40-41-7376 Road/Construction Materials 0  500  0  500  510  

40-41-7392 Vehicle & Equipment - Fuel 9,189  10,000  6,353  10,000  10,200  

40-41-7393 Vehicle & Equipment Sup & Rep 3,213  3,500  6,831  3,500  3,570  

40-41-7409 Info System - Maintenance 0  800  0  800  816  

40-41-7410 Equipment Maintenance & Repair 6,219  4,000  1,374  4,000  4,080  

40-41-7412 Computer Equipment & Supplies 0  150  690  150  153  

40-41-7413 Miscellaneous Small Tools 2,057  2,000  1,732  2,000  2,040  

40-41-7414 Equipment Repair 940  0  814  0  0  

40-41-7421 Cleaning Supplies 59  500  0  500  510  

40-41-7424 Postage 0  150  0  150  153  

40-41-7425 Office Supplies 964  1,000  782  1,000  1,020  

40-41-7439 Equipment Rental/Leasing 1,360  2,460  790  2,460  2,509  

40-41-7440 Facility Maintenance - Landscape 115,358  45,000  52,910  45,000  47,250  

40-41-7441 Building Maintenance 1,266  6,500  9,088  6,500  6,630  

40-41-7451 Insurance Liability & Property (1,191) 5,000  8,000  5,000  5,100  

40-41-7466 Permits & Fees 50  100  50  100  102  

40-41-7469 Personal Protective Equipment 2,151  3,000  1,936  3,000  3,060  

40-41-7481 Utilities/Electrical Cost 82,073  92,000  65,827  93,840  95,717  

40-41-7482 Utilities/Water Cost 52,869  50,000  40,511  51,000  52,020  

40-41-7483 Utilities/Waste Cost 6,926  5,000  2,755  5,000  5,100  

40-41-7527 Miscellaneous Services & Suppl 362  500  481  500  510  

40-41-7544 Reimbursement for County Admin 0  500  0  500  510  

40-41-7545 Revenue Collection 5,515  5,500  5,357  5,700  5,814  

40-41-7549 Public Works - Permits 0  500  0  500  500  

40-41-7550 Property Taxes 911  2,000  911  2,000  2,040  

40-41-7551 CCC DB Sign Replacement 244  2,000  307  2,000  2,040  

40-41-8000 Salary & Wages 118,490  137,792  107,027  170,000  178,500  

40-41-8001 Overtime 0  0  0  1,000  1,020  

40-41-8002 Partime Time & Seasonal Staff 0  93,137  0  107,882  110,040  

40-41-8003 ER Taxes 0  23,093  0  0  0  

40-41-8075 Reimbursement of Wages 0  13,779  0  0  0  

40-41-8150 Temporary Employees 418  0  13,014  0  0  

40-41-8180 Training Conferences Travel 354  1,000  1,385  1,500  1,530  

40-41-8225 Memberships 1,057  1,000  1,119  1,020  1,040  



 

37 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Account Code Expenditures Actuals FY 

2020-2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date 

FY 2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted 

FY 2022-

2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

40-41-8255 Donation Expenditures 0  29,000  3,035  41,000  41,820  

40-41-8256 Events 0  1,500  4,486  6,530  6,661  

40-41-8286 Legal - General 1,697  3,500  280  3,500  3,570  

40-41-8301 Annual Audit Services 1,000  1,000  0  1,000  1,020  

40-41-8317 Advertising 12,762  5,250  5,117  5,355  5,462  

40-41-8361 Telephone - general 2,386  3,560  2,322  3,560  3,631  

40-41-8362 Telecom - networking 2,963  3,000  2,212  3,000  3,060  

40-41-8363 Telephone - cellular 646  720  864  720  734  

40-41-8406 General Repairs 0  2,000  500  2,040  2,081  

40-41-8408 Special Equipment 0  0  0  0  0  

40-41-8409 Info System - Maintenance 0  2,000  0  2,000  2,040  

40-41-8410 Equipment Maintenance 140  800  0  800  816  

40-41-8411 Software Hosting 4,573  5,000  3,717  5,000  5,100  

40-41-8412 Computer Equipment & Supplies 0  500  97  500  510  

40-41-8413 Miscellaneous Small Tools 0  500  490  500  510  

40-41-8415 Computer Software 904  1,000  413  500  510  

40-41-8424 Postage 2,136  250  0  250  255  

40-41-8425 Office Supplies 3,688  4,000  2,214  4,080  4,162  

40-41-8440 Facility Maintenance - Landscape 5,660  12,000  24,936  15,000  15,300  

40-41-8441 Building Maintenance 5,958  8,000  11,783  15,000  15,300  

40-41-8442 Pool Maintenance 816  3,000  5,764  3,060  3,121  

40-41-8451 Insurance Liability & Property 3,000  6,000  0  6,000  6,120  

40-41-8466 Permits & Fees 4,387  2,000  1,192  2,000  2,040  

40-41-8469 Personal Protective Equipment 0  600  1,056  1,000  1,020  

40-41-8470 Safety Equipment & Supplies 138  1,000  1,737  1,020  1,040  

40-41-8481 Utilities/Electrical Cost 4,799  28,000  11,585  26,000  26,520  

40-41-8482 Utilities/Water Cost 11,631  14,000  7,694  14,000  14,280  

40-41-8483 Utilities/Waste Cost 3,849  6,000  5,155  6,000  6,120  

40-41-8495 Chemicals 0  10,000  2,890  10,000  10,200  

40-41-8526 Miscellaneous Bank Charges 1,569  3,500  1,718  3,500  3,570  

40-41-8527 Miscellaneous Services & Suppl 374  500  2,051  510  520  

40-41-8543 Program Fees 2,897  22,500  11,909  30,000  30,600  

40-41-8550 Property Taxes 470  500  470  500  510  

  Total $672,308  $859,309  $572,283  $926,077  $956,138  

 

 

 



 

38 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

 

Capital Improvements 

Account 

Code 
Capital Improvements 

Actual  Budgeted  Actual YTD Budgeted  Budgeted  

FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024 

  Landscaping/Streetscapes    - 510,000 - 

  Parks 269,897 151,000 354,480  50,000 

  Building/Equipment         

  Total  $269,897  $151,000  $354,480  $510,000  $50,000 

 

Zone #8 maintains the front entrance into Discovery Bay, the streetscapes, Cornell Park, and manages 

the Community Center park grounds.  In fiscal year 22/23 plans are underway to complete: 

• Clipper Drive enhancements 

• Willow Lake Island Enhancements 

• Complete Cornell Park upgrades funded by Prop 68 ‘Per Capita’ Grant 

For a complete listing of capital projects and associated costs please see page 46.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

39 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

 

Budgeted Fund Summary 

 Zone 8 Fund 

Summary  

Year End 

Fund 

Balance  

FY 20/21 

Budgeted  

Revenues              

FY 21/22 

Budgeted  

Expenses                      

FY 21/22 

Budgeted 

Fund 

Balance  FY 

21/22 

Estimated 

Revenues              

FY 22/23 

Estimate 

Expenses                

FY 22/23 

Estimate 

Fund 

Balance  

FY 22/23 

Estimated 

Revenues              

FY 23/24 

Estimate 

Expenses                

FY 23/24 

Estimate 

Fund 

Balance              

FY 23/24 

 Beginning Fund 

Balance(Carryover)  

        

4,403,477  

      

2,243,772  
    

     

2,111,283  
    

     

1,552,863  
    

 O&M Funds  
                              

-   

           

819,355  

          

800,844  

                  

18,511  

          

877,657  

        

926,077  

              

(29,909) 

         

895,090  

       

956,138  

             

(90,957) 

 Hofmann Funds 
         

1,372,422  
    

           

1,372,422  
  

        

370,000  

        

1,002,422  
    

       

1,002,422  

 Capital 

Improvement 

Funds  

              

331,350  

            

(35,000) 

          

151,000  

               

145,350  

           

(35,000) 

        

140,000  

              

(29,650) 

          

(35,000) 

          

50,000  

          

(114,650) 

 Revolving Funds  
              

140,000  

              

35,000  

                          

-   

               

175,000  

             

35,000  
  

             

210,000  

            

35,000  

                       

-   

            

245,000  

 Reserve Funds  
              

400,000  

                           

-   

                          

-   

               

400,000  

                          

-   

                        

-   

             

400,000  

                         

-   

                       

-   

            

400,000  

 YE Fund Balance  
         

2,243,772  

      

3,063,127  

          

951,844  

           

2,111,283  

     

2,988,940  

    

1,436,077  

        

1,552,863  

     

2,447,953  

  

1,006,138  

       

1,441,815  

 

The Zone 8 revenue is distributed to the O&M Funds, the Capital Improvements Funds, the Revolving 

Funds and the Reserve Funds per the annual budget.   

O&M Funds are District revenues and expenses needed to operate the Lighting & Landscaping Zone 8 

Services Department.  This fund maintains a balance of 20-22% of the O&M expenses for operational 

cash flow.   

Hofmann Funds represent the balance of the fund remaining from the Hofmann Land Development 

Company. 

Capital Improvement Funds are Zone 8 revenues and expenses needed for capital improvements of the 

landscaping and parks including the Community Center.  These funds are generally budgeted revenues 

comprised of property taxes; and from cost recovery fees and charges derived from the recreational 

classes, facility rentals, donations, and community center events. 

Revolving Funds are for the future maintenance or improvements of the landscaping, parks, and vehicles 

replacements.   

Reserve Funds have been established for emergency use for the Lighting and Landscape Zone 8 

Department.  This reserve is 50% of the Zone 8 operating budget.   

 

 

 



 

40 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Lighting & Landscaping Zone #8 Appropriations 

The Discovery Bay Lighting and Landscape Zone #8 (Zone 8) receives annual funding through a portion of 

property taxes collected within its boundaries.  Each year, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 

District (District) is responsible for identifying its appropriation limit in accordance Article XIII B of the 

California Constitution, known as the Proposition 4 or the GANN limit.   

 

Staff collects the necessary information from the California Department of Finance and calculates the 

Appropriations Limit for Zone 8 for board approval every July.  The calculation is based on the previous 

year’s appropriation limit and factors in the change of California’s per capita personal income and local 

population percentage change. 

 

 
Below is a snapshot of the history of previous Appropriations calculations by fiscal year.  

 

 

 
 

 

Historical Limit                                        
(With Permitted Increases)

Per Capita Personal 
Income Change Per Capita Ratio*

Population 
Change Population Ratio* Fiscal Year Factor

Year 04/05 352,279.00$                              
Year 05/06 379,708.29$                              5.26 1.0526 2.4 1.024 1.0778624
Year 06/07 402,876.48$                              3.96 1.0396 2.06 1.0206 1.06101576
Year 07/08 431,200.71$                              4.42 1.0442 2.5 1.025 1.070305
Year 08/09 461,481.34$                              4.29 1.0429 2.62 1.0262 1.07022398
Year 09/10 469,171.69$                              0.62 1.0062 1.04 1.0104 1.01666448
Year 10/11 458,900.84$                              -2.54 0.9746 0.36 1.0036 0.97810856
Year 11/12 474,747.11$                              2.51 1.0251 0.92 1.0092 1.03453092
Year 12/13 497,620.79$                              3.77 1.0377 1.01 1.0101 1.04818077
Year 13/14 525,557.54$                              5.12 1.0512 0.47 1.0047 1.05614064
Year 14/15 530,903.12$                              -0.23 0.9977 1.25 1.0125 1.01017125
Year 15/16 556,915.93$                              3.82 1.0382 1.04 1.0104 1.04899728
Year 16/17 592,397.12$                              5.37 1.0537 0.95 1.0095 1.06371015
Year 17/18 619,784.89$                              3.69 1.0369 0.9 1.009 1.0462321
Year 18/19 644,137.32$                              3.67 1.0367 0.25 1.0025 1.03929175
Year 19/20 672,615.76$                              3.85 1.0385 0.55 1.0055 1.04421175
Year 20/21 698,122.95$                              3.73 1.0373 0.06 1.0006 1.03792238
Year 21/22 740,708.83$                              5.73 1.0573 0.35 1.0035 1.06100055
Year 22/23 792,250.87$                              7.55 1.0755 -0.55 0.9945 1.06958475

* Based on factors provided in the annual
Price and Population Information letter from
the California Department of Finance.
Dated May 2022



 

41 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Lighting & Landscaping Zone #9 Services Revenue, Operations & 

Maintenance, and Capital Improvements 

The Lighting and Landscaping Zone #9 (Zone 9) receives its revenues from an Assessment.  Annually an 

engineering report is completed by Herwit Engineering.  The District uses this engineering report to 

calculate the operating revenue needed to maintain and operate the Lighting and Landscaping Zone 9.   

Revenue 

Account 

Code 

Revenue Actuals FY 2020-

2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date FY 

2021-2022 thru 

4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

41-31-5120 Assessment Income 145,113  150,634  
148,408  

153,647  156,720  

41-31-5226 CCC Vehicle 

Reimbursement 

18,598  13,000  

(3,099) 

13,000  13,000  

  Total Revenue $163,711  $163,634  
$145,309  

$166,647  $169,720  

 

Expenditures 

Account 

Code 

Expenditures Actuals FY 2020-

2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date FY 

2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

41-41-7000 Salary & Wages 21,192  50,000  24,313  46,799  49,139  

41-41-7001 Overtime 0  0  0  500  500  

41-41-7105 Reimbursement of 

Insurance 

18,029  4,678  0  0  0  

41-41-7150 Temporary Employees 3,230  0  811  0  0  

41-41-7180 Training Conferences Travel 12  1,000  0  1,000  1,000  

41-41-7210 Dues & Subscriptions 0  50  0  50  50  

41-41-7225 Memberships 0  400  0  400  400  

41-41-7271 Consulting Services 0  2,000  0  2,000  2,500  

41-41-7286 Legal - General 0  1,000  753  1,000  1,000  

41-41-7301 Annual Audit Services 2,000  2,000  0  2,000  2,000  

41-41-7317 Advertising 418  100  0  100  100  

41-41-7361 Telephone - general 258  500  191  500  500  

41-41-7362 Telecom - networking 0  700  0  700  700  

41-41-7363 Telephone - cellular 1,484  1,200  1,166  1,200  1,200  

41-41-7376 Road/Construction 

Materials 

0  200  0  200  200  

41-41-7392 Vehicle & Equipment - Fuel 3,865  5,000  5,347  6,000  6,600  

41-41-7393 Vehicle & Equipment Sup & 

Rep 

1,510  2,000  5,733  2,000  2,000  

41-41-7406 General Repairs 0  100  0  100  100  

41-41-7409 Info System - Maintenance 0  1,000  0  1,000  1,000  

41-41-7410 Equipment Maintenance & 

Repair 

2,259  1,500  878  1,500  1,500  



 

42 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Account 

Code 

Expenditures Actuals FY 2020-

2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actuals to Date FY 

2021-2022 

thru 4/30/2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

41-41-7412 Computer Equipment & 

Supplies 

0  750  0  750  750  

41-41-7413 Miscellaneous Small Tools 2,002  2,500  2,458  2,500  2,500  

41-41-7414 Equipment Repair 1,179  1,250  0  1,250  1,250  

41-41-7421 Cleaning Supplies 75  500  0  500  500  

41-41-7422 Minor Equipment/Furniture 0  500  0  500  500  

41-41-7424 Postage 0  50  0  50  50  

41-41-7425 Office Supplies 344  500  125  500  500  

41-41-7438 Building Rent 6,500  0  0  0  0  

41-41-7439 Equipment Rental/Leasing 626  1,000  198  1,000  1,000  

41-41-7440 Facility Maintenance - 

Landsca 

24,791  21,000  16,239  21,000  22,050  

41-41-7441 Building Maintenance 0  1,000  0  1,000  1,000  

41-41-7451 Insurance Liability & 

Property 

129  3,000  6,000  3,000  3,100  

41-41-7466 Permits & Fees 3,297  500  0  500  500  

41-41-7469 Personal Protective 

Equipment 

1,970  3,000  2,061  3,000  3,000  

41-41-7481 Utilities/Electrical Cost 1,077  1,350  1,090  1,600  1,680  

41-41-7482 Utilities/Water Cost 19,710  25,500  15,726  25,500  26,000  

41-41-7483 Utilities/Waste Cost 0  3,000  0  3,000  3,000  

41-41-7527 Miscellaneous Services & 

Suppl 

201  1,000  174  1,000  1,000  

41-41-7536 Operating Transfer Out 3,885  0  0  0  0  

41-41-7537 Operating Transfer In (12,017) 0  0  0  0  

41-41-7545 Revenue Collection 423  600  423  600  600  
 

Total $109,667  $145,106  $83,637  $134,299  $139,469  

 

Capital Improvements 

Account 

Code 
Capital Improvements 

Actual FY 2020-

2021 

Budgeted FY 

2021-2022 

Actual YTD 

FY 2021-2022 

Budgeted FY 

2022-2023 

Budgeted FY 

2023-2024 

  Landscaping/Streetscapes 0 0 0 25,000 50,000 

  Parks 162,931 25,000 0 0 0 

  Building/Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 

  Total  $162,931  $25,000  $0  $25,000 $50,000 

 

Lighting and Landscaping Zone 9 is the Ravenswood area of Discovery Bay.  The capital improvement 

plan for FY22/23 consists of a streetscape enhancement on Wilde Drive.   

Budgeted Fund Summary 



 

43 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

 

Zone 9 Fund 

Summary 

Year End 

Fund 

Balance  

FY 20/21 

Budgeted  

Revenues              

FY 21/22 

Budgeted  

Expenses                      

FY 21/22 

Budgeted 

Fund 

Balance 

FY 21/22 

Estimated 

Revenues              

FY 22/23 

Estimate 

Expenses                

FY 22/23 

Estimate 

Fund 

Balance  

FY 22/23 

Estimated 

Revenues              

FY 23/24 

Estimate 

Expenses                

FY 23/24 

Estimate 

Fund 

Balance              

FY 23/24 

Beginning Fund 

Balance(Carryover) 

         

4,403,477  

               

242,360  
    

               

260,888  
    

               

268,236  
    

O&M Funds 
                  

40,939  

               

145,106  

               

145,106  

                  

40,939  

               

134,299  

          

134,299  

                  

40,939  

               

139,469  

               

139,469  

                  

40,939  

Capital 

Improvement 

Funds 

                  

61,421  

                   

(1,472) 
  

                  

59,949  

                  

12,348  

             

25,000  

                  

47,297  

                  

10,251  

                  

50,000  

                     

7,548  

Revolving Funds 
                  

65,000  

                  

20,000  

                               

-   

                  

85,000  

                  

20,000  
  

               

105,000  

                  

20,000  

                               

-   

               

125,000  

Reserve Funds 
                  

75,000  

                               

-   

                               

-   

                  

75,000  

                               

-   

                          

-   

                  

75,000  

                               

-   

                               

-   

                  

75,000  

YE Fund Balance 
               

242,360  

               

405,994  

               

145,106  

               

260,888  

               

427,535  

          

159,299  

               

268,236  

               

437,956  

               

189,469  

               

248,487  

 

 

The Zone 9 revenue is distributed to the O&M Funds, the Capital Improvements Funds, the Revolving 

Funds and the Reserve Funds per the annual budget.   

O&M Funds are District revenues and expenses needed to operate the Lighting & Landscaping Zone 9 

Services Department.  This fund maintains a balance of 20-22% of the O&M expenses for operational 

cash flow.   

Capital Improvement Funds are Zone 9 revenues and expenses needed for capital improvements of the 

landscaping and parks.  These funds are generally budgeted revenues comprised of the Engineering 

Report Assessment. 

Revolving Funds are for the future maintenance or improvements of the landscaping, parks, and vehicles 

replacements.   

Reserve Funds have been established for emergency use for the Zone 9 Lighting & Landscape 

Department.  This reserve is 50% of the Zone 9 operating budget.   

 

 

 

 

 



 

44 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Lighting & Landscaping Zone #9 Engineer’s Report 

As part of the annual assessment process for the Ravenswood Improvement District (Zone 9), the Town 

of Discovery Bay Board of Directors adopt a Resolution annually, which directs HERWIT Engineering to 

prepare the assessment report.  HERWIT provides the Draft of the Final Assessment Engineer’s Report to 

District Staff.  In that report, HERWIT determines assessed costs per parcel based on the operating budget. 

HERWIT Engineering lists all factors leading to any increased assessment as well as the funds needed to 

maintain the reserve amount and cover the increased cost of operations.  

The Annual Assessment can be viewed on the Districts website at http://www.todb.ca.gov/. 

 

 

 



 

45 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Capital Projects  

The Capital Improvement Projects for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 are valued at $14.6 million.  The budgeted 

projects include funding necessary to properly service, maintain and support the essential functions of 

District operations; continued rehabilitation of the wastewater lift stations as well as Water and 

Wastewater pipeline maintenance and replacements, Lighting & Landscaping Projects, and equipment 

purchases.   

 

Wastewater Capital Improvements and Structures & Replacements 

For FY 2022/2023 the Wastewater CIP and Structures & Replacements include the state-mandated 

Denitrification Project, design was completed FY20/21, currently the FY22/23 CIP for this project is 

estimated at $5.9M, the total project cost is budgeted at $20M. The new Vac Truck was ordered and is 

set to be delivered in FY 22/23 and the Outfall Diffuser design is near completion with the bidding process 

to begin in the near futer. CIP items such as lift station improvements and solar dryer panel replacements 

and a Recycle Water Master Plan are budgeted as well.   

  

Water Capital Improvements and Structures & Replacements 

For FY 2022/2023 the Water CIP is $5.3M, the budget includes Structures & Replacements such as the 

continued design of Well 8 for $1.2M, Mainline Pipe Replacement Program for $2.3M and the repair of 

the Marina Underwater Crossing of $.5M. Ongoing CIP projects to complete upgrades & maintenance of 

the existing Water Supply Facilities, Water Distribution System Upgrades and Replacements, as well as 

Infrastructure Replacements as required.  

 

Building and Improvements Capital  

In fiscal year 2022/2023, the District plans to improve upon its physical security systems at our Water & 

Wastewater plant facilities along with an upgrade to its Cyber Security and Information Technology 

platforms. The District formed an ad hoc committee to begin the process of relocating its offices away 

from Treatment Plant on Willow Lake Road.  The committee is actively meeting and will report back to 

the Board of Directors. 

 

Revolving funds for Infrastructure Replacements and Maintenance 

In fiscal year 2022/2023, the District plans to add additional funds into the infrastructure replacement 

funds.  $275,000 for wastewater, $250,000 for water. 

 

Lighting & Landscaping Zone #8, Community Center & Zone #9 Capital 

In FY 2022/2022 the TODB CSD is using the Prop 68 “Per Capita” Grant to upgrade facilities at Cornell Park.  

Planning has begun on $470,000 worth of Clipper Drive enhancements; this project will be funded by 

$100,000 from Zone 8 capital reserves and $370,000 from the Hofmann Funds.  Zone #9 budget includes 

a streetscape refresh of Wilde Drive in FY 2022/2023.  

 

 

 

 



 

46 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Capital Project Listing 

Project # Project Name  FY 22/23 

Year (1)  

 FY 23/24 

Year (2)  

 FY 24/25 

Year (3)  

 FY 25/26 

Year (4)  

 FY 26/27 

Year (5)  

Water             

  CIP for Water Supply Capacity (Source, 

Treatment and Storage) 

          

6001 Well 8 - Site Acquisition, CEQA, 

Exploratory, Production Well, Pipeline, 

Design & Construction for 1,800 gpm 

well (STAND ALONE WELL PROJECT) 

Entire Project, including engineering, 

studies, monitoring well 

         

1,200,000  

      

2,400,000  

         

1,000,000  

    

Well 9 - Site Acquisition, CEQA, 

Exploratory, Production Well, Pipeline, 

Design & Construction 

    3,275,000 

 

  Upgrades and Maintenance for Existing 

Water Supply Facilities 

          

6003 Well Rehabilitations every 3-4 years             1,040,000             

6005 Well 2 Electrical Panel Upgrade 175,000     

6007 Filter Repair (Newport & Willow)        660,000         773,000        

6008 

 

Stabilization Soils  540,000    

6009 Well 4A Upgrade 30,000     

6017 Upgrade Hypo Tanks 83,000     

6021 Marina Underwater Crossing 500,000     

6023 Abandon and Destroy Well 5A and Site 

Decommissioning 

  80,000   

6025 Well 6 Rehabilitation  300,000    

6026 Chloramine Disinfection Conversion  900,000    

  Water - Replacements           

6010 Mainline CIP Program Long-Term 

(budget to replace/upgrade 46 Miles 

total for DB)  

2,250,000    1,500,000      2,000,000      1,000,000      1,000,000  

6011 Cathodic Protection          

250,000  

        

  Master Plans           

6020 America's Water Infrastructure Act 

(AWIA) Emergency Response & 

Emergency Preparedness Plans 

           

50,000  

        

 

 

 

 



 

47 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Capital Project Listing (Continued) 

Project # Project Name  FY 22/23 

Year (1)  

 FY 23/24 

Year (2)  

 FY 24/25 

Year (3)  

 FY 25/26 

Year (4)  

 FY 26/27 

Year (5)  

Wastewater             

7001 Annual Wastewater Lift Station 

Improvements 

      550,000  500,000               

7018 Denitrification Project 5,924,300     2,500,000                         -                     -   

7019 Mainline Piping Replacement - 235 ft 

of pipe replacement Lakeview Business 

Plaza from Cherry Hills 

  250,000              

7006 RAS & WAS Pumping System   157,000       

7014 Emergency Storage Drain-Pump Sta. W 75,000         

7015 Solids Handling Improvements     180,000     

7016 WAS Pumps and Check Valves 

Replacement 

    107,000     

7017 Collection System Pump Stations   180,000       

7023 O&M Manual Update   100,000       

7021 Recycle Water Master Plan 100,000         

7022 Lagoon Vac Truck Pump Station 92,000     

7024 Vac Truck (Ordered 2022) 600,000         

7025 Solar Dryer Panel Replacement 

Program 

 230,000      260,000 

7026 Mole Replacement Program 80,000   80,000   88,000  

7012 Outfall Diffuser Repair 649,000     

Combined 

W-WW 

Projects 

      

  Relocate District Office           

8002 Relocate District Office Building          

750,000  

      

1,250,000  

 

1,000,000  

    

8003 Vehicle & Equipment Purchases - Truck 60,000           
 

      

8004 District Security Phase 3           428,000     428,000   
Cyber Security/Information Technology 

- system and hardware upgrades 

         250,000             

         

Zone 8             

 Landscaping      

4001  Medians landscape replacement-

Willow Lake Road 

         40,000          

  Tennis Courts & Pickleball Resurfacing 

– Cornell  

 
50,000                 

  Clipper Drive Enhancements 470,000                   

Zone 9             

5002 Landscaping           

  Wilde enhancements 25,000  
 

               

 Poe Drive enhancement  50,000     

 Total Capital Budget 14,613,300 12,358,000 5,487,000 1,000,000 5,051,000 



 

48 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Public Financing Authority 

A Public Financing Authority or (PFA) is a tax-exempt bond issuing authority that was created by local 

governments, for local governments, with the goal of increasing and streamlining economic 

development projects. PFA was established to simplify the issuance of conduit bonds.  

The Town of Discovery Bay, prior to issuing Revenue Bonds that will be necessary to finance large capital 

projects, must first become a member of a financing authority. While there are a number of financing 

authorities throughout the state which the District could join and become a member, it is also not 

uncommon for two agencies to form their own Joint Powers Authority (JPA) to facilitate the 

establishment of a financing authority. 

In 2012 District staff met with the staff of the Byron Bethany Irrigation District (BBID) and both parties 

along with their Board of Directors decided that the two agencies create a JPA to establish a financing 

authority.  As a result, two separate JPA’s were formed – one for the benefit of Discovery Bay and one 

for the benefit of the BBID. This provides both agencies the ability to utilize the JPA as a financing 

authority as they deem appropriate.   Each JPA is solely responsible for their Authority.   

The JPA’s mutually benefit both the Town as well as the BBID in that either district could utilize the 

financing powers of their respective JPA to issue Municipal Bonds as future needs arise. 

The formation of the JPA’s requires two separate legal public entities to facilitate the creation of a new 

legal entity in accordance with Article 1 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code of 

the State of California. It is a five-member board governs the Town of Discovery Bay JPA, comprised of 

the Board of Directors for the Town and a five-member board governs the BBID JPA, comprised of the 

Board of Directors for the BBID (the “Governing Board(s)”).  

At the time of the formation, there were minimal cost implications to the Town of Discovery.  The costs 

were related to staff time spent on administrative tasks associated with meetings of the JPA. In the 

future, there would be significant interest cost savings for financings associated with the JPA.  

 

 

 



 

49 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Debt Service 

The 2012 Municipal bonds were issued for $14,100,000.  The projects under this bond are listed below:  
(all monies have been expended)  

2012 Bonded Projects Bond Year Project Cost 

Water Project Improvements     

Planning & Construction of Well #7  2012 $1,500,000 

      

Wastewater Project Improvements   $250,000 

UV Bank 4 Installation   2012 $500,000 

Lift Station F Rehabilitation   2012 $1,050,000 

Influent Pump station  2012 $400,000 

Re-Activate Pump Station W   2012 $250,000 

Emergency Storage Facilities   2012 $6,050,000 

Splitter Box, Ox Ditch, Clarifier, RAS Pumps at Plant 2, Standby Aerators  2012 $3,800,000 

New Solar Dryer and Belt Presses  2012 $300,000 

Contingency  2012   

      

Total   *$14,100,000 

 

In 2017 the District issued its second Municipal bond for $8,825,000. The projects under this bond are 

listed below: * investors paid a premium for these bonds, variance between $8.825M and $8.900M. (all monies have been expended) 

2017 Bonded Projects Bond Year Project Cost 

Water Project Improvements     

Water Meter Completion Project 2017 $1,500,000 

      

Wastewater Project Improvements     

Filtration Project 2017 $7,400,000 

      

Total   *$8,900,000 

 

 

 

 

 



 

50 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Debt Service 

In 2022 the District issued its third Municipal bond for $16,860,000.  The projects under this bond are 

listed below: * investors paid a premium for these bonds, variance between $16,860 and $18.0M. 

2022 Bonded Projects Bond Year Project Cost 

Water Project Improvements     

Well 8 2022 $5,000,000 

      

Wastewater Project Improvements     

Denitrification Project 2022 $13,000,000 

      

Total   *$18,000,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

51 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

 

 

Debt Service Payments 

Debt Service Payments Bond Date Amount Paid 

Deutsche Bank 2012 Fiscal Year 2013  $393,451  

US Bank  2012 Fiscal Years 2014 to 2021  $6,595,011  

US Bank 2012 Fiscal Year 2022  $824,649  

    Total 2012 Bond  $7,813,111  

US Bank 2017 Fiscal Years 2018 to 2021  $1,578,675  

US Bank 2017 Fiscal Year 2022  $ 523,867  

  Total 2017 Bond  $2,102,542  

   Grand Total   $9,915,653  

 

Future Debit Service Payments Bond Date Annual Amount  

US Bank 2012 Fiscal Year 2022-2023 $825,563 

US Bank 2017 Fiscal Year 2022-2023 $523,869 

US Bank 2022 (Est) Fiscal Year 2022-2023 $1,048,000 

Total   $2,397,432 

 

Bond Balance 6/30/2022 (Estimated) 

 

Financial Institution Bond Total Balance (Est)  

US Bank 2012  $        11,330,000  

US Bank 2017  $           8,050,000  

US Bank 2022  $        16,860,000  

Total   $        36,240,000  

 

 

 



 

52 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

District Awards 

The Town has earned the following awards and recognition: 

• District of Distinction 

• District Transparency Certificate of Excellence 

• Special District Governance Platinum-Level through Special District Leadership Foundation 

(SDLF). 

• 2020 SDRMA Safety Award Recipient 

 

The Board of Directors and the General Manager of the Town of Discovery Bay have each achieved 

individual recognition in SDLF Special District Governance 

 



 

53 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

Supplemental Information 

Glossary 

ADOPTED OPERATING BUDGET: The official budget as approved by the Board of Directors at the start of 

each fiscal year.  

APPROPRIATION: A legal authorization by a legislative body to make expenditures and to incur 

obligations for specific purposes. An appropriation is usually limited in amount and to the time when it 

may be expended.  

BENEFITS: These include retirement/pension, health, life and disability insurance, worker’s 

compensation, vacation, administrative, medical, and special leave of absence time. 

BUDGET: A plan of financial operation comprised of estimated expenditures for a given period (a single 

fiscal year for the District) and the proposed means of financing the expenditures (through revenues). 

BUDGET MESSAGE: A written discussion of the proposed budget presented by the Finance Manager to 

the Board of Directors.  

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP): The budget unit to group all activities and costs necessary to 

implement a specific capital improvement and/or acquisition. A project can include the construction, 

acquisition, expansion, replacement, or rehabilitation of a physical facility or improvement. Projects 

often include planning and design, land acquisition, and project management costs related to such 

facilities and improvements.  

DEBT SERVICE: Established for the payment of interest and principal on all debt other than payable 

exclusively from special assessments.  

DEPARTMENT: A major organizational group of the District with overall management responsibility for 

an operation or a group of related operations within a functional area.  

EXPENSES: Decreases in net total assets. Expenses represent the total cost of operations during a period 

regardless of the timing of related expenditures.  

FISCAL YEAR: A 12-month period to which the annual operating budget applies and at the end of which a 

government determines its financial position, the results of the operations, and adopts a budget for the 

coming year. The Town of Discovery Bay’s fiscal year is from July 1 to June 30.  

FUND: A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of 

accounts, recording resources, related liabilities, obligations, reserves, and equities segregated for the 

purpose of carrying out specific activities of attaining certain objectives in accordance with special 

regulations, restrictions, or limitations.  

FUND BALANCE: Is an accumulation of revenues minus expenditures. Each fund maintained by the 

District has a fund balance. Fund balance can be used in future years for purposes determined by Board 

of Directors. 



 

54 | P a g e  
T o w n  o f  D i s c o v e r y  B a y  C S D  F i s c a l  Y e a r  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  P r o p o s e d  B u d g e t  

 

OBJECTIVE: A simply stated, readily measurable statement of aim or expected accomplishment within 

the fiscal year. A good statement of objective should imply a specific standard of performance for a 

given program.  

PRELIMINARY BUDGET: A budget in its preliminary preparation stage prior to review and formulation by 

the Board of Directors. In the preliminary stage, a budget forecasting current costs into the future and 

new or modified spending proposals for the future.  

PROPOSED BUDGET: The budget as formulated and proposed by Finance Manager; it is submitted to the 

Board of Directors for review and approval.  

RESOLUTION: A special or temporary order of a legislative body requiring less formality than an 

ordinance.  

REVENUE: Money that the District receives as income such as utility payments, fees from specific 

services, receipts from other governments, fines, grants, and interest income.  

SALARIES AND BENEFITS: Compensation paid to or on behalf of District employees for salaries and 

wages, and overtime. Benefits include health, and life, Dental and Vision. 

 

 



 

 



 
 

 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

June 15, 2022 

 
Prepared By: Michael R. Davies, Interim Assist. General Manager 
Submitted By: Michael R. Davies, Interim Assist. General Manager 
  
Agenda Title 
 
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adopting Resolution No. 2022-21 Updating the Injury and Illness Prevention 
Program Policy 021. 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2022-21 approving a 2022 update to the Town’s Injury and Illness Prevention Program Policy 021 
pursuant to the California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 3203. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Town of Discovery Bay established an Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) that was adopted by Resolution 
No. 2008-11 on September 17, 2008.   That IIPP was rescinded, and an update (Policy 021) was adopted by Resolution 
No. 2014-19 on September 3, 2014.  On August 15, 2018 the IIPP (Policy 021) was updated by Resolution No. 2018-11. 
 
The attached IIPP is a 2022 update of Board Policy 021 intended to be compliant with the California Code of Regulations, 
Title 8, Section 3203. 
 
The 2022 update includes the addition of a COVID-19 Prevention section and some minor changes and corrections.  
 
This IIPP applies to all Town of Discovery Bay employees, contractors, and volunteers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
September 17, 2008, Resolution No. 2008-11 
September 03, 2014, Resolution No. 2014-19 
August 15, 2018, Resolution No. 2018-11 
 
   
Attachments 
 
1. Draft Resolution No. 2022-21 
2. Draft IIPP Policy No. 021 
 
 
  

 
AGENDA ITEM: F3 



 
 

1 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, 

A CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING AN UPDATED INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION  

PROGRAM AND POLICY PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS, 
TITLE 8 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Discovery Bay is required to have an Injury and Illness 
Prevention Program (IIPP) pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 
3203; and 

 
 WHEREAS, on September 8, 2008 the Board adopted Resolution No. 2008-11 
establishing an IIPP for the Town of Discovery Bay; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 3, 2014 the Board adopted Resolution No. 2014-19 
establishing an IIPP Policy 021 and rescinding Resolution No. 2008-11; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on August 15, 2018 the Board adopted Resolution No. 2018-11 
updating IIPP Policy 021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town from time to time updates policies to stay current, relevant 
and legal; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed IIPP, which is attached and made a part of this 
Resolution, is updated to comply with California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 
3203.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 SECTION 1. That the Injury and Illness Prevention Program (Policy 021) is 
adopted and is attached and made a part of this Resolution. 

 
 SECTION 2. That this action is effective immediately. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY of June 2022. 

 
 
      _________________________ 
      Kevin Graves 
      Board President 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION 2022-21 

 



 
 

2 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District at a regularly scheduled 
meeting, held on June 15, 2022, by the following vote of the Board: 

  
  AYES: 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 
  ABSTAIN: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Dina Breitstein 
Board Secretary 



 

© (2014) Du-All Safety, LLC. All Rights Reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced by any means, electronic or mechanical, 
including photocopy, recording, or any information storage and retrieval system, without written permission first from Du-All Safety, 
LLC. This document is for the internal use of the Town of Discovery Bay only. Du-All or the Town of Discovery Bay are the only 
authorized entities allowed to alter or reproduce this document for the Town of Discovery Bay’s internal use. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Injury and Illness 

Prevention Program 

(IIPP) 

 

 

 

 
2022 

 
TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

REVISION HISTORY LOG 

 

DATE SECTION(s) BY REVISION DESCRIPTION 

07-17-2014 All Safety Committee Review of entire document 

07-25-2018 All Du-All Safety Review of entire document 

07-03-2019 All Du-All Safety Review of entire document; revisions to 
appendices 

05-27-2022 All Human Resources Review/revision of entire document.  

Addition of: 

COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) 

06-15-2022 All TODB Board Review/Approval of entire document 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    



 

© (2014) Du-All Safety, LLC. All Rights Reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced by any means, electronic or mechanical, 
including photocopy, recording, or any information storage and retrieval system, without written permission first from Du-All Safety, 
LLC. This document is for the internal use of the Town of Discovery Bay only. Du-All or the Town of Discovery Bay are the only 
authorized entities allowed to alter or reproduce this document for the Town of Discovery Bay’s internal use. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1.0 PURPOSE 

The purpose of the Town of Discovery Bay (TODB) Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) is to 

provide employees with a safe and healthy workplace by identifying responsibilities to be followed 

by management, employees, and the employer. Employees have a right to a safe workplace; their 

employer has a duty to ensure that every manager/supervisor is aware of the TODB’s safe work 

practices, and that they are being followed by each employee. 

 

The TODB has adopted this Injury and Illness Prevention Program to meet or exceed the 

requirements of California Code of Regulations, Title 8, §3203. It applies to all full and part-time 

employees, temporary or seasonal employees, and volunteers of the Town of Discovery Bay. 

 

 

2.0 EVALUATING HAZARDS 

Before a task or job is to be started, an evaluation of the hazards associated with that task or job 

needs to be completed. For example, a supervisor cannot task an employee to enter or even open 

a manhole cover, without ensuring that the employee has been properly trained on the potential 

hazards of the task. 

 

The employer, manager/supervisor, etc. must be aware of all hazards related to operating 

equipment, or tasks being performed by their respective employees. 

 

A tool which can be used in identifying and evaluating workplace hazards is the Job Safety Analysis 

Form (Appendix A). 

  

POLICY NUMBER: 

021 

PROGRAM AREA: 

Administrative 

RESOLUTION: 

2022-021  

DATE ESTABLISHED: 

September 17, 2008 

POLICY NAME: 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program 

DATE AMENDED: 

June 15, 2022 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

Hazards shall be identified and evaluated when: 

1. Safety Orders of the California Code of Regulations that govern the operation or activity 

(i.e., General Industrial Safety Orders, Construction Safety Orders, etc.) are revised. 

2. During the accident investigation process. 

3. When revealed during a routine inspection. 

4. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced to the 

workplace that represent a potential new safety hazard. 

5. When the TODB is made aware of a new, or previously unrecognized hazard. 

6. When employee safety suggestions are made regarding a hazard. 

 

This IIPP is not intended to cover all safety procedures at the TODB. The TODB has developed 

specific programs that may be found within each applicable department. These programs include, 

but are not limited to: 

• Asbestos Management 

• Codes of Safe Practices (or Standard Operating Procedures) 

• Concrete Dust Generating Operations 

• Confined Spaces 

• Emergency Action Plan 

• Emergency Operations Center (SIMS/NEMS) 

• Ergonomics 

• Excavation and Trenching 

• Exposure Control for Bloodborne Pathogens 

• Fall Protection 

• Hazard Communication Program 

• Hazardous Waste Management 

• Hearing Conservation 

• Heat Illness Prevention 

• Hot Work (cutting, welding & brazing) 

• Lockout/Tagout 

• Personal Protective Equipment Policy 

• Respiratory Protection 

• Workplace Violence 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

3.0 SAFETY RESPONSIBILITIES & JOB SAFETY CLASSIFICATIONS 

3.1   EMPLOYER RESPONSIBILITIES 

The TODB is responsible for providing the following under this IIPP: 

1. Establish, implement and maintain an effective IIPP and update it periodically to keep 

employees safe. The IIPP is reviewed annually by management with any employee input 

taken into consideration. 

2. Inspect workplace(s) to identify and correct unsafe and hazardous conditions (Section 5.0 

of this IIPP). 

3. Identify persons by title with the responsibility and authority to implement and maintain 

this IIPP. 

4. Provide this IIPP to employees (required by this program and other related safety 

programs) to prevent injury or illness. 

5. Use color codes, posters, labels or signs to warn employees of potential hazards. 

6. Establish or update operating procedures and communicate them so employees follow 

safety and health requirements (Section 4.0 of this IIPP). 

7. Develop systems to investigate workplace accidents/exposures and to provide corrective 

action(s) to prevent reoccurrence. 

8. Report immediately, but no longer than 8 hours, by telephone to the nearest Cal/OSHA 

Enforcement Unit district office any serious injury or illness, or death, of an employee 

occurring in a place of employment or in connection with any employment. Serious injury 

or illness is defined in section 330(h), T8CCR (Section 6.2 of this IIPP).  

9. Keep records of work-related injuries and illnesses in the OSHA 300 Log. At the end of the 

calendar year, copy the totals from the OSHA 300 Log onto Form 300A Summary (which 

must be posted February 1 through April 30 each year). 

10. Post, at a prominent location within the workplace, the Cal/OSHA poster informing 

employees of their rights and responsibilities. 

 

3.2   SAFETY COORDINATOR 

The Safety Coordinator has the lead role in advising and assisting supervisors and managers in 

executing their safety-related responsibilities. The Safety Coordinator for the TODB is Human 

Resources, the Town’s Executive Assistant.  

 

The Safety Coordinator’s responsibilities include: 

1. Assuming the lead role and the general authority to supervise all aspects of the IIPP and 

other safety-related matters. 

2. Utilizing all available resources to ensure hazards are reasonably resolved in a timely 

manner. 

3. Working with Department Safety Coordinators and management to ensure that safety is 

compliant in all departments by periodic inspections, training or site visits. 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

4. Coordinating with Du-All Safety and/or other third-party safety consulting company to 

provide support services. 

5. Working with safety committee/department management to ensure that safety training is 

scheduled. Document and maintain training records for each employee. 

6. Working with management and the safety committee to respond to employee safety 

suggestions and reports of hazardous conditions. 

7. Ensure that Cal/OSHA has been notified within 8 hours of any serious injury or death. 

 

3.3  SAFETY COMMITTEE 

The safety committee is comprised of the Safety Coordinator and Department Safety Coordinators. 

There are no term limits for any committee member. The safety committee charter may be found 

in Appendix B and a list of those individuals serving on the Safety Committee Members may be 

found in Appendix C. 

 

Along with implementing the program, the safety committee members will, at a minimum, be 

responsible for the following: 

1. Attend safety committee meetings. 

2. Disseminate safety related information to their supervisors so that each department is 

aware of upcoming training, inspection findings, reporting hazards and corrective actions. 

3. Relate any safety concerns within their department to the safety committee for 

remediation and/or compliance. Report any unsafe conditions to their supervisor. 

4. Support good housekeeping standards and cleanliness at the TODB. 

5. Report to the safety committee any safety suggestion or hazardous condition brought to 

their attention. 

6. Evaluate causes of injuries and what actions need to be taken to protect other employees. 

7. Recognize employee(s) who contribute to the safety programs and/or effect positive 

change through safety suggestions, observations and recommendations for improvement. 

 

3.4  DEPARTMENT COORDINATORS 

The department/division coordinators are found in Appendix C. Department Safety Coordinators 

are responsible for the following: 

1. Ensure that there is someone available onsite to assume safety responsibilities in their 

absence (i.e., Department Safety Coordinator alternate). 

2. Be a member of, and actively participant in Safety Committee meetings. Responsibilities 

include those listed above in Section 3.3. 

 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

3.5   MANAGERS, SUPERVISORS, FIELD SUPERVISORS, CREW LEAD WORKERS 

All personnel responsible for employee supervision shall: 

1. Ensure that his/her employees are following all established and customary safety 

procedures and policies. 

2. Be current on all safe work practices. 

3. Ensure that employees are wearing all required personal protective equipment (PPE). 

4. Not direct employees to perform tasks for which they have not received proper training. 

5. For those employees who work under construction orders (Section 3.8), conduct “tailgate” 

or “toolbox” safety meetings at least every 10 working days. These meetings are designed 

to review hazards associated with upcoming work and communicate systems in place to 

prevent employee injury or illness. 

6. Report any injury or near miss (non-injury incidents) to the Safety Coordinator (Human 

Resources; the Town’s Executive Assistant). 

7. Ensure that every employee required to attend safety training is in attendance and 

attentive. If an employee misses a class, coordinate with the Safety Coordinator to ensure 

that said employee receives make-up training (prior to) their covered job assignment. 

8. Understand and be aware of all hazards associated with all established and customary job 

assignments. 

 

3.6  ADMINISTRATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES 

Administration will be coordinated by the General Manager. Those responsibilities include: 

1. Coordinate and ensure that all accident and injury reports have been filled out correctly so 

if a Workers’ Compensation claim is made, all documentation is correct. 

2. Maintain required OSHA 300 log. Post the Form 300A Summary from February 1 through 

April 30 of the previous year’s accident summary in prominent locations throughout the 

TODB so employees may have easy access to the summary. 

3. Work with management and the safety committee to ensure that all employees’ safety 

concerns or suggestions are being handled with due diligence. 

4. Provide any forms required to be filled out by managers and employees in the event of an 

injury or accident. 

5. Maintain all medical surveillance and other Cal/OSHA related documentation. Provide 

medical examinations when required by Cal/OSHA standards and annually advise 

employees how they may access their medical records. 

6. Disciplining employees for failure to comply with safe and healthful work-practices. 

 

3.7  EMPLOYEES 

Although the employer and management have the primary responsibility to provide employees with 

a safe and healthy workplace, employees are ultimately responsible for their own safety. 

Employees’ responsibilities for safety include:  

1. Complete all required safety classes, including active participation and being attentive. 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

2. No employee is permitted to do work that they feel is unsafe or for which they have not 

been properly trained or equipped. 

3. Follow the TODB’s established safety policies, procedures and programs. 

4. Immediately report any unsafe or potentially dangerous situation so that the situation may 

be abated. 

5. Immediately report all injuries and near misses to their supervisor. 

6. Understand that an employee shall be disciplined for failure to follow safe procedures (see 

Section 9.0). 

7. Work with management in updating and “fine-tuning” the Code of Safe Practices (or any 

other work practice) so that the most up-to-date and comprehensive safety procedure is 

being followed (see Section 4.0). 

8. Encourage fellow employees to constantly maintain a safety “mindset”. 

 

3.8  JOB CLASSIFICATIONS 

At the TODB, employees are protected under the Cal/OSHA California Code of Regulations General 

Industrial Safety Orders (GISO), or the Construction Safety Orders (CSO), depending on the type 

of work being performed. 

 

Construction Work is: “When employment exists in connection with the construction, alteration, 

painting, repairing, construction maintenance, renovation, removal, or demolition of any fixed 

structure or its parts, that work will be considered construction, and will be regulated by the CSO.” 

 

OSHA definition of Structure: “That which is built or constructed, an edifice or building of any kind, 

or any piece of work artificially built up or composed of parts joined together in some definite 

manner.” 

 

Managers, supervisors or any person who has responsibility in directing or supervising an employee 

should be aware if the work being performed falls under the GISO or CSO. By understanding the 

work being performed and knowing which set of orders employees fall under, 

managers/supervisors may train and educate their employees on proper safety procedures 

regulated by Cal/OSHA. 

 

It is possible that because of the diverse nature of their assignments, field personnel could be 

governed by either set of orders depending on the task. At construction projects, the CSO shall take 

precedence over any other general orders which are inconsistent with them, excluding Tunnel 

Safety Orders or Compressed Air Safety Orders. 

 

Where this distinction is significant, notice shall be made in this and all subordinate programs, 

practices, and documents. 

 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

3.8.1 GENERAL INDUSTRY SAFETY ORDERS (GISO) 

Examples of work that would be considered falling under the GISO may include: 

• General Administration 

• Custodial Work 

• Gardening & Landscaping 

• Warehouse / Storage 

• General Driving 

 

3.8.2 CONSTRUCTION SAFETY ORDERS (CSO) 

Examples of work that would be considered falling under the CSO may include: 

• Carpentry 

• Electrical 

• Painting 

• Plastering 

• Plumbing 

 

 

4.0 CODE OF SAFE PRACTICES 

Once all hazards are identified and evaluated by using the General Industry Safety Orders (GISO), 

the Construction Safety Orders (CSO), other pertinent regulations, employee input, and available 

published statistics, the Code of Safe Practices is then developed. The code includes all the proper 

preventive measures to work in an environment, or with construction equipment safely. 

 

NOTE: although under California Code of Regulations, the Term “Code of Safety Practices” pertains 

only to Construction Safety Orders, for the purpose of the TODB’s IIPP, it refers to safe work rules 

used for both Construction and General Industry work. 

 

Some departments at the TODB may have specific work practices that are unique to that 

department. Managers/Supervisors of each department should evaluate the hazards associated 

within their department and along with employee input, develop a Code of Safe Practices to be 

followed by all employees, in order to minimize injury while performing each task. 

 

Employees are to receive specific instruction by their supervisor regarding hazards specific to each 

employee's job assignment, as found in the Code of Safe Practices. 

1. The Code of Safe Practices must be reviewed and updated periodically as new hazards are 

identified. Each Code of Safe Practice should be reviewed at least annually by each 

department. 

2. When the Code of Safe Practices is updated, workers must be trained and/or alerted by 

their respective managers/supervisors, etc. to the new hazard, and the new proper safe 

practice(s) being implemented. 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

All Codes of Safe Practices shall be stored in a binder titled “Code of Safe Practices” at the District 

Office (1800 Willow Lake Road, Discovery Bay, CA 94505-9376). Department Managers may also 

have a copy in their possession; the official copy shall always remain at the TODB’s District Office. 

 

 

5.0 PERIODIC INSPECTIONS 

Periodic inspections are designed to ensure that the Code of Safe Practices is being followed and 

to help identify new or previously unrecognized hazards. Inspection reports will be provided to the 

appropriate persons responsible for the inspected area(s). 

 

Du-All Safety or a third-party safety consultant, shall conduct inspections of all facilities annually. 

High-hazard areas will be inspected periodically (at least twice a year) to determine if proper 

procedures and the correct personal protective equipment (PPE) are being used. These inspections 

shall be spontaneous, with no advance warning given to field personnel. 

 

Managers/Supervisors are expected to conduct inspections as often as possible, to further ensure 

safe working conditions at all times. 

 

When a hazard is identified by any person, all personnel exposed to the hazard are to be warned 

and notified of the hazard and potential danger. This may be done by any supervisor or employee.  

 

Hazards identified during inspections shall be corrected in a timely manner based on the risk 

assessment code found later in this section. If a serious hazard cannot be immediately abated 

without endangering workers and/or property, the TODB will remove all exposed workers from the 

area except those necessary to correct the existing condition. 

1. Workers correcting any hazardous condition shall be provided with the necessary 

protection. 

2. If there is a piece of equipment or a procedure that is immediately dangerous to life and 

health, the condition is to be corrected immediately. If the condition cannot be corrected 

immediately, the hazardous equipment should be locked and/or tagged out of service (or 

procedure discontinued). 

3. If any employee fails to follow the Town of Discovery Bay’s safety procedures, the 

employee’s supervisor should: 

a. Inform the employee of the violation. 

b. Inform or remind the employee of the correct procedure. 

c. Ask the employee to comply and correct the violation(s). 

d. Remind the employee of the TODB’s disciplinary policy (see Policy No. 005). 

4. All safety violations, hazards and safety concerns will be documented, and a risk 

assessment code assigned, based on the descriptions given below. 

5. A supervisor will designate who will fix the hazard and a completion date is to be 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

established and checked off by the appropriate person. 

6. When the problem is fixed, the inspection form (Appendix D) should be signed and dated 

by the person responsible for the work. 

 

5.1  SAFETY RISK ASSESSMENT CODE 

The Risk Assessment Code is determined as follows: 

Class 1 CRITICAL – may cause death, serious injury, significant environmental impact, or 

substantial financial losses, and/or is likely to occur soon. 

Class 2 SERIOUS – may cause injury, occupational illness, or environmental or property 

damage) and/or probably will occur in time. 

Class 3 MINOR – probably would not significantly affect personnel or environmental safety 

or health, yet is a violation of specific criteria). 

 

The correction protocol used may include one or more of the following: 

1. Engineering Control (i.e., cones, flags, lights, etc.); 

2. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE); 

3. Administrative Control (i.e. no cell phone use while driving or flagging); 

4. New Safety Rules; and/or 

5. Employee Training.  

 

5.2 REQUIRED INSPECTION FREQUENCY 

This is not intended to be a complete list of inspections; depending on what other hazards and 

equipment exist (DOT, Cranes, etc.), other mandatory safety inspections may be required. 

REQUIRED INSPECTION FREQUENCY 

Fire Extinguisher Monthly 

Eye Wash Station Monthly 

Emergency Shower Monthly 

Forklift Pre-shift 

Hazardous Waste Containers Weekly 

Fall Protection Equipment Semi-annually 

Confined Space Equipment Per Equipment Manufacturer 

 

 

6.0 INJURY & ILLNESS INVESTIGATIONS AND RECORD KEEPING 

6.0  INVESTIGATIONS OF OCCUPATIONAL INJURY OR ILLNESS, AND CORRECTIVE ACTIONS 

Once an occupational illness, accident, or injury occurs, a report must be completed by the 

employee and the employee’s supervisor immediately.  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

All required forms are found at the TODB’s District Office; contact Human Resources for these 

documents. All applicable forms should be completed in a timely manner and submitted to Human 

Resources. Forms included in the packet are: 

1. Supervisor’s Investigation of Employee Injury Form 

2. Employee’s Report of Job Injury 

3. Witness to a Job-Related Injury 

4. Employer’ Report of Occupational Injury or Illness (5020) 

5. Worker’s Compensation Claim Form (DWC1) 

 

In the event of a Near Miss (non-injury incident), the incident is still to be investigated, however 

not all of the above documentation is required. 

 

6.1  SERIOUS INJURY REPORTING TO CAL/OSHA 

The TODB shall report immediately by telephone to SDRMA/Workers’ Compensation who will 

submit the report to the nearest District Office of the Division of Occupational Safety and Health. 

Any serious injury or illness, or death, of an employee occurring in a place of employment or in 

connection with any employment must be reported immediately. 
 

IMMEDIATELY is: “as soon as practically possible, but not longer than 8 hours after a 

manager/leader is informed or would have known with diligent inquiry of the death/serious 

injury/ illness, and/or must be before the end of the worker’s shift.” 
 

SERIOUS INJURY – an injury or illness which requires hospitalization for more than 24 hours (for 

other than medical observation), or in which an employee suffers a loss of any member of the body, 

or suffers any serious degree of permanent disfigurement. 
 

EXCEPTION – an injury is not reportable if it occurs during a crime (penal code violation), or on a public 

roadway (vehicle accident). When uncertain whether the accident was a “vehicle accident”, 

notification to Cal/OSHA is advised. 

 

6.2  REPORTING PROCEDURE 

Employees are responsible for immediately notifying their manager/supervisor of a serious injury 

or death to any employee. The manager/supervisor’s priority is to provide medical attention to 

the injured employee. Management will then notify Administration/Human Resources of the 

injury/illness/fatality. Administration/Human Resources will then determine if the injury/illness is 

serious and if so, call and report it to Cal/OSHA. If the manager/supervisor is unable to talk with 

the General Manager, Assistant General Manager, or Human Resources, they are to leave a 

detailed voice message on their voicemail, and then call Cal/OSHA to report the serious 

injury/illness or fatality at: 

CAL/OSHA (925-602-6517) 

Concord District Office 

1450 Civic Court, Suite 525 

Concord, CA 94520 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

1. If a contract employee is injured while performing work on behalf of the TODB, the 

contractor’s employer must notify Cal/OSHA within statutory reporting guidelines. 

2. When making notification, the reporting party shall include the following information (if 

available): 

a. Time and date of accident. 

b. Employer's name, address and telephone number. 

c. Name and job title (or badge number) of person reporting the accident. 

d. Address of accident/incident site. 

e. Name of person to contact at site of accident. 

f. Name and address of injured employee(s). 

g. Nature of injury. 

h. Location where injured employee(s) was (were) moved to. 

i. List and identity of other law enforcement agencies present at the site of accident. 

j. Description of accident and whether the accident scene or instrumentality was 

altered. 

 

6.3  CAL/OSHA RECORD KEEPING 

1. When an Employer's Report of Occupational Injury or Illness Form 5020 is filed, an entry 

must also be made in the Cal/OSHA Form 300. 

2. Management shall also complete the Cal/OSHA Form 301. 

 

6.4  GENERAL SAFETY RECORD KEEPING 

The Safety Coordinator office will keep records of:  

1. Documented safety and health training. 

2. Documented accident, injury and illness investigations including completed form(s). 

a. Copies of all required injury-and illness-related forms. 

b. Safety Committee meeting minutes. 

c. Disciplinary records. 

d. Inspection reports and corrective actions. 

e. Safety suggestions (Appendix H). 

f. Accident reports and medical surveillance documents. 

 

6.5  RECORDS RETENTION 

The legally mandated minimum records retention durations are provided in Appendix E. 

 

 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

7.0 COMMUNICATION 

Communication is a key component of the IIPP. The TODB management believes the most effective 

way to maintain a safety "mind set" is through the following means: 

1. A safety bulletin board for written communication, relevant safety topics, and posted 

temporary hazards. 

2. Since the employee is often in a better position to spot potential hazards in their work 

areas, Suggestion Boxes and forms are located in: 

a. Community Center Staff Room 

b. TODB District Office 

3. Employee input regarding safety is encouraged. All suggestions will be reviewed at the 

Safety Committee Meeting with a response given in a timely manner to the person making 

the suggestion. In the event of an anonymous suggestion, a response will be written and 

provided in the Safety Committee meeting minutes and posted on the safety bulletin 

board. 

4. Safety posters and signs shall be posted in common areas to remind employees of certain 

hazards and how to protect themselves. 

5. The Safety Committee meets on the third Wednesday of each month at 10:30 AM. The 

Charter for the committee may be found in Appendix B. 

6. Since construction work is not typically performed by employees of the TODB, field 

personnel are not required to conduct “toolbox” or “tailgate” safety meetings every 10 

working days. The Town’s contractor (Veolia Water) provides construction services on 

Town property. As such, Town Operations employees are encouraged to participate in the 

Veolia “tailgate” safety meetings if the subject is pertinent to their respective functions. 

7. Report any unsafe or potentially dangerous situation to their supervisor so that the 

situation may be abated. 

8. Report any injury or near miss (non-injury related accident) to the next highest supervisor, 

who will then forward any report to Human Resources. 

 

 

8.0 TRAINING 

Training is the most important part of this program. It is critical that everyone understand their 

workplace hazards and is trained in: 

1. Safety procedures and policies. 

2. Procedures to document and record workplace injuries or illnesses. 

3. Employee and management responsibilities towards safety. 

4. The Town of Discovery Bay’s Personnel Manual (Policy No. 005). 
 

Supervisors and/or Safety Coordinator(s) shall receive training to familiarize them with the health 

and safety hazards to which employees under their immediate direction/control may be exposed. 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

Supervisors and/or Safety Coordinators are responsible for ensuring that those under their 

direction receive training on general workplace safety, as well as job-specific health and safety 

issues. Training is provided: 

1. To all employees and those given new job assignments for which training has not yet been 

received. 

2. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced to the 

workplace that represents a new hazard. 

3. Whenever the employer is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard. 

 

The Training Log for all employees is to be filled out completely, upon the completion of any 

training. All training logs, including tailgate meetings, should be forwarded to the Safety 

Coordinator for record keeping. 

 

 

9.0  ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES 

Employees who fail to comply with the Town of Discovery Bay’s safety policies and procedures will 

be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including, termination. 

 

Employees are referred to their management or Administration regarding the Town of Discovery 

Bay’s disciplinary policies and procedures, as found in the Personnel Manual. 

 

 

10.0 COVID-19 PREVENTION PROGRAM (CPP) 

COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

The novel coronavirus, SARS-CoV-2, causes a viral respiratory illness called COVID-19, which can 

make people sick with flu-like and other symptoms. The virus spreads easily when an infected 

person sneezes, coughs, or speaks, sending tiny droplets into the air. These droplets can land in 

the nose, mouth, or eyes of someone nearby and cause illness. The virus can also be caught from 

airborne virus, when small particles of infectious virus remain suspended in the air and people 

inhale them. People can also become infected if they touch an infectious droplet on a surface and 

then touch their own nose, mouth, or eyes.  

 

Some of the symptoms of COVID-19 are cough, fever, shortness of breath, sore throat, congestion 

or runny nose, fatigue, muscle or body aches, headache, and new loss of taste or smell. Some 

people with mild cases may have no symptoms at all yet still can spread the virus. Staying at least 

six feet away from people outside of your household, covering your nose and mouth with a face 

covering, and washing hands often with soap and water can help stop COVID-19 from spreading in 

the workplace.  

 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

COVID-19 PREVENTION PROGRAM (CPP) OVERVIEW 

The Town of Discovery Bay CSD (TOBD) is committed to protecting our employees and preventing 

the spread of COVID-19 at our workplace. We developed this program to reduce our workers’ risk 

of catching and spreading this virus. We encourage employees to share information about 

potential COVID-19 hazards at our workplace and assist in evaluating these hazards. We will 

investigate all workplace illnesses and correct hazards that are identified. We stay informed on the 

virus presence in our community, as well as recommendations made by national, state, and local 

health agencies. We review and update this plan as necessary.  

 

Pursuant to an Emergency Temporary Standard in place for COVID-19 (California Code of 

Regulations (CCR), Title 8, section 3205(c), all employers and places of employment are required 

to establish and implement an effective written COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP). TODB will 

endeavor to keep this program plan up to date and based on the latest regulations and guidance. 

 

The CPP is designed to control exposures to the SARS-CoV-2 virus that may occur in the workplace. 

 

DESIGNATION OF RESPONSIBILITY 

The General Manager has overall authority and responsibility for implementing the provisions of 

the CPP plan in our workplace. The Human Resources designee will work under the direction of the 

General Manager to implement and share the CPP plan with all employees. All 

managers/supervisors are responsible for implementing this plan in their assigned work areas and 

ensuring employees’ questions are answered, in a language they understand.  

 

All employees are required to follow the policies and procedures laid out in this plan, use safe work 

practices, and assist in maintaining a safe work environment.  

 

IDENTIFICATION AND EVALUATION OF COVID-19 HAZARDS 

We evaluate our workplace and operations to identify tasks that may have exposure to COVID-19. 

The evaluation includes all interactions, areas, activities, processes, equipment, and materials that 

could present potential exposure to COVID-19. Assessments include employee interactions with all 

persons who may be present in the workplace:  contractors, vendors, customers, and members of 

the public. Evaluations include: 

• Identification of places and times when people may gather or come in close contact with 

each other, even if they aren’t working. Examples: meetings, trainings, workplace 

entrances, bathrooms, hallways, aisles, walkways, elevators, break or eating areas, cool-

down areas, and waiting rooms. 

• Employees’ potential workplace exposure to all persons at the workplace. We will consider 

how employees and others enter, leave, and travel through the workplace. Examples: co-

workers, employees of other businesses, the public, customers or clients, and independent 

contractors.  

• Existing COVID-19 prevention measures and whether we need different or additional 

control measures.  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 

Employee Participation – We encourage employees to participate in this evaluation. They can contact 

Human Resources at the District Office to share information on potential COVID-19 hazards at our workplace 

or to assist in evaluating these hazards. 

 

Close Contact:  Being within six feet of a COVID-19 case for a cumulative total of 15 minutes or greater in any 

24-hour period within or overlapping with the infectious period, regardless of the use of face coverings, 

unless close contact is defined by regulation or order of the CDPH (if so, the CDPH definition shall apply). 

 

Employees may confidentially inform the General Manager or Human Resources if they have a 

higher risk for severe illness from COVID-19, such as those with conditions like lung disease, 

obesity, or cancer.  The employee and General Manager will engage in the interactive process to 

determine if any reasonable job accommodations exist to reduce employee chance of exposure.  

 

The jobs/tasks/activities at the Town of Discovery Bay CSD have been assessed as follows: 

 

TABLE 1 – RISK ASSESSMENT 
 

JOB TITLE / TASK DESCRIPTION OF EXPOSURE RISK 

Entering workplace Numerous employees in close proximity to each other 

Designated conference tables Close interaction with another person for extended period of time 

 

CORRECTION OF COVID-19 HAZARDS  

We select and implement  feasible control measures to minimize or eliminate employee exposure 

to COVID-19. We review orders and guidance COVID-19 hazards and prevention from the State of 

California and the local health department, including general information and information specific 

to our industry, location, and operations. We correct unsafe or unhealthy conditions, work 

practices, policies, and procedures in a timely manner based on the severity of the hazard.  

 

CONTROLS TO REDUCE EXPOSURE 
 

We will implement the most current state and local recommendations, guidelines and ordinances 

to reduce COVID-19 exposure and will inspect periodically to check that controls are current.  Any 

deficiencies are corrected right away, and we update this plan if needed.  

 

ENGINEERING CONTROLS —Equipment and Building Systems to Minimize Exposures 

Our engineering controls for COVID-19 include: 

• Maximizing outdoor air for ventilation as much as feasible except when EPA’s Air Quality 

Index is greater than 100 or when increasing outdoor air would cause harm to employees, 

such as excessive heat or cold. 

• When open to the Public: installing cleanable solid partitions between workers and 

customers when 6 feet of distance cannot be maintained. 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE CONTROLS — Policies, Procedures, and Practices to Minimize Exposure 

Our administrative controls for COVID-19 could include: 

• Limiting Access to the workplace to only necessary staff.  

• Prohibit any employee/visitor sick or potentially contagious from entering the workplace. 

Anyone exhibiting any potential symptoms of COVID-19 should contact their 

manager/supervisor and leave the worksite.   

• Wearing a Face Covering – We provide face coverings to all employees and require they 

be worn as required by the local health department or by orders from CDPH. We will not 

prevent any employee from wearing a face covering when required unless it would create 

a safety hazard, such as interfering with the safe operation of equipment. The face 

coverings provided will be cloth/woven material of at least two layers, fit snuggly, and 

completely cover the nose and mouth. Face coverings must be clean and undamaged. Face 

coverings are not respiratory protection against hazardous chemicals/dust, and do not 

replace physical distancing requirements.  

Employees are not required to wear a face covering in the following situations: 

a. When an employee is alone in a room. 

b. While eating or drinking at the workplace, provided employees are at least six feet 

apart and outside air supply to the area has been maximized to the extent possible. 

c. When employees wear respiratory protection in accordance with Section 5144 or 

other Title 8 safety orders. 

d. When employees cannot wear face coverings due to a medical or mental health 

condition or disability. This includes a hearing-impaired person or someone using 

sign language to communicate. Employees exempted from wearing a face covering 

due to medical conditions, mental health conditions, or disability must wear an 

effective non-restrictive alternative, such as a face shield with a drape on the bottom 

that we will provide, if their condition or disability allows.  

e. When a specific task cannot be performed with a face covering. This exception is 

limited to the time period in which such tasks are being performed, and the 

unmasked employee shall be at least six feet away from all other persons. 

f. When, under circumstances existing at the time, the local health official no longer 

requires it.  

 

Signs are posted at the entrance to the workplace to communicate the requirement for face 

coverings by all non-employees entering the workplace.  These may be removed if not required 

by the local health official. 

 

• Physical Distancing – If required by the local health official, everyone must keep a six-foot 

distance from others at all times, except where we can show that it is not possible or for 

brief times during the movement of people in the workplace. When six feet of distance 

cannot be maintained, people will be as far apart as possible. Methods for physical 

distancing include: 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

a. Reducing the number of persons in an area at one time (including visitors) 

b. Visual cues such as signs and floor markings to show employee locations and paths 

of travel 

c. Staggered arrival, departure, work, and break times 

d. Adjusted work processes (such as reducing production speed) to allow greater 

distance between employees 

e. Telework or other remote work arrangement 

• Practice Good Hygiene – Wash hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds or use 

an alcohol-based hand sanitizer, with at least 60% alcohol. Hand sanitizer stations are 

placed throughout the workplace. The designated Safety Coordinator is responsible for 

ensuring hand hygiene stations are readily accessible and stocked with soap and paper 

towels, or sanitizer. 

• Prohibiting the Sharing of PPE or Other Workplace Equipment – no sharing of phones, 

computers, or tools. If items must be shared, they shall be disinfected between uses by 

those using it. The sharing of vehicles should also be minimized as much as possible.  

• Cleaning and Disinfecting Frequently – Surfaces, especially frequently touched surfaces, 

will be disinfected with products that meet the EPA’s criteria for use against coronavirus. 

Disinfectants are used according to manufacturer’s directions. Employees are trained on 

the hazards of the disinfectants, to use only in well-ventilated areas, any PPE that is 

required, and to never mix chemicals.  Janitorial services are scheduled twice a week. 

 

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) – Equipment Worn by Employees to Minimize Exposure 

In general, employees WILL NOT use respirators at TODB for protection from COVID-19. If a 

hazard assessment determines respirators are needed, they will be used in accordance with Title 

8, Section 5144.  
 

Any PPE used to protect from COVID-19 (i.e. gowns, face masks, gloves), is selected based on 

function, fit, and availability. Employees are trained when and why PPE is necessary, how to 

properly put on and take off PPE, and how to clean, maintain, and store reusable PPE. Job hazard 

assessments are performed by supervisors/managers to identify any PPE required for a specific job. 

Managers/Supervisors are responsible for ensuring that adequate supplies of PPE are available and 

accessible.  

 

INVESTIGATING AND RESPONDING TO COVID-19 CASES IN THE WORKPLACE 

Illness at the Workplace 

We investigate all COVID-19 cases in the workplace. Our investigation includes verifying COVID-19 

case status, obtaining information on COVID-19 test results and symptom onset, identifying and 

recording COVID-19 cases, and reporting when required by the regulations. 

 

TODB will not reveal personally identifiable information or employee medical information to any 

person or entity unless required by law (such as Cal/OSHA, local health department, and local law 

enforcement). 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

Notification  

Employees must alert their manager/supervisor if they are having symptoms of COVID-19, had a 

possible COVID-19 exposure, were diagnosed with COVID-19, or are awaiting test results. We do 

not discriminate or retaliate against employees for reporting positive test results or symptoms. 

 

Following notification of a positive test/diagnosis, we will immediately take the appropriate action 

as required by the local health official. 

1. Determine the day and time the COVID-19 case was last present, and to the extent possible, 

the date of the positive COVID-19 test(s) and/or diagnosis, and the date the COVID-19 case 

first had one or more COVID-19 symptoms, if any were experienced. 

2. Determine who may have had a close contact.  This requires an evaluation of the activities 

of the COVID-19 case and all locations at the workplace which may have been visited by 

the COVID-19 case during the infectious period. 

3. Within one business day of the time that the COVID-19 case was reported, written notice 

shall be given by email that people at the worksite may have been exposed to COVID-19.  

Managers shall ensure that their personnel have been so advised and that any language 

barrier has been addressed.   The advisement shall also be made to contractors and visitors 

that can be identified.  

 

Exclusion from the Workplace 

Employees with COVID-19 shall be excluded from the workplace.   Employees should contact 

Human Resources for guidance and benefits. 

 

Return to Work 

Criteria for returning to work after testing positive for COVID-19 will be based on local health 

official rules and recommendations.  

 

REPORTING, RECORDKEEPING, AND ACCESS 

Reporting 

Reporting to the Local Health Department (LHD) – This requirement also complies with AB 685.  

Within 48-hours of knowledge, Human Resources will notify SDRMA of any workplace outbreak of 

COVID-19. This is in compliance with SB-1159 Workers' Compensation: COVID-19 Critical Workers.  

 

A reportable outbreak is defined as at least three COVID-19 cases among workers at the same 

worksite within a 14-day period. We will work with the LHD to carry out contact tracing and follow 

all LHD recommendations including temporary closure of our business if advised.   

 

Reporting to our Claims Administrator – SB 1159 (required for employers with five or more 

employees) Human Resources will report to SDRMA (the TODB’s Workers’ Compensation claims 

administrator), when an employee has tested positive for COVID-19. This report will be made 

within three days of knowledge of an employees’ positive test result. 

 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

CAL/OSHA Recording/Reporting – We will record on our 300 log all work-related COVID-19 cases 

that meet one of the following criteria: death, days away from work, restricted work or transfer to 

another job, medical treatment beyond first aid, loss of consciousness, significant injury or illness 

diagnoses by a physician or other licensed health care professional. 

  

We will report any serious COVID-19 illness that required inpatient hospitalization or resulted in 

death to our local Cal/OSHA office as soon as possible, but in no case more than eight hours after 

knowledge.  

 

Recordkeeping 

The Town of Discovery Bay CSD maintains records of the steps taken to implement this written 

program. These records include but are not limited to training, inspections, hazard identification, 

etc. 

• We keep a record of and track all COVID-19 cases. These records include the employee’s: 

• Name 

• Contact information 

• Occupation 

• Location where the employee worked 

• Date of the last day at the workplace 

• Date of positive COVID-19 test 

 

All medical information will be kept confidential. The log of COVID cases, with names and contact 

information removed, will be made available to employees, authorized employee representatives, 

or as otherwise required by law. 

Access 

This program will be made available at the workplace to employees, authorized employee 

representatives, and to representatives of Cal/OSHA.  

 

COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS 

All employees are asked to confidentially report, without fear of discrimination or retaliation, any 

symptoms, potential exposures, and possible hazards relating to COVID-19 at the workplace. 

Employees should make these reports directly to Human Resources at the District Office. 

 

The TODB explains to all employees how we accommodate high-risk employees of severe COVID-

19 illness. An employee can make a confidential report of his/her own high-risk condition to Human 

Resources.  

 

If an employee is suspected of having a workplace exposure to COVID-19, we will provide 

information about access to COVID-19 testing at no cost. We will inform affected employees of the 

reason for testing and the potential consequences of a positive test. Local COVID-19 testing is 

available in our area through Contra Costa Health Services. 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 

NOTE – additional communication requirements may apply depending upon severity of outbreak. 

See Appendix A for multiple COVID-19 infections and outbreak procedures. See Appendix B for 

major outbreak procedures.  

 

We communicate information about COVID-19 hazards and our COVID-19 policies and procedures 

to employees and other employers, persons, and entities that come in contact with our workplace.  

Other employers must ensure their employees follow our plan or equivalent to ensure protection 

of both their and our employees. When our employees are at another worksite, we will verify that 

procedures at the other worksites are protective of our employees, such as mask wearing and 

social distancing as may be required by the local health official. 

EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION 

We provide all employees training and instruction on the symptoms of COVID-19 illness and 

exposure control methods in place at TODB including: 

• Information on how COVID-19 spreads and infects people.  

• Symptoms of COVID-19  

• The importance of getting a COVID-19 test and staying out of the workplace if you have 

symptoms. 

• Our symptom screening procedures for employees and all other visitors to the workplace 

• Risk of exposure to COVID-19 on the job. 

• Cleaning and disinfection schedules and procedures for our workplace.  

• Control measures to protect employees from exposure and infection:  

a. Requiring employees to stay home when sick.  

b. Physical distancing. If required by the LHD, employees must maintain at least 6’ of 

separation from other individuals in the workplace. Since infectious aerosols can 

travel further than 6’, face covering are required along with physical distancing at all 

indoor workplaces.  

c. Frequent handwashing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds, or using hand 

sanitizer when handwashing sinks are not readily accessible.  

d. Proper use of a face coverings and the fact that a face covering is NOT respiratory 

protection. 

e. Covering coughs and sneezes.  

• Acceptable PPE and proper use.  

• What to do if they are sick and how to obtain a COVID-19 test.  

• Information on COVID-19-related leave benefits available under workers’ compensation 

law, the federal Families First Coronavirus Response Act, Labor Code sections 248.1 and 

248.5, Labor Code sections 3212.86 through 3212.88, local governmental requirements, 

TODB leave policies, and leave guaranteed through other legal sources.  

• The contents of this plan.  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 

 

 

 

 

SAFETY COMMITTEE CHARTER 
INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 
APPENDIX A – J 

 

 

 

 
2022 

 
TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

APPENDIX A — MULTIPLE COVID-19 INFECTIONS AND OUTBREAKS 

The following procedures will be followed whenever there are three or more COVID-19 cases in our 

workplace within a 14-day period or the workplace has been identified by Contra Costa Public Health 

as the location of a COVID-19 outbreak. These procedures can be stopped only after no new COVID-19 

cases are detected at our workplace for a 14-day period.  

 

Testing  

The Town of Discovery Bay CSD will provide testing at no cost or expense to the employee during 

working hours except for those not present during the outbreak period defined above. This testing will 

be done immediately after determination of an outbreak, and then again one week later; negative test 

results will not change the quarantine or health order status of any individual. Following these two 

tests, we will provide continuous testing to employees in the workplace during the defined outbreak 

period at least once a week, or more frequently if recommended by the Contra Costa Public Health 

Order. We will provide additional testing as required by the Division in accordance with any special 

order from Cal/OSHA. 

 

Exclusion from the Workplace  

The following employees will be excluded from the workplace during an outbreak: 

• Positive cases until return to work requirements are met. 

• Employees that have been exposed to COVID-19 until 10 days after the last known exposure.  

 

Employees excluded from work due to positive diagnosis or exposure but otherwise able and available 

to work will maintain their earnings, seniority, and all other rights and benefits. Information on 

available benefits will be provided at the time of exclusion.  

 

Workplace Investigation, Review, and Hazard Correction  

We will investigate all workplace illness to determine potential factors in the workplace that could 

have contributed to the COVID-19 outbreak. Additionally, we will review our relevant COVID-19 

policies, procedures, and controls and we will implement changes needed to prevent further virus 

spread.  

 

All investigations and reviews will be documented to include: 

• Investigation of new or continuing COVID-19 hazards. 

• Review of our leave policies and practices, including whether employees are discouraged 

from staying home when sick. 

• Review of our COVID-19 testing policies. 

• Investigation of the sufficiency of outdoor air. 

• Investigation of the sufficiency of air filtration. 

• Investigation into feasibility of physical distancing. 

 

These reviews will be updated every 30 days that an outbreak continues with new information, new 

or previously unrecognized COVID-19 hazards, or as necessary. We will make changes based on 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

investigations and reviews to reduce the spread of COVID-19 and consider such actions as moving work 

tasks outdoors, allowing employees to work remotely, increasing outdoor air supply to our indoor 

workplaces, improving air filtration to the highest MERV rating compatible with our air handling 

system, increasing physical distancing as much as possible, providing respiratory protection, or other 

possible control measures.  

 

Notifications to the Contra Costa Health Services 

As soon as possible but at least within 48-hours of knowledge, Human Resources will notify SDRMA  

when there are three or more COVID-19 cases. We will work with under the Contra Costa Public Health 

Order to carry out contact tracing and follow all recommendations including temporary closure of our 

business if advised. We will provide Contra Costa Public Health the total number of cases and for each 

case the following: 

• Name 

• Contact information 

• Occupation 

• Workplace location 

• Business address 

• Hospitalization and/or fatality status 

• North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code of the workplace 

• Any other information requested 

We will continue to update Contra Costa Public Health with additional case information during the 

outbreak period until there have been no detected COVID-19 cases for 14 days.   

 

COVID-19 Hazard Correction  

In addition to the engineering controls, administrative controls, and PPE provisions of our COVID-19 

Prevention Program, we will do the following: 

• Evaluate the benefits that portable or mounted High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) 

filtration units, or other air cleaning systems, may offer in reducing the risk of transmission 

and implementing wherever possible.  

• Evaluate the need for respiratory protection or changes to current respiratory protection in 

use. Any respiratory use will be in accordance with 8CCR5144. 

• Implement any other control measures necessary by the issuance of an Order to Take Special 

Action by the Division in accordance with 8CCR332.3. 

 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

APPENDIX B — SAFETY COMMITTEE CHARTER 

 

COMMITTEE NAME SPONSOR TEAM LEADER TEAM MEMBERS 

The Town of Discovery 

Bay Safety Committee 

General 

Manager 

Human 

Resources  

Safety Coordinators as identified in the Injury and 

Illness Prevention Program 

Meeting 

Times/Location: 
Third Wednesday of each month at 10:30 PM in the Town Hall. 

Purpose 

 

To help insure a safe and healthful workplace and compliance with federal, state, and 

local safety regulations through participation in: 

 Monthly safety committee meetings per CCR, 8 3203, (c) et. al. 

 Review quarterly safety inspections to help identify and correct hazards 

 Injury and illness investigations to evaluate cause of injury and corrective action 

to prevent recurrence 

 Communication between employees and management 

 Schedule and review employee safety training 

Scope/Authority  Provide advice and input to individual departments on safety matters 

 Ensure that all employees are provided with a safe and healthy workplace 

 Identify and discontinue unsafe practices and/or use of unsafe equipment 

 Schedule required safety training 

 Recommend corrective actions to address safety hazards 

 Serve as communications conduit between employees and management on 

safety concerns 

Success Criteria  Compliance with safety regulations and receive no OSHA citations. 

 Provide regularly scheduled employee safety training 

 Fewer accidents and injuries 

 Establishment of required safety programs 

 Improved feedback regarding employees’ sense of safety and well-being 

Decision-Making 

Process 

 Strive for consensus; majority vote by area safety coordinators present to pass on 

recommendations or take action. Roberts Rules of Order will be loosely followed. 

Product(s)  Develop written safety programs in compliance with CCR, 8. 

 Provide safety training and recordkeeping 

 Produce quarterly periodic inspections reports 

 Respond to employee safety concerns and/or suggestions 

Decision 

Communication 

 Agenda and minutes of meetings to members and posted at employee worksites 

 Use of internal and external communication tools to disseminate major actions 

Evaluation  Annual review by the Safety Committee and Management on committee 

effectiveness. 

 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

APPENDIX C — DEPARTMENT SAFETY COORDINATORS 

 

DEPARTMENT EMAIL 

Administration dbreitstein@todb.ca.gov 

Human Resources lcueva@tobd.ca.gov 

Parks & Recreation mgallo@todb.ca.gov  

Water & Wastewater agoldsworthy@todb.ca.gov 

Lighting & Landscaping bengelman@todb.ca.gov  

 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

APPENDIX D — INSPECTION AND CORRECTION FORM 

The Town of Discovery Bay 
Safety Inspection 

 

DATE: __________________________ 

INSPECTION CONDUCTED BY: ________________________________________________  

The following are violations of Cal/OSHA regulations, California Fire Code, California Building code, other standards, or are 

hazardous conditions that may cause injury or illness to employees at the Town of Discovery Bay, or possibly cause negative 

environmental impact, or interrupt the Town of Discovery Bay’s ability to do business.  These conditions require corrective action 

to ensure a safe and healthful workplace for employees and employer. 
 

Findings which may not be directly traceable to an enforceable code or regulation are given in italics.  Note that failure to abate 

these hazards may still put the Town of Discovery Bay at risk of injury and/or loss, civil litigation, citation under the General Duty 

Clause (California Labor Code Section 6400), or other action. 

 

For explanation of Risk Assessment Codes see the last page. 

ITEM # FINDING(S) RISK RATING 
ASSIGNED TO 

or WORK ORDER # 

DATE 

FIXED 
INITIALS 

      

      

      

 

The following items were previously identified and still need to be resolved. 

ITEM # FINDING(S) RISK RATING 
ASSIGNED TO 

or WORK ORDER # 

DATE 

FIXED 
INITIALS 

      

      

      

 

Please initial and date corrections as they are completed. 

 
RISK ASSESSMENT CLASS 

Class 1 - Critical (may cause death, serious injury, significant environmental impact, or substantial financial losses) and/or is likely to occur soon. 

Class 2 - Serious (may cause injury, occupational illness, or environmental or property damage) and/or probably will occur in time. 

Class 3 - Minor (probably would not affect personnel or environmental safety or health, but is a violation of specific criteria).   



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

APPENDIX E — RECORDS RETENTION REQUIREMENTS 

 

RECORD MINIMUM RETENTION (YRS) CODE CITATION 

Workplace inspections 1 8CCR3203(b)(1) 

Training records (see below for exceptions) 1 8CCR3203(b)(2) 

Safety committee meeting records 1 8CCR3203(c)(2) 

Accident investigation records None  

OSHA300, 300A, 301 5 8CCR14300.33 

Employee medical records  Termination of employment + 30 yrs. 8CCR3204(d)(1)(A) 

Employee exposure records (includes all workplace 

monitoring data, MSDSs, Chemical inventories) 
“At least” 30 yrs. 8CCR3204(d)(1)(B) 

Bloodborne Pathogens Training 3 8CCR5193(h)(2)(B) 

Sharps injury log 5 8CCR5193(h)(3) 

Hazardous waste manifest receipts 3 HSC25160.2(b)(3) & (4) 

Asbestos training records Termination of employment + 1 year 8CCR1529(n)(4) 

Notification of identification, location and quantity 

of asbestos 

Duration of ownership of building; 

must be transferred to new owner 
8CCR1529(n)(6) 

Noise exposure measurements 2 8CCR5100(d)(1) 

Audiometric test records Duration of employment 8CCR5100(d)(2) 

Maintenance of fire extinguishing systems 5 19CCR904.1(b) 

Fire Alarm systems acceptance tests & as-builts Life of system NFPA 72, 7-5.1 

Fire Alarm systems annual maintenance, inspection 

& testing  
1 year past next test (e.g., 2 years) NFPA 72, 7-5.2.1 

Fire Sprinkler Maintenance & Service Reports 5 yrs. 19 CCR 904.1 & 904.2 

Fire Sprinkler Maintenance & Service Reports 1 year past next test (e.g., 2 years) NFPA 25, 4.3.5 

Reports of testing on mechanical ventilation 

systems such as fume hoods 
5 yrs. 8 CCR 5143 

Reports of testing on HVAC systems for building 

ventilation 
5 yrs. 8 CCR 5142(b)(2) 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

APPENDIX F —TOOLBOX MEETING RECORD 

Toolbox Safety Meeting Report 
 

DATE 

DEPARTMENT/SHOP 

MEETING LEADER (print) 

MEETING LEADER (signature) 

TOPIC DISCUSSED 

 

 

 

 

Personnel in Attendance 

Employee Name (print clearly) Employee Signature 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

APPENDIX G —MASTER AGENDA 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 

Safety Committee Agenda 

DATE  

TIME 

 

 

 

 ► Approval of Minutes 

 

 ►  Action Items 

 

► Du-All Update 

1.  

2.  

3.  

 

► Training  

1. Conducted:  

2. Conducted:  

3. Upcoming:  

4. Upcoming:  

 

► Accident/Near Misses Report 

 

► Open Discussion/Safety Suggestions 

 

► Next Meeting:  

 

 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

APPENDIX H — SAFETY SUGGESTION FORM 

 

SAFETY SUGGESTION FORM 

 

This form is for use by employees who wish to make suggestions or report an unsafe condition or practice. 

 

Area of Unsafe Condition or Action:         

What Unsafe Condition or Action Did You See?        

             

             

             

             

            

What Do You Think Might Have Caused This?        

             

             

             

How Would You Suggest Improving Safety?        

             

             

             

             

Has This Been Reported to the Safety Coordinator? _____________________ 

Name (optional):__________________________   Date: __________________ 

   

THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY ENCOURAGES EMPLOYEES TO PARTICIPATE IN COMMUNICATIONS INVOLVING 

SAFETY. 

THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY WILL INVESTIGATE EVERY SUGGESTION AND ADVISE THE EMPLOYEE OF THE 

RESPONSE IN A TIMELY MANNER. 

 

Anonymous Suggestions: A response will be written and posted on the safety bulletin Board. 

 

  



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

APPENDIX I — NEW HIRE ORIENTATION CHECKLIST 

 

Safety Program & Training Checklist 
For all employees: at hire, transfer and annual performance review 

 

Employee Name:   

Hire/Review Date:   

Job Title:   

Department/Division/Unit:   

Initial and date each item when completed, updated and reviewed 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP): 

  Identify the Safety Coordinator and review the coordinators duties 

  Review the safety inspection and accident investigation procedures 

  Review avenues of safety communication  

  Review the safety discipline procedures (if not compliant with regulations, etc.) 

  Review of Codes of Safe Practices specific to the employee’s area 

  Identification of necessary employee training on specific equipment: 

  Spill Equipment, Forklift, Respirator, Lifts, Power Tools, etc. 

 

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE): 

  PPE Hazard Assessment (what to wear, how to properly use, limitations, etc.) 

 

Provided:   

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Hazardous Materials: 

  Review the Hazard Communication program and chemical inventory 

  Review Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) and locations(s) 

  Review labeling requirements and the NFPA placard numbering system 

  Review how to safely handle chemicals on site 

  Review the spill procedures and spill equipment (location, etc.) 

  Review what to do in the event of an emergency or exposure 

  HAZWOPER Training 

  Emergency Response Program and Drills 

 

Fire and Evacuation: 

  Review the primary and secondary evacuation routes 

  Review evacuation relocation area 

  Review evacuation Do’s and Don’ts 

  Drill procedures 

  Plant Emergency Plan and Contact Phone Numbers 

 



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

Fleet & Equipment Program 

  Commercial/Non-Commercial Driver License(s) & Certification 

  Pre & Post Trip Vehicle Inspection: (Training, Defensive Driving, Documentation, etc.) 

  Seatbelt Use & Requirements 

  Radio, Cell Phone Use & Requirements 

  Vehicle Accident Process & Reporting 

  Equipment Specific Training & Refreshers   

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Emergency Response: 

  NIMS/SEMS 100, 200, 300, 700, 800, etc. 

 

Safety Programs & Training: (Identify as required for specific job classification/title) 

  Knowledge, Awareness & Use of all City/Plant Policy/Procedures/Instructions, etc. 

  Asbestos Awareness Safety Training 

  Bloodborne Pathogens Program & Training 

  Confined Space Program/Permit and Entry/Rescue Training & Certification 

  Driver Safety, Defensive Driving Training 

  Electrical Safety Program & Training (Non-Electrician & Electrician NFPA 70E) 

  Ergonomics & Back Safety Training 

  Fall Protection Program & Training 

  Fire Extinguisher Training 

  First Aid/CPR/AED Certification Training 

  Tree Work & Climbing Safety Training 

  Forklift Safety Training 

  Hazard Communication Program & Training 

  Hazardous Materials Program & Safety Training 

  Hazardous Waste Operations First Responder Certification (8 hour) 

  Hearing Conservation Program, Training & Annual Audiometric Testing 

  Heat Stress & Illness Program & Training 

  Ladder & Scaffold Safety Training 

  Lockout/Tagout Program & Training (Equipment Specific Procedures) 

  Respiratory Protection Program, Medical Evaluation, FIT Testing & Training 

  Hotwork Program/Permit & Welding Safety Training 

  Emergency Action Plan  

  Concrete/Masonry Grinding Safety Training & Program/COSP/SOP 

  Accident Investigation Training 

  IIPP Program, Training 

  Additional Safety Training or Certification (s) identified as required:   

 

Specific area equipment & safety rules reviewed:   

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Add additional pages as needed to comply with all regulations and as identified on the Training Matrix. 

Employee Signature:   Date:   

Supervisor Signature:   Date:   



 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

APPENDIX J —Safety Training Matrix 

Town of Discovery Bay 

                                                                                                                 

SAFETY TRAINING MATRIX 
  

  
1

. 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 

  
2

. 
La

n
d

sc
a

p
in

g
 

  
3

. 
R

e
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
 

  
W

a
te

r 
(V

e
o

li
a

) 

  
W

a
st

e
w

a
te

r 
(V

e
o

li
a

) 

  
4

. 
B

u
il

d
in

g
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 

  
5

. 
P

o
o

l 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 

  
6

. 
Li

fe
g

u
a

rd
s 

                    

Bloodborne Pathogens – 8 CCR 5193 AT,W X X X X X X X X 

Confined Space - 8 CCR 5157-5158  I,AO,W    X X    

CPR/AED - 8 CCR 3400  B X X X X X X X X 

Fire Extinguisher (Portable) - 8 CCR 6151  AT X X X X X X X X 

First Aid - 8 CCR 3400  B X X X X X X X X 

Hazardous Waste Management - 22 CCR 66264.16 AT     X    

Hearing Conservation - 8 CCR 5095  AO,AT,W  X  X X X   

Heavy Equipment (Earth Moving) - 8 CCR 3664 AT  X  X X X   

Lockout Tagout  - 8 CCR 3314 & 2320  AO,I,W  X  X X X   

Pesticide Handler - 3 CCR Division 6 AT, W  X       

Respiratory Protection - 8 CCR 5144  AO,AT,I,W  X  X X X X  

Accident Investigation - 8 CCR 3203  J X        

Back Safety - 8 CCR 3203  J X X X X X X X X 

Defensive Driver Safety - 8 CCR 3203 J X X X X X X X X 

Electrical Safety - High Voltage - 8 CCR 2700-2989 I    X X    

Electrical Safety - Low Voltage - 8 CCR 2299-2599 I    X X    

Elevating Work Platforms (Aerial Lift/Boom Lift) - 8 CCR 3638 & 3648  I  X  X X X   

Emergency Action Plan - 8 CCR 3220  I,W X X X X X X X X 

Ergonomics - 8 CCR 5110  J X        

Fall Protection - 8 CCR 1669 - 1678, 3210 I,W  X  X X X   

Forklift & Powered Industrial Trucks - 8 CCR 3668 I,C    X X X   

Hazard Communication GHS - 8 CCR 5194  I, W  X  X X X X  

Heat Illness Prevention - 8 CCR 3395 I, W X X X X X X X X 

Hot Work - 8 CCR 4848 I, W    X X X   

Injury & Illness Prevention Program - 8 CCR 3203 W X X X X X X X X 

Machine Tool Safety - 8 CCR 3203 I    X X X   

Personal Protective Equipment - 8 CCR 3380-3385  I, W  X X X X X X  

Poison Oak & Bug Bites - 8 CCR 3203 I  X X X X X  X 

Portable Ladder Safety - 8 CCR 3276  I  X X X X X   

Power Lawn Mowers - 8 CCR 3563  I  X       

Safety for the Veteran Employee - 8 CCR 3203 J  X X X X X X  

Safety Responsibilities for Supervisors - 8 CCR 3203  J         

Traffic Control and Flagger Safety - 8 CCR 1598 & 1599  I  X  X X X   

Workplace Violence - 8 CCR 3203  J X X X X X X X X 

 



 
 

 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

June 15, 2022 

 
Prepared By: Michael R. Davies, Interim Assist. General Manager 
Submitted By: Michael R. Davies, Interim Assist. General Manager 
  
Agenda Title 
 
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adopting Resolution No. 2022-23: In Support of Ensuring the Health and 
Sustainability of the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2022-23 In Support of Ensuring the Health and Sustainability of the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Contra Costa County has extended an invitation to executive staff and board members to attend a “Delta Counties’ Water 
Summit” (“Summit”) on June 24, 2022, 9:00am to 11:00am.  The main theme of the Summit is a call to action to reject the 
Tunnel/Delta Conveyance Project and to support better alternatives.  Attendance at the Summit may be done in-person in 
Sacramento or online.  Registration is required by Wednesday, June 22, 2022.  Information concerning the Summit is 
attached.   
 
Contra Costa County has also joined the Delta Counties Coalition (“DCC”) to collectively articulate their mutual interests on 
issues concerning the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta from the perspective of the Delta region itself and from the people 
who call the Delta home.  These counties are Contra Costa, San Joaquin, Sacramento, Solano and Yolo.  
 
Attached is Draft Resolution No. 2022-23 in support of the efforts of Contra Costa County and the DCC. If adopted, a copy 
will be sent to the DCC coordinator. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
   
Attachments 
 
1. Draft Resolution No. 2022-23 
2. Delta Counties Water Summit Information 
 
  

 
AGENDA ITEM: F4 



 
 

1 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, 

A CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, 
IN SUPPORT OF ENSURING THE HEALTH AND SUSTAINABILITY 

OF THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JOAQUIN DELTA 
 

 WHEREAS, the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta is the largest estuary on the 

Pacific Coast of the United States and includes major eastside tributaries that account for 

nearly half the snowmelt and runoff of the entire state. Located east of the San Francisco 

Bay and Suisun Marsh at the confluence of the Sacramento-San Joaquin Rivers, the 

Delta stretches inland to encompass an area of over 730,000 acres with islands and tracts 

of rich fertile soil surrounded by miles of sloughs and winding channels protected by 

levees creating one of the country’s most productive agricultural regions; and 

WHEREAS, the Delta is also habitat for hundreds of plant and animal species 

providing crucial habitat for fish and wildlife. In addition, the Delta with its legacy 

Communities is a popular boating and recreation area, which supports a fishery for both 

recreational and commercial purposes. Eight percent of the State’s commercial fishery 

species either live in or migrate through the Delta; and 

WHEREAS, the Delta is also the hub of California’s State and Federal water 

storage and delivery system with water exports made to agricultural and urban users in 

the Bay Area, Silicon Valley, San Joaquin Valley, the Central Coast, and Southern 

California; two-thirds of California relies on the Delta for some portion of their drinking 

water. Additionally, over 7 million acres of farmland in the San Joaquin Valley are irrigated 

in part by water conveyed through the Delta, contributing to California’s multi-billion dollar 

agriculture industry, which produces half the nation’s fruits, nuts, and vegetables, and 

twenty percent of the nation’s dairy products; and 

WHEREAS, many people living in the California Delta depend on the Delta for 

drinking water, water for irrigation and livestock, industrial uses, and habitat, recreation. 

The Delta is also essential to the shipment of goods from inland ports over highways and 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION 2022-23 

 



 
 

2 

railways crisscrossing the Delta. The Delta also contains natural gas fields, electrical 

transmission and conveyance facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the state has, among other things, proposed large-scale changes to 

the Delta’s water conveyance system, water rights and water management statewide and 

many other aspects related to the Delta; and   

WHEREAS, there are many parties making policy in and around the Delta, 

including the State of California and United States Federal Government, making the need 

for local voices in the Delta essential; and 

WHEREAS, the Delta Counties Coalition (DCC) Counties and other local agencies 

in and around the Delta have raised significant concerns with large-scale isolated 

conveyance projects proposed by Federal and State entities that could have far reaching 

negative impacts to the Delta; and 

WHEREAS, Large portions of the Delta Primary Zone and portions of the Delta 

Secondary Zone (per the Delta Protection Act) are located in or are near the Town of 

Discover Bay; and 

WHEREAS, the Counties of Contra Costa, Sacramento, San Joaquin, Solano, and 

Yolo have joined together in a coalition, identified as the Delta Counties Coalition (DCC), 

to collectively articulate their mutual interests on issues concerning the Sacramento-San 

Joaquin Delta from the perspective of the Delta region itself and from the people who call 

the Delta home, who best understand the tremendous resources the Delta represents; 

and 

WHEREAS, the DCC has identified a need for joint action and advocacy among 

local governments in the region in various areas of mutual interest on Delta related issues; 

and 

 WHEREAS, since 2008 the DCC has given a strong local voice to the Delta 

pursuing three goals:  

1.  Protect and enhance Delta Communities 

2. Improve water quality and Delta ecosystem 

3.  Provide a more reliable water supply for the state to increase water through 

 sustainable approaches and reduce reliance on the Delta; and 

WHEREAS, in pursuit of these three goals, the DCC and its partners advocate for 

statewide water solutions that includes water system operation improvements, increased 

regional self-reliance, adequate levee maintenance and improvements, increased water 



 
 

3 

storage, water reuse and recycling, stormwater capture, and restoration that includes 

good neighbor policies in the Delta; and 

WHEREAS, The DCC has advocated for and advanced initiatives in pursuit of its 

goals including pursuing funding for commercial abandoned and derelict vessel removal, 

invasive species control, levee improvements, and water supply regional self-sufficiency, 

all of which are positive ways to spend limited resources; and 

WHEREAS, The State of California has been pursuing an isolated Delta 

conveyance since the 1940s under many titles including the Peripheral Canal, Bay Delta 

Conservation Plan, California WaterFix, and Delta Conveyance Project; and 

WHEREAS, an isolated delta conveyance (water conveyance that involves intakes 

on the Sacramento River and pipelines or canals to take that water to the South Delta or 

beyond), including the State’s currently proposed Delta Conveyance Project, removes 

freshwater flow through the Delta that is needed to maintain the many beneficial uses of 

water within and near the Delta. Construction and operation of any isolated Delta 

conveyance project is not consistent with DCC principles; and 

WHEREAS, an isolated Delta conveyance has potential adverse impacts on the 

Delta and its legacy communities, without any offsetting benefits, including, but not limited 

to, construction related impacts (traffic, road degradation, noise, water availability, 

recreation and air quality) over an estimated 14-year construction period, as well as 

permanent land use and agricultural impacts, economic impacts, water quality impacts, 

biological impacts and cultural and historical site impacts; and 

WHEREAS, an isolated Delta conveyance has a high cost compared to other 

available alternatives to improve statewide water supplies and would use limited 

resources that could be better spent on other projects that would improve levees, increase 

water storage, water reuse and recycling and stormwater capture and other means to 

increase regional water self-sufficiency, among other possible projects. An isolated Delta 

conveyance would cause negative impacts to users within and north of the Delta, while 

benefiting only those water users outside the Delta by increasing export pumping 

capacity; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 SECTION 1. That the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 
supports Contra Costa County and the DCC goals as stated herein, to ensure the health 



 
 

4 

and sustainability of the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta, this includes opposing an 
isolated Delta conveyance in any form including under the current title of Delta 
Conveyance Project. 

 
 SECTION 2. That the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 

supports Contra Costa County and the DCC position that the management of the 

Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta and greater Bay Delta Estuary must: 

a) Protect and improve water quality and water quantity in the Delta region and 

maintain appropriate Delta outflow for a healthy estuary; 

b) Protect the existing water right priority system and legislative protections 

established for the Delta; 

c) Respect and safeguard Delta Counties’ responsibilities related to land use, water 

resources, flood management, tax revenues, public health and safety, economic 

development, agricultural stability, recreation, and environmental protection in any 

projects, policies, or operations; 

d) Represent and include local government in any governance structures for the 

Delta; 

e) Protect, enhance, and preserve the Delta’s agricultural economic viability, the 

ongoing vitality of its communities, and its historical significance; 

f) Support rehabilitation, improvement, and maintenance of levees throughout;  

g) Support the Delta pool concept, in which the common resource provides quality 

freshwater supply to all Delta users, requiring mutual responsibility to maintain, 

restore, and protect the common resource; 

h) Support immediate improvements to through-Delta conveyance; 

i) Require that any water conveyance plan for the Delta is aligned with these 

principles and supported by clearly demonstrated improvement to the entire state’s 

water management; 

j) Protect and restore the Delta ecosystem and provide for a healthy estuary in 

perpetuity by ensuring adequate water supply and quality, enhancing Delta 

fisheries, and managing or eradicating invasive species; 

k) Include the study and implementation of storage options, sustainable groundwater 

management and conjunctive use, conservation, recycling, reuse, and regional 

self-sufficiency as part of an improved statewide flood management and water 

supply system, which will reduce reliance on the Delta as called for in the 

Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009; 



 
 

5 

l) Support conservation actions aligned with these principles and the habitat plans 

and programs of each Delta County. 

 
 SECTION 3. That this action is effective immediately. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY of June 2022. 

 
 
      _________________________ 
      Kevin Graves 
      Board President 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District at a regularly scheduled 
meeting, held on June 15, 2022, by the following vote of the Board: 

  
  AYES: 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 
  ABSTAIN: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Dina Breitstein 
Board Secretary 



RSVP Here!

SAVE THE DATE

JUNE 24, 2022
9:00 A.M. – 11:00 A.M.

Please join the Delta Counties Coalition (DCC) (elected officials from Contra Costa,
Sacramento, San Joaquin, Solano and Yolo counties) to learn about the State’s controversial
Delta Tunnel Project, its impact beyond the Delta, why it matters to your jurisdiction and to
instead promote statewide water solutions that benefit all communities. The in-person and
on-line summit will be held on Friday, June 24, 2022 from 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m., in
Sacramento or online. 

DELTA COUNTIES' WATER SUMMIT
California Needs A Fresh Start for its Water Future,
Not the Delta Tunnel

This summer, the draft environmental review documents for the State’s Tunnel/Delta
Conveyance Project will be released for public review. This project would involve over a
decade of construction, and would divert up to 6,000 cubic feet per second from the
Sacramento River, dramatically reducing freshwater flows through the Delta. This would have
negative impacts on the health of the estuary, local communities, Delta recreation and fish
and wildlife. As communities, businesses and farms throughout the state seek more reliable
water supplies, California needs sustainable and cost-effective solutions, not a massive $16
billion-dollar plus Tunnel/Delta Conveyance Project that won’t add a single drop of new water
to the system. This summit will be a forum to respond as a region to the State’s Tunnel
proposal and work toward more resilient and equitable water portfolio alternatives that don’t
create a sacrifice zone in the Delta.

https://www.eventbrite.com/e/354220632447


Date/Time: 
Friday, June 24, 2022
9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m. 

In-person Location:
Sacramento County Board of Supervisors Chambers
700 H Street, 1st Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

On-line Zoom link available upon registration.

Please RSVP by Friday, Wednesday, June 22nd
  
For more information, contact DCC Coordinator, Natasha Drane, at dranen@saccounty.gov or
916-874-4627.

We encourage your involvement in this important summit and look forward to your
participation on June 24th.

The irreplaceable values of the Delta, both locally and as a component of California’s
overall water system.
Overview of Tunnel/Delta Conveyance Project and the negative impacts it would have on
regional communities and the environment.
Discussion of Tunnel alternatives that would provide sustainable, affordable and unifying
statewide water solutions.
Call to action for participants to reject the Tunnel/Delta Conveyance Project and to
support better alternatives.

The event will focus on:

https://www.eventbrite.com/e/354220632447


 
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

June, 15 2022 

 

Prepared By:     Gregory Harris, District Wastewater Engineer  
Submitted By:   Dina Breitstein, General Manager 

Agenda Title   
 
Discussion and Possible Action to Award and Authorize the General Manager to Execute any and All 
Contracts for the Construction of the Diffuser Project. 
  
 
Recommended Action 
 

a) Reject proposals for construction of the outfall diffuser project.  Received bids were as follows.   
1. The Dutra Group                                                                                              - $1,907,000 
2. Power Engineering Construction Inc.                                                              - $1,027,000 
3. Engineers Estimate                                                                                          -  $   550,000 

 
b) Authorize Staff to attempt repairs of the existing diffuser rather than replacement of the diffuser at a 

budget not to exceed $200,000. 
 

c) Authorize the General Manager to Execute any and all new contracts recommended by Staff up to 
$200,000. 

 
d) Authorize the General Manager to cancel or modify contracts previously approved by the Board for the 

prepurchase of certain diffuser pieces. Total value of all prepurchase contracts approved by the Board 
was  $134,270.89.   
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The Town's wastewater effluent leaving Treatment Plant No. 2 is pumped approximately one mile to Old River 
where it is discharged through diffusers with multiple diffuser ports to mix the effluent into Old River.  The 
diffuser was constructed in December 2004 to comply with a previous Notice of Violation by the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board. 
 
A diver was hired to inspect the diffuser in 2013.  The inspection report indicated several of the diffuser ports 
are missing and a portion of the diffuser has become plugged and no longer operates properly.  During startup 
of the filtration project, testing of the effluent pump station showed the pump station can no longer pump 4 
million gallons per day (MGD) of flow to Old River. 4.3 MGD is the design flow of the pump station and was 
demonstrated when the pump station was tested in 2004 after the diffuser install.  The capacity of the effluent 
filtration and UV system is 4 MGD and the effluent pump station needs to be able to pump at least that much 
flow for the plant to properly handle peak wastewater flows.  The most likely cause of the poor performance of 
the export pump station is the plugged diffuser. 
 
 



 
 

Based on this information, the Town previously hired Advisian to prepare a report on options and costs to repair 
the diffuser.   This report was completed in June 2018.  From this report, Option 4 to replace the diffuser in 
place with a larger header pipe was selected as the best alternative going forward by Town Staff.   The Town 
set a CIP item 7012 at a budget cost of $500,000 for the permits, engineering, and construction of the diffuser 
repairs.  
 
In August 2019, the Town again hired Advisian to prepare environmental reports and CEQA documents for the 
repair of the diffuser system.  In October 2020, the Town hired Advisian to prepare plans and specifications for 
replacement of the diffuser.   
 
On April 20, 2022, the Town authorized prepurchase of certain diffuser pieces from four different vendors for  
a total amount of  $134,270.89.  This was done to have these pieces on hand in sufficient time prior to 
Construction  
 
In the 5-18-2022 Board Meeting, the Board was notified of the following: 
  

1. The Town has been out to bid for the Diffuser Replacement Project.   
2. Bids were due Friday May 6 at 2 pm.   
3. No bids were received by the Town.  
4. Staff was now proceeding under Section II.b of Policy 11 of the Town’s purchasing policy to begin 

direct negotiations with at least 2  of the larger contractors to obtained a negotiated proposal for the 
project.   This allowed an interactive approach between the Town and the Contractors to resolve 
questions and uncertainty on the project and to obtain valid proposals from the Contractors.   

5. Valid proposals were expected to be completed by June 8. 
  
Proposals to rebuild the existing diffuser were received from both the Dutra Group ($1,907,000) and Power 
Engineering ($1,027,000).   The proposal from Power Engineering excluded some items that would have to be 
put back into the project.  Most notably, a silt curtain that is required by the Army Corps and Fish and Game 
permits for the dredging needed to replace the diffuser.  Therefore, proceeding with Power Engineering would 
still entail unknown increased cost to put back into their proposal items required by Town permits.  
 
The cost of rebuilding the diffuser is more than double original estimates and is still not certain. Because of 
this, Staff has reassessed options for repair of the diffuser. Staff has done some preliminary investigation into 
options to repair the existing diffuser and make it more friendly to maintenance in the future.  This included 
discussions with one of the commercial divers for diver only repair of the diffuser.  The general repair approach 
would be as follows:   
 

1. Use the Contractor from the Denitrification Project (Anderson) to install a wye cleanout on the existing 
diffuser pipe. 

2. Use the Town Vac truck, or rent a vac truck, to suck out the plugged diffuser. This may require purchase 
of extra long or specialty hoses.  These hoses would be retained on site for future repairs.  

3. Hire a dive team to: 
a. Investigate the current state of the diffuser and determine the number of missing or failed 

diffusers.  The last dive inspection showed 5 locations.  
b. Hand excavate to expose each diffuser and attach a new diffuser at that location. 
c. Hand backfill on top of the pipe.  
d. Make any other needed under water repairs.  

  
The total cost for the repairs in this manner will not be known until we do the work.  However, based on our 
preliminary investigation, Staff is setting a budget of $200,000 and believes this is a reasonable budget given 
that we are only repairing the diffuser and not replacing it. Staff would come back to the Board if something 



 
 

develops that would change this budget amount.  An example of a potential issue is we are unable to find a vac 
truck with long enough hoses or a vac truck is unable suck the mud out of the diffuser.  In such an event, Staff 
would reassess and come back to the Board with recommendations. 
 
For all work Staff would negotiate directly with known vendors for pricing if each element of the repairs.  
 
Given the excessive cost of replacing the diffuser, Staff is now recommending rejecting submitted proposals 
for replacement of the diffuser and proceeding with repair of the diffuser as outlined above.   
  
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
Authorization for construction of outfall diffuser in 2004,  
Authorization to hire Advisian to prepare a diffuser report October 2017.  
Authorization to hire Advisian to prepare the permits for the diffuser December 5, 2018. 
Authorization to hire Advisian to prepare CEQA Documents for the diffuser August 21, 2019. 
Authorization to hire Advisian to prepare plans and specs for the diffuser October, 2020. 
Authorization for prepurchase of certain diffuser pieces, April 20, 2022. 
  
Fiscal Impact: Yes 
Amount Requested:  $200,000  
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:   Yes 
Prog/Fund #   Category:   CIP for Diffuser Project. 
 

Attachments 
 

1. Proposal from the Dutra Group 
2. Proposal from Power Engineering Inc. 

 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: F5 













$1,907,000.00 

$1,907,000.00 

one million, nine hundred and seven dollars











See Attachment









Page 19 thru 23













DISCOVERY BAY OUTFALL REPLACEMENT 

SPEC DEVIATIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

THE DUTRA GROUP 6-8-22 

 

1) Schedule is contingent upon receipt of the materials in time. Project may be pushed to the 
following year if not enough time is allowed following the receipt of materials. The Town will 
pay for, store and protect received materials if the project is delayed. 

2) Only the loose silt on the top of the existing revetment is required to be suction dredged 
and disposed. This quantity is unverified. The specs do not appear to show a verification 
criteria for removal of this material. This material will be suction dredged into a hopper 
barge by divers. The material will be disposed of at the Montezuma Wetlands dredge 
disposal facility assuming: 

a. Analytical test results allow it to be disposed there 
b. Disposal can be timed to piggy back onto other disposal projects and avoid start-up 

fees as a standalone disposal project.  
3) No part of the existing diffuser or weights will be re-used and they can be destroyed in the 

process of removal and disposed. 
4) Existing revetment cover on the diffuser does not need to be salvaged or reused. Existing 

revetment can be sidecast on the river bottom.  
5) An alternate riser assembly is proposed (see attached drawings) to address difficulties in 

obtaining certain parts.  
a. Saddle fittings are more difficult and costly to install. Instead, a series of 18x6 

branch saddle tee’s will be welded into the pipe string (see attached cut sheet)  
b. DR 26 breakaway riser is not readily available. Alternate proposal is a DR11 with a 

machine lathed 50% of the material away to make a score that is the same thickness 
as a DR26 and will give the same breakaway result.  

6) 5-year warranty cannot be pushed down on manufacturers and we cannot carry it.  
7) 6 day/10 hour shifts are allowed.  
8) Biological/Environmental Monitoring, Reporting, Protection/relocation is excluded.  
9) Subcontractors used: Divers, Testing Agency, Hydrographic Surveyor, Land Surveyor, 

Painter, Welder.  

 





 
 
 
 

W>��^��EKd��͊͊�-�^W��/&/��d/KE^ 
�ŝŵĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĂŶĐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ŶŽƟĐĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͕�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ�
ĂīĞĐƟŶŐ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ͘��ŝŵĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞ͘��ŶŐůĞ�ƚŽůĞƌĂŶĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĨĂďƌŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ĞůďŽǁƐ�ŝƐ�нͬ-�Ϯ�ĚĞŐƌĞĞƐ͘��ůů�ĮƫŶŐƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�
/ŶĮŶŝƚǇ�WůĂƐƟĐƐ�Η^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ�dĞƌŵƐ�ĂŶĚ��ŽŶĚŝƟŽŶƐ͘�Η���ĐŽƉǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĚƌĂǁŝŶŐ�ŵƵƐƚ�ĂĐĐŽŵƉĂŶǇ�Ăůů�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ŽƌĚĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĮƫŶŐ͘��ůů�
ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĚŝŵĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŽůĞƌĂŶĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�нͬ-�ϭ͘ϬΗ 
,�W��&ĂďƌŝĐĂƚĞĚ�&ŝƫŶŐƐ�ƐƵƉƉůŝĞĚ�ďǇ�/ŶĮŶŝƚǇ�WůĂƐƟĐƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ��tt���ϵϬϭͬ�ϵϬϲ�ĮƫŶŐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂŶƵĨĂĐͲ
ƚƵƌĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�WW/�ĂŶĚ�E^&�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ƌĞƐŝŶƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�W�ϰϳϭϬ�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ��^dD��ϯϯϱϬ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĐĞůů�ĐůĂƐƐŝĮĐĂͲ
ƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ϰϰϱϱϳϰ��Žƌ�ďĞƩĞƌ͘�^ƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ďƵƩ�ǁĞůĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƉŝƉĞ�ŵĂŶƵĨĂĐƚƵƌĞĚ�ƚŽ��^dD��Ϯϱϭϯ͕��ϯϬϯϱ͕�&ϳϭϰ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ƌĞƐŝŶƐ͘�ΎWƌĞƐƐƵƌĞ�
ZĂƟŶŐƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�Ϭ͘ϲϯ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌ�ĨŽƌ�,�^�Ăƚ�ϳϯϬ&�ĂƐ�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�WW/�dZ-ϰ�ĨŽƌ�W�ϰϳϭϬ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ͘ 

ϭϭϮϰ�,ŽƌŝĐŽŶ�^ƚ͘�DĂǇǀŝůůĞ͕�t/�ϱϯϬϱϬ 
W͗�ϵϮϬ-ϯϴϳ-ϬϮϬϬ�ͬ�&͗�ϵϮϬ-ϯϴϳ-ϬϯϬϬ 
ŝŶĮŶŝƚǇƉůĂƐƟĐƐΛƐďĐŐůŽďĂů͘ŶĞƚ 

/W^��ƌĂŶĐŚ�^ĂĚĚůĞ 

ZĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ�dĞĞ 

ǁͬ'ƵƐƐĞƚƐ 

&Ƶůů�WƌĞƐƐƵƌĞ�ZĂƚĞĚ 

;�ŝŵĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�/ŶĐŚĞƐͿ 

/W^ 
EŽŵŝŶĂů� 
^/ǌĞ 

� � � ^�Z  

ϭϴ͟�ǆ�ϲ͟ Ϯϵ͘Ϭ ϭϬ͘Ϯ ϭϴ͘ϲ ϳ-Ϯϭ 



1501 VIKING STREET • SUITE 200 • ALAMEDA, CA 94501 • 510/337-3800 FAX 510/337-3808

June 8, 2022

Gregory Harris
Herwit Engineering
6200 Center St., Suite 310
Clayton, CA 94517
D:  925.672.6599  E: gharris@herwit.com

Attn:  Mr.  Harris

Subject:  Discovery Bay Wastewater Outfall Diffuser Replacement

Dear Mr. Harris:

Power Engineering is pleased to provide cost estimate for all labor, equipment, and supervision 
necessary to replace the outfall diffuser in Discovery Bay, California.   Our total cost for the work 
is $1,027,000.  Enclosed are the bid documents.  

Work Sequence

Additionally, attached is a schedule showing the sequence of work.  The critical path starts with 
the procurement of the HDPE pipe.  Due to the current supply issues this is the largest risk on 
the project.  I have included two weeks for submittal procurement and review, which we can 
expedite to try and reduce this duration.  

Once the HDPE is obtained, we will fuse the various sections together in the shop utilizing two 
separate fusing machines and technicians to expedite the work.  Additional shop work will 
include the precast concrete weights.  Performing the precast concrete with our own crew not 
only eliminates the risk of schedule delay from a fabrication yard but is also more cost-effective.  
We have experience fabricating concrete weights for pipelines, and most recently performed 
this for a 48” outfall installed in San Francisco for the Public Utilities Commission. 

We plan to mobilize the project and begin the underwater excavation once we have the 
material on hand.  We will utilize our dive team to suction dredge the upper silt/sand layer and 
pump it landside to a containment area.  The containment area will be water-tight and consist of 
k-rail barriers.  Water will be collected and pumped out from the containment area and 
transported to the nearby treatment plant via water truck.  Once the standing water has been 
removed, the remaining sediment will be hauled to the spoils pile offsite.  An excavator 
mounted on a barge will be used to move the rip rap surrounding the existing outfall.  



1501 VIKING STREET • SUITE 200 • ALAMEDA, CA 94501 • 510/337-3800 FAX 510/337-3808

After the shop fabrication is complete we will demolish the existing outfall, meanwhile 
preparing the new pipe onsite with the new concrete weights.  The pipe will be positioned and 
lowered into place using our barge as well as dive team.  Once the pipe is secured to the existing 
flange connection we will ensure the outfall is positioned so the diffusers are facing upwards 
and plumb.  We will re-use the existing rip rap to backfill and plan on importing approximately 
75 tons of new rock to complete the backfill.

In conjunction with the underwater work we will have a separate crew topside working on the 
installing the new Y-Cleanout.  Since this work is off the critical path we will have a smaller crew 
completing this task.     

Risk Summary

 HDPE Procurement
o Mitigation: We have identified two potential suppliers, (Core & Main and P&F 

Distributors) to provide the HDPE.  Upon award we can confirm lead times and 
price with each supplier to determine who can best meet the project’s tight 
timeline. 

 Concrete Weight Procurement
o Mitigation: Power Engineering to fabrication in-house

 Unforeseen Field Conditions
o Mitigation: Power Engineering will be self-performing all construction work, 

including diving, and utilize our owned equipment.  This allows us to easily add 
additional crew as necessary to make up time on the schedule, including 
working additional overtime hours. 

Should you have any questions, please call me at 415-264-0726.

Sincerely;
Power Engineering Construction Co.

Jeff Van Meter
Estimator

Disclaimer: This bid package is only intended for use by Herwit Engineering and the Town of 
Discovery Bay.  

Attachments: Exclusions
Schedule 
Bid Package



1501 VIKING STREET • SUITE 200 • ALAMEDA, CA 94501 • 510/337-3800 FAX 510/337-3808

Exclusions: 
1. Builders Risk Insurance (can be provided on a per-project basis)
2. Permits and Permit Fees
3. Engineering or Design
4. Utility Relocation 
5. Site Survey, Lines, Grade
6. Hazardous Materials Handling/Abatement/Removal 
7. Special Inspection or Testing Fees
8. Vibration or Damage Monitoring
9. Any Repairs to the Existing Structures, Interior or Exterior, either prior to, during, or 

after Construction
10. Temporary Power & Lighting Install and Supply
11. Industrial Hygienist or Inspection Services
12. Silt Curtain, Bubble Curtain, or other regulatory requirements not normally 

encountered.
13. Biological Monitoring



Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration

Start Finish

Discovery Bay Wastewater Outfall Diffuser ReplacementDiscovery Bay Wastewater Outfall Diffuser Replacement 98 15-Jun-22 01-Nov-22

Discovery Bay Wastewater Outfall Diffuser ReplacementDiscovery Bay Wastewater Outfall Diffuser Replacement 98 15-Jun-22 01-Nov-22

MilestonesMilestones 98 15-Jun-22 01-Nov-22

A1000 Notice to Proceed 0 15-Jun-22

A1010 Substantial Completion 0 28-Oct-22

A1020 2022 Environmental Work Window Opening 0 15-Sep-22*

A1030 Final Completion 0 01-Nov-22

PreconstructionPreconstruction 82 15-Jun-22 10-Oct-22

B1000 Submittal Generation 5 15-Jun-22 21-Jun-22

B1010 Submittal Approval 5 22-Jun-22 28-Jun-22

B1020 HPDE Pipe Procurement 60 29-Jun-22 22-Sep-22

B1030 Steel Pipe Procurement 40 29-Jun-22 24-Aug-22

B1040 Shop Fabricate HDPE Outfall Diffuser 12 23-Sep-22 10-Oct-22

B1060 Precast Concrete Weights 6 29-Jun-22 07-Jul-22

ConstructionConstruction 34 15-Sep-22 01-Nov-22

C1000 Mobilize Project 5 15-Sep-22 21-Sep-22

C1040 Demobilize Project 2 31-Oct-22 01-Nov-22

In-Water WorkIn-Water Work 26 23-Sep-22 28-Oct-22

C1005 Underwater Excavation 13 23-Sep-22 11-Oct-22

C1015 Remove Concrete Weights and Demo Pipe 4 12-Oct-22 17-Oct-22

C1025 Prepare Pipe and Concrete Weights 3 11-Oct-22 13-Oct-22

C1035 Install 18" Outfall Pipe 5 18-Oct-22 24-Oct-22

C1045 Backfill Rock 4 25-Oct-22 28-Oct-22

Landside WorkLandside Work 12 23-Sep-22 10-Oct-22

C1010 Excavate and Demolish Y-Cleanout 3 23-Sep-22 27-Sep-22

C1020 Install New Y-Cleanout 6 28-Sep-22 05-Oct-22

C1030 Backfill Sand and Rip Rap 3 06-Oct-22 10-Oct-22

29 05 12 19 26 03 10 17 24 31 07 14 21 28 04 11 18 25 02 09 16 23 30 06 13 20 27 04 11 18 25 01 08 15 22 29

June July August September October November December January

2022 2023

Notice to Proceed

Substantial Completion

2022 Environmental Work Window Opening

Final Completion

Submittal Generation

Submittal Approval

HPDE Pipe Procurement

Steel Pipe Procurement

Shop Fabricate HDPE Outfall Diffuser

Precast Concrete Weights

Mobilize Project

Demobilize Project

Underwater Excavation

Remove Concrete Weights and Demo Pipe

Prepare Pipe and Concrete Weights

Install 18" Outfall Pipe

Backfill Rock

Excavate and Demolish Y-Cleanout

Install New Y-Cleanout

Backfill Sand and Rip Rap

Discovery Bay Wastewater Outfall Diffuser Replacement  p22-083 Estimate Schedule

Actual Level of Effort

Remaining Level of Effort

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Discovery Bay Wastewater Outfall Diffuser Replacement

Page 1 of 1

TASK filter: All Activities





















































































































1

Mike Davies

Subject: Planned road work on Bixler

From: Dawn Morrow  
Sent: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 1:43 PM 
To: Dina Breitstein  
Subject: Planned road work on Bixler 
 
Hi Dina, 
 
I hope you are doing well. I was just checking with staff on this and have the following update to share with you: 
  
“The project on Bixler road which was scheduled to start next Monday 6/13/22, has been delayed due to an active bird 
nest observed nearby during the pre-construction survey, which was completed late last week.  
 
Most of the project falls within the standard buffer for the nest. Given that the nest site is in a very busy area due to school 
activities and significant traffic on Byron Highway, we are working with the Conservancy/HCP to obtain approval to 
reduce the buffer size, which will allow us to begin construction.  
 
We anticipate that it will take 1-2 weeks before we know if the reduced buffer is approved. We will provide the updated 
start date to you as soon as it can be determined. “ 
 
Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Dawn Morrow 
District 3 Representative 
 

  
Office of Supervisor Diane Burgis 
3361 Walnut Boulevard, Suite 140 
Brentwood, CA 94513 
Phone (925) 655-2330 
  
"This message is being sent on a public e-mail system and may be subject to disclosure under the California Public 
Records Act."  
  
 


	Microsoft Word - A1 BOD Agenda June 15 2022.pdf
	Microsoft Word - C1  June 1 2022 BOD Draft Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Microsoft Word - C2 SPECIAL MEETING TOWN HALL EVENT 06042022 - MEETING MINUTES.pdf
	Microsoft Word - C3 Staff Report Approve Register of District Invoices.pdf
	C3-1 RFA 061522.xlsx.pdf
	Microsoft Word - C4 TODB AB 361 Continuing Resolution - Updated for Masking Lift(1590379.3).pdf
	Microsoft Word - C5 Staff Report - LSCE Contract Renewal - Consent 06152022 (003).pdf
	C5-1 LSCE SCOPE FY22-23 General Services.pdf
	220527 SCOPE FY22-23 General Services
	FY 22-23 General Engineering Services Budget Estimate

	Microsoft Word - C6 06-15-2022 Staff Report for Auditor Engagement for year ending June 30 2022.pdf
	C6-1 Town of Discovery Bay - Audit Engagement Letter.pdf
	C6-2 Town of Discovery Bay - SDFTR Engagement Letter.pdf
	C6-3 SDFTR Engagement Letter - Public Financing Authority.pdf
	E1 06-2022 Veolia Monthly Presentation (May Data).pdf
	Microsoft Word - F1 Staff Report Zone 9 Assessment Accept Eng. Report 2022-2023.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F1-1 Resolution No 2022-22 Ravenswood Assessment Intent to Levy Coll 2022-2023.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F1-2 2022_2023_Engineers_Rpt_for_L_L__9-DRAFT.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F2 Staff Report FY2022-23 Operating Capital and Revenue Budgets and Adopt Resolution 2022-020.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F2-1 Resolution No  2022-20 Annual FY2022-23 Op Cap Rev Budgets.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F2-2 TODBCSD Propsed Budget Document 2022-2023 V_2.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F2-3 Operating Budget Public Hearing Receipt.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F3 Staff Report - IIPP 2022 Update.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F3-1 Resolution 2022-21.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F3-2  IIPP_FINAL.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F4 Staff Report - In Support of a Healthy & Sustainable Delta.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F4-1 Resolution 2022-23.pdf
	F4-2 Save the Date Delta Counties Water Summit.pdf
	Microsoft Word - F5 Staff Report Diffuer Repair - Board Meeting 6.15.2022-gh.pdf
	F5-1 Discovery Bay_TDG Response.pdf
	F5-2 PEC Proposal - Discovery Bay Outfall - FINAL.pdf
	PEC Proposal - Discovery Bay Outfall Diffuser
	Bid Schedule - p22-083
	Bid Forms - FINAL

	K1 Bixler Road Work Email from D Morrow 060722.pdf


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}




